
 
                                  

 
 
                                                            

AGENDA 
 

For a meeting of the 

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 
to be held on 

TUESDAY, 25 JULY 2006 
at 

3.00 PM 
in the 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNCIL OFFICES, ST PETERS HILL, 
GRANTHAM 

Duncan Kerr, Chief Executive    

 

Committee 
Members: 

Councillor George Chivers, Councillor Mike Exton, Councillor Brian 
Fines (Vice-Chairman), Councillor Bryan Helyar, Councillor Reginald 
Howard, Councillor Fereshteh Hurst, Councillor Mrs Maureen Jalili, 
Councillor Albert Victor Kerr, Councillor Alan Parkin (Chairman), 
Councillor Stanley Pease, Councillor Mrs Angeline Percival, 
Councillor Norman Radley, Councillor Bob Sandall, Councillor Ian 
Selby, Councillor Ian Stokes, Councillor Frank Turner and Councillor 
John Wilks 

  
Committee Support 
Officer: 

 
Malcolm Hall  Tel: 01476 406118 

  

 

Members of the Committee are invited to attend the above meeting 
to consider the items of business listed below. 

 
1. MEMBERSHIP 
 The Chief Executive to notify the Committee of any substitute members 
  
2. APOLOGIES 
  
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 Members are asked to declare an interest in matters for consideration at 

the meeting 
  
4. MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON 4TH JULY 2006 
      (Enclosure) 
  

 



5. SO6/0366/35 - RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT, 201 BARROWBY ROAD, 
GRANTHAM 

 Report PLA599 by the Acting Development Services Manager 
    (Enclosure) 

 
  
6. SO6/1691 - RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT (43), LAND SOUTH OF SPALDING 

ROAD, FROGNALL 
 Report PLA601 by the Acting Development Services Manager  

    (Enclosure) 
 

  
7. PLANNING MATTERS: 
 To consider applications received for the grant of planning permission – 

reports prepared by the Area Planning Officers. 
 

 (a) Straight forward list         (Enclosure) 
 

(b) List for debate          (Enclosure) 
  
8. INFORMATION RELATING TO DEVELOPMENT CONTROL AND OTHER 

PLANNING ACTIVITIES. 
 Report PLA600 by the Acting Development Services Manager  

     (Enclosure) 
 

  
9. ANY OTHER BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN, BY REASON OF SPECIAL 

CIRCUMSTANCES, DECIDES IS URGENT. 
  
 



 

Development Control Committee/Minutes/4th July 2006  

 

MINUTES 
 

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 

 

TUESDAY 4TH JULY 2006 
 

2.00 P.M. 

 

 

 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT 

 

Councillor Chivers     Councillor Pease 

Councillor Exton      Councillor N Radley 
Councillor Fines     Councillor Sandall 
Councillor Howard     Councillor Selby 

Councillor Mrs Hurst     Councillor Stokes 
Councillor Mrs Jalili     Councillor Turner 

Councillor Kerr      Councillor Wilks 
Councillor Parkin (in the Chair) 
 

OFFICERS 

          

Principal Planning Officer 
Senior Planning Officer  

Committee Support Officer  

Legal Executive       
  

 

 

701. APOLOGIES 

 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Helyar. 
 

702. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 

There were none declared. 
 

703. MINUTES 

 

The minutes of the meeting held on 13th June 2006 were confirmed as a correct 

record of decisions taken. 

 

704. CONSTITUTIONAL CHANGE 

 

The Chairman advised that as no Member had made any comment with regard 

to possible amendments either to the Constitution or the Members’ Planning 
Code of Good Practice, the item would be removed from the agenda until 

comments were received in time for the to be evaluated by the Monitoring 
Officer.  

 

Agenda Item 4 



 

Development Control Committee/Minutes/4th July 2006  

 

 

 

705. PLANNING MATTERS – LIST FOR DEBATE 

  

 Decision:- 
 

 To determine applications, or make observations, as listed below:- 
 

SU.1 

 

Application ref: S06/0114/69 
 

Description: Redevelopment of barns and outbuildings to 12 residential units 

and one retail unit 
 

Location: Land off Bath Row, Stamford 
 
Decision:  Approved 

 
Noting comments from the Historic Buildings Advisor with regard to the original and 

amended proposals, comments from the Highway Authority and Community 
Archaeologist, no objection from the Environment Agency, comments from English 
Heritage, no objection from Stamford Town Council and representations from nearby 

residents, subject to the following conditions:-    
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three 
years from the date of this permission. 

2. This consent relates to the application as amended by drawing nos. 21A, 22A, 

23A, 24A, 25A, 26A and 27B received on 31 May 2006. 

3. Before any development is commenced, details including location and means of 

disposal of surface water and foul drainage shall be submitted to and approved 
by the District Planning Authority, and no building shall be occupied until the 
drainage works have been provided. 

4. A sample panel of proposed materials shall be constructed on site and shall be 

subject to the approval of the District Planning Authority prior to work 

commencing on site. The panel shall show the proposed method of construction 
including the type of natural stone and its finish, the mortar mixture and the 
method of coursing to be used in the development. The approved development 

shall be constructed in accordance with the sample panel as may be approved, 
and the panel shall be maintained on site throughout the duration of 

construction works. 

5. Large scale details of all external joinery, to a scale of not less than 1:20, to 

include cross sections to show cills, lintols, etc., shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the District Planning Authority prior to the 
commencement of the development. 

6. The arrangements shown on the approved plan 1243/21 dated 9 January 2006 
for the parking/turning/loading/unloading of vehicles shall be available at all 

times when the premises are in use. 

7. No development shall take place before the detailed design of the arrangements 
for surface water drainage has been agreed in writing by the Local Planning 

 



 

Development Control Committee/Minutes/4th July 2006  

 

Authority and no building shall be occupied before it is connected to the agreed 
drainage system. 

8. The finished floor levels of the buildings subject of this application shall be no 
lower than 22.7mAOD. 

9. Before any of the works hereby approved are commenced, the applicant shall 
arrange for access into the site by a recognised expert in order to undertake a 
survey to establish whether the site is occupied by bats or barn owls, protected 

species under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981.  The results of such a 
survey shall be submitted to the District Planning Authority and, if it confirms 

the presence of bats or owls, shall be accompanied by a scheme of mitigation 
detailing the periods within which the development will be undertaken.  Such a 

scheme as may be approved in writing shall be strictly adhered to during the 
period in which the development is undertaken. 

10.Before the works hereby granted consent are commenced, the type of rainwater 

goods to be used on existing and proposed buildings shall be agreed with the 

local planning authority.  Only such type of rainwater goods as may be agreed 

in writing shall be installed on the buildings. 

11.Before the development is commenced, there shall be submitted to and 
approved by the District Planning Authority details of the means of surfacing of 

the unbuilt portions of the site. 

12.Before the works hereby granted consent are commenced the type of rooflights 

to be used shall be agreed in writing with the local planning authority and only 
such type as may be agreed in writing shall be installed in the buildings. 

13.Before any works of re-pointing to existing stonework is undertaken, the mortar 

mix to be used shall be agreed in writing with the local planning authority. 

14.Any raking out of joints to stonework for re-pointing shall be undertaken using 

hand tools only. 

15.The Collyweston stone slates shall be laid in diminishing courses. 

16.Before the works hereby granted consent are commenced, the method of damp 

proofing the buildings shall be agreed in writing with the local planning 
authority.  Only such method(s) as may be agreed in writing shall be used on 

the buildings.  

Note(s) to Applicant 
1. Your attention is drawn to the enclosed Planning Guidance Note No 1 entitled 

'Archaeology and Your Development'. 

2. You are advised that the application site falls within an area which requires 

protection from Radon. You are advised to contact the District Council's Building 

Control Services to ascertain the level of protection required, and whether 
geological assessment is necessary. 

SU.2 

 

Application ref: S06/LB/6539/69  
 

Description:  Alteration of listed building 
 
Location:  Land Off Bath Row, Stamford 

 
Decision:  Approved 

 



 

Development Control Committee/Minutes/4th July 2006  

 

 
Noting comments from the Historic Buildings Advisor on the original and amended 

proposals, comments from the Community Archaeologist, no objection from the 
Environment Agency and no objection from Stamford Town Council, subject to the 

following conditions:-  
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three 

years from the date of this permission. 

2. This consent relates to the application as amended by drawing nos. 21A, 22A, 

23A, 24A, 25A, 26A and 27B received on 31 May 2006. 

3. A sample panel of proposed materials shall be constructed on site and shall be 

subject to the approval of the District Planning Authority prior to work 
commencing on site. The panel shall show the proposed method of construction 
including the type of natural stone and its finish, the mortar mixture and the 

method of coursing to be used in the development. The approved development 
shall be constructed in accordance with the sample panel as may be approved, 

and the panel shall be maintained on site throughout the duration of 
construction works. 

4. The finished floor levels of the buildings subject of this application shall be no 

lower than 22.7m AOD. 

5. Large scale details of all external joinery, to a scale of not less than 1:20, to 

include cross sections to show cills, lintols, etc., shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the District Planning Authority prior to the 
commencement of the development. 

6. Before any of the works hereby approved are commenced, the applicant shall 
arrange for access into the site by a recognised expert in order to undertake a 

survey to establish whether the site is occupied by bats or barn owls, protected 
species under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981.  The results of such a 
survey shall be submitted to the District Planning Authority and, if it confirms 

the presence of bats or owls, shall be accompanied by a scheme of mitigation 
detailing the periods within which the development will be undertaken.  Such a 

scheme as may be approved in writing shall be strictly adhered to during the 
period in which the development is undertaken. 

7. Before the works hereby granted consent are commenced, the type of rainwater 

goods to be used on existing and proposed buildings shall be agreed with the 
local planning authority.  Only such type of rainwater goods as may be agreed 

in writing shall be installed on the buildings. 

8. Before the development is commenced, there shall be submitted to and 
approved by the District Planning Authority details of the means of surfacing of 

the unbuilt portions of the site. 

9. Before the works hereby permitted are commenced the type of rooflights to be 

used shall be agreed in writing with the local planning authority and only such 
type as may be agreed in writing shall be installed in the buildings. 

10.Before any works of repointing to existing stonework is undertaken, the mortar 
mix to be used shall be agreed in writing with the local planning authority. 

11.Any raking out of joints to stonework for repointing shall be undertaken using 

hand tools only. 

12.The Collyweston stone slates shall be laid in diminishing courses. 

 



 

Development Control Committee/Minutes/4th July 2006  

 

13.Before the works hereby granted consent are commenced, the method of damp 
proofing the buildings shall be agreed in writing with the local planning 

authority.  Only such method(s) as may be agreed in writing shall be used on 
the buildings. 

 

SU.3 

 

Application ref: S06/0439/69 
 

Description:  Residential development (outline) 
 

Location: Land And Premises Of E Bowman & Sons, Cherryholt Road, 
Stamford 

 

Decision:  Deferred 
 

(2.16pm – Councillor Selby entered the meeting) 
 
Noting comments made during the public speaking session from:- 

 
 Mr M Bagshaw – agent for the applicant 

 
together with comments from the Highway Authority, Head of Planning Policy and 
Economic Regeneration, Housing Solutions and the Community Archaeologist, an 

objection from the Environment Agency and no objection from Stamford Town Council, 
together with representations from a number of nearby residents and detailed 

submissions in support from the applicants, together with comments from the 
Amenities Manager, for further information and a report on how the application and 
loss of business land would fit in with the overall plans for the area.  

 
SU.4 

 

Application ref: S06/0451/56  
 

Description:  11 houses and 6 apartments (Reserved matters) 
 

Location:  The Still, Off Rosemary Avenue, Market Deeping 
 
Decision:  Deferred 

 
Noting report of site inspection and the submission of an amended plan, comments 

from the Highway Authority, Community Archaeologist and Housing Solutions together 
with an objection from Town Council and representations from nearby residents, for 

negotiations with the applicants regarding the reduction in height of the two and a half 
storey element down to two storey. 
 

NR.1 

 

Application ref: S06/0441/02  
 

Description:  Residential development (5) 

 
Location:  Land To R/o The Ermine Way PH, Ermine Street, Ancaster 

 



 

Development Control Committee/Minutes/4th July 2006  

 

 
Decision:  Deferred 

 
Noting report of site inspection and comments from the Parish Council, Highway 

Authority, Community Archaeologist, Environment Agency, Asset & Facilities 
Management and representations from nearby residents, Acting Development Control 
Services Manager authorised to determine the application, after consultation with the 

Chairman and Vice Chairman, subject to the receipt of amendments to the Flood Risk 
Assessments to address the concerns of the Environment Agency and subject also to 

appropriate conditions, including conditions specifically relating to fencing of the car 
park to the public house and properties on Water Lane.  

 
NR.2 

 

Application ref: S06/0622/55 

 

Description:  Four dwellings & garage and replacement garage to Farbrooke 
 
Location:  Farbrooke, 17, Main Road, Long Bennington 

 
Decision:  Minded to refuse 

 
(2.39pm – Councillor Chivers left the meeting) 
 

(2.45pm – Councillor Chivers returned to the meeting) 
 

Noting comments made during the public speaking session from:- 
 
 Mr J Bishop, 13 Main Road, Long Bennington – objecting 

 
together with comments from the Parish Council, Highway Authority and Assets and 

Facilities Management, no objection from the Community Archaeologist 
representations from nearby residents and submissions in support from the applicants, 
and a letter from a local resident circulated to members at the meeting. 

 
It was proposed and seconded that the Committee were minded to refuse the 

application for reasons which were read to the committee by the proposer of the 
motion, as follows:- 
 

It is considered that the density should be commensurate with the wider pattern of the 
settlement.  Long Bennington is characterised by dwellings set in large plots. The 

density of this development is greater than that of the surrounding area and, as such, 
creates a discordant element within the centre of the village contrary to PPG3. 

 
It is also considered that the proposed development creates an adverse impact on the 
amenities of properties on Vicarage Lane from overlooking and a loss of privacy 

contary to policies EN1 and H6 in the South Kesteven Local Plan. 
  

The Committee Support Officer reminded Members of the procedure which must now 

be followed, and as set out in the Constitution, where the Committee proposed to take 
a decision against clear advise from the Acting Development Control Services 

Manager.  He reminded members that the Constitution provided for a recorded vote on 
the first and subsequent hearings of an application in this category.   

 



 

Development Control Committee/Minutes/4th July 2006  

 

 
A recorded vote was then taken as follows:- 

 
FOR  

 

AGAINST  ABSTAIN 

Councillor Exton  Nil Nil 
Councillor Fines   

Councillor Howard   
Councillor Mrs Hurst   

Councillor Mrs Jalili   
Councillor Kerr   

Councillor Parkin   
Councillor Pease   
Councillor N Radley   

Councillor Sandall   

Councillor Selby   

Councillor Stokes   
Councillor Turner   
Councillor Wilks   

  
Councillor Chivers was not eligible to vote as he had not been present throughout the 

whole of the discussion on this item. 
 
The motion was therefore carried. 

 
The Committee Support Officer then reminded Members that under the terms of the 

aforementioned amendment to the Constitution those members supporting the 
decision must, within five days, provide to the Acting Development Control Services 
Manager the planning reasons for their view and evidence that supports it.  All 

Members voting for the proposal that they were minded to refuse indicated their 
agreement to the reasons that were read out by the Member proposing the motion.  

The application would now be placed on the agenda for consideration at the next 
meeting. 
 

NU.1 

 

Application ref: S06/0328/35 
 

Description:  Change of use to private residential gypsy site 

 
Location:  Lazy Acres, Gorse Lane, Grantham 

 
Decision:  Refused 

 
Noting comments from the Highway Authority no objection from the Community 
Archaeologist, representations from nearby residents and Grantham Cricket Club and 

comments on the relevant legislation, and a recommendation to approve, subject to 
conditions, from the Acting Development Control Services Manager. 

 

The Acting Development Control Services Manager drew attention to the reasons for 
refusal which had been submitted by Members who voted against the proposal, as 

required by the Constitution.  He said that in his opinion the report previously 
circulated to members gave a comprehensive breakdown of the guidance contained in 

 



 

Development Control Committee/Minutes/4th July 2006  

 

circular 01/06 and also set out in detail how the current guidance countered each of 
the original reasons for refusal.  Attention was drawn to Section 38 of the Planning and 

Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 which stated that if to any extent a policy contained in 
a Development Plan for an area conflicted with another policy in the Development Plan 

the conflict must be resolved in favour of the policy which is contained in the 
document to be adopted, approved or published.  In this instance, the most recent 
policy of February 2006 as stated in circular 01/06 must be used as the basis for the 

determination of the application.  It was his opinion that none of the comments 
received from Councillors addressed this and it remained his view that the current 

circular must form the basis on which the application was to be determined, and not 
the out dated guidance offered in circulars 01/94, 18/94.  The recommendation was 

still to approve. 
 
The Committee Support Officer sought and received confirmation that Councillor 

Stokes, Sandall and Turner concurred with, as did other members, the reasons set out 

in the report from Councillor Wilks. 

 
The Committee Support Officer then reminded Members that under the terms of the 
Constitution, having indicated that they were minded to refuse the application, and 

having submitting reasons for this and considered the comments of the Development 
Control Services Manager thereon, they could now proceed, if they wished, to formally 

refuse the application although this must be by a recorded vote. 
 
It was formally proposed and seconded that the application be refused for the 

following reason:- 
 

 It is considered that this development would result in consolidation of an 
isolated group of dwellings.  There are no public transport links and thus there 
will be reliance upon private motor vehicles.  Representations made at previous 

appeal hearing indicate that there is not a peaceful and integrated coexistence 
between the site and the local communities.  It is considered that the 

development is contrary to the local plan policies H13 and H10 and the previous 
appeal decision, and circular 1/06 does not outweigh these policies.  

 

Those voting for or against the proposal are recorded below:- 
 

FOR  AGAINST ABSTAIN 

 

Councillor Fines Councillor Selby Councillor Exton 

Councillor Howard  Councillor Parkin 
Councillor Mrs Jalili  Councillor N Radley 

Councillor Kerr   
Councillor Sandall   

Councillor Stokes   
Councillor Turner   
Councillor Wilks   

   
The proposition was therefore carried, and the application was refused for the 

following reasons:- 

 
 It is considered that this development would result in consolidation of an 

isolated group of dwellings.  There are no public transport links and thus there 
will be reliance upon private motor vehicles.  Representations made at previous 

 



 

Development Control Committee/Minutes/4th July 2006  

 

appeal hearing indicate that there is not a peaceful and integrated coexistence 
between the site and the local communities.  It is considered that the 

development is contrary to the local plan policies H13 and H10 and the previous 
appeal decision, and circular 1/06 does not outweigh these policies. 

 
(3.25pm – Councillor Pease left the meeting) 
 

(3.30 pm – Councillor Pease returned to the meeting) 
 

NU.2 

 

Application ref: S06/0576/54 
 

Description:  Three retail units & six flats 

 

Location:  Land Adj. Lytham Close, Sunningdale, Grantham 

 
Decision:  Minded to refuse 
 

Noting comments from the Parish Council, Highway Authority and Arboriculturist, 
numerous representations from local residents and submissions in support from the 

applicants.  
 
It was proposed and seconded that the committee was minded to refuse the 

application. 
 

The Committee Support Officer reminded Members of the procedure which now must 
be followed, and as set out in the Constitution, where the committee proposed to take 
a decision against clear advice from the Acting Development Control Services 

Manager.  He reminded members that the Constitution provided for a recorded vote on 
the first and subsequent hearings of an application in this category. 

 
A record vote was taken on the proposal, as follows:- 
 

FOR  AGAINST ABSTAIN 

 

Councillor Chivers Councillor Parkin Councillor N Radley 
Councillor Exton  Councillor Selby 
Councillor Fines   

Councillor Howard   
Councillor Mrs Hurst   

Councillor Mrs Jalili   
Councillor Kerr   

Councillor Sandall   
Councillor Stokes   
Councillor Turner   

Councillor Wilks   
 

The motion was therefore carried. 

 
The Committee Support Officer then reminded Members that under the term of the 

aforementioned amendment to the Constitution, those members supporting the 
decision must, within five days, provide to the Acting Developing Control Services 

 



 

Development Control Committee/Minutes/4th July 2006  

 

Manager the planning reasons for their view and the evidence that supports it.  The 
application will then be placed on the agenda for consideration at the next meeting. 

 

NU.3 

 

Application ref: S06/0642/54 
 

Description:  Retail unit 
 

Location:  Junction Of Lytham Close & Sunningdale, Grantham 
 

Decision:  Approved 
 
Noting comments from the Parish Council, Highway Authority and Arboriculturist, 

representations from local residents and submissions in support from the applicants, 

subject to the following conditions:- 

 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three 

years from the date of this permission. 

2. Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, final details of the 
materials to be used in the construction of external walls and roofs shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the District Planning Authority. Only 
such materials as may be agreed shall be used in the development. 

3. The arrangements shown on the approved plan 1276-101A dated 10 May 2006 

for the parking/turning/loading/unloading of vehicles shall be available at all 
times when the premises are in use. 

4. Prior to the commencement of construction of any building(s) or 
commencement of the use, the vehicular access to Sunndingdale shall be 
improved in accordance with drawing number 1276-101A dated 10 May 2006. 

5. This consent relates to the application as amended by letter and details received 
on 10 May 2006, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning 

authority. 

6. The finished floor levels for the building hereby permitted shall be as per the 
sectional level detail shown on drawing no. 1276-102, and shall not be varied 

without the written consent of the local planning authority. 

7. the premises shall only be used for retail purposes between the hours of 0730 

and 2200 Monday to Saturday and 0830 and 2100 on Sundays or Public 
Holidays unless the prior written consent to any variation  is given by the local 
planning authority. 

8. There shall be no deliveries to or from the premises outside the hours of 0700 
and 2200 on any day of the week without the prior written consent of the 

planning authority. 

9. No development shall take place until there has been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority a plan indicating the 
positions, design, materials and type of boundary treatment to be erected. The 
boundary treatment shall be completed before the building(s) are occupied, or 

in accordance with a timetable agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with approved 

details. 

 



 

Development Control Committee/Minutes/4th July 2006  

 

10.Before any development is commenced the approval of the District Planning 
Authority is required to a scheme of landscaping and tree planting for the site 

(indicating inter alia, the number, species, heights on planting and positions of 
all the trees). Such scheme as may be approved by the District Planning 

Authority shall be undertaken in the first planting season following the 
occupation of the buildings or the completion of the development, whichever is 
the sooner, and any trees or plants which within a period of five years from the 

completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged 
or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar 

size and species, unless the District Planning Authority gives written consent to 
any variation.  

Note(s) to Applicant 
1. Prior to the commencement of any of the access works within the public 

highway, please contact the Divisional Highways Manager (Lincolnshire County 

Council) for appropriate specification and construction information. 

2. You are advised that the application site falls within an area which requires 

protection from Radon. You are advised to contact the District Council's Building 
Control Services to ascertain the level of protection required, and whether 
geological assessment is necessary. 

 

705. INFORMATION RELATING TO DEVELOPMENT CONTROL AND OTHER 

PLANNING ACTIVITY 
 

The Acting Development Control Services Manager submitted his report PLA593 
listing details of applications not determined within the eight-week time period.  

Also submitted was a list of applications dealt with under delegated powers and 
a list of appeals and newly submitted received during June 2006. 
 

706. PLANNING PANEL/SITE VISTS 

 

The Chairman asked for and received and indication of the following Members 
who wished to serve on the Planning Panel:- 
 

 Councillor Mrs Hurst  
 Councillor Mrs Jalili 

 Councillor Kerr 
 Councillor Howard 

Councillor Wilks 

 Councillor Exton 
 Councillor Chivers 

 Councillor Turner 
 Councillor Pease 

 
The Chairman asked for Members to indicate if they did not wish to serve on the 
Site Visit Group for the ensuing year.  The only Member who so indicated was 

Councillor Selby.  The Committee Support Officer indicated that he would 

arrange for appropriate replacements to be appointed. 

 
707. CLOSE OF MEETING  

 

The meeting closed at 3.37pm 
      

 



REPORT PLA.599 
 

 
 
 
Development Control Committee 
25 July 2006  
 
 
Report by Planning Officer 
 
 
S06/0366/35 – Residential Development, 201 Barrowby Road, Grantham. 
 
Members will recall that the above application was considered at the Development 
Control Committee on 16 May 2006 when authorisation was given to determine the 
application, after consultation with the Chairman and Vice-Chairman, subject to the 
completion of a section 106 Agreement relating to an educational contribution. 
 
On the 25 April 2006 Lincolnshire County Council gave their written comments on the 
proposal and were seeking an educational contribution of £55,785. 
 
Members will recall the approval of planning permission for the erection of 24 dwellings 
on the adjacent site to the west (Nissan garage) at the end of last year.  LCC requested 
an educational contribution as part of that proposal.  However, it was determined that 
as the required funds could not be apportioned to a nearby school and would have 
essentially been used by LCC for any Grantham school, there was not deemed to be a 
direct requirement as a result of the development proposed (Circular 05/05) and the 
request was quashed. 
 
Circular 05/05 provides the Secretary of State policy on Planning Obligations and, at 
paragraph B5, states that planning obligations should only be sought where they meet 
all of the following tests. 
 
A planning obligation must be: 
 
i) relevant to planning; 
ii) necessary to make the proposed development acceptable in planning terms; 
iii) directly related to the proposed development; 
iv) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the proposed development; and 
v) reasonable in all other respects. 
 
All of these tests are relevant here as, at paragraph B8 the Circular states: 
 

‘… Obligations must also be so directly related to proposed developments 
that the development ought not to be permitted without them – for example, 
there should be a functional or geographical link between the development and 
the item being provided as part of the developer’s contribution.’ 
 

Agenda Item 5 



In light of the decision made regarding the contribution sought on the adjacent site, 
LCC were asked to justify their request for the contribution of £55,785.  The following 
information was received from the Education Planning Manager: 
 

I have looked through the predictions of pupil numbers we have made in the past 
for the Grantham School Organisation Plan (SOP) area, that includes all the 
Grantham Town schools as well as Corby Glen and Welbourn Schools.  Whilst 
in my consideration of making a s.106 request, I would not wish to see pupils 
forced to travel out to Welbourn or Corby Glen.  I have taken them into account 
in this calculation, as I am aware that presently they take a great deal of pupils 
from Grantham and therefore their ability to take pupils in the future has a direct 
influence on the number of pupils needing school places in Grantham itself.  I 
note in particular that Corby Glen has had considerable surplus places, however 
it is predicted to see a large rise in the number of pupils attending that school in 
the forthcoming three years.  Welbourn Sir William Robertson is full and is 
predicted to remain extremely over-subscribed. 
 
When we group these schools together in the Grantham SOP area, I note that in 
the School Organisation Plan Supplement 2004-2009 we were predicting for 
Academic Year 2008/9 there would be 5,164 pupils in the secondary sector, 
whereas the current predictions show some 5,510 pupils for Academic Year 
2008/09.  This is against an overall capacity of 5,429 places which clearly is an 
under-capacity of 51. 
 
These predictions do not take into account recently granted planning consent or 
that currently under consideration, therefore with such a popular growth area as 
Grantham I would presume that the previous trend of under-estimating pupil 
numbers may well continue as a result of this.  This is what has caused such 
concern that pupil numbers may well exceed the availability of space overall. 
 
It is noted that in Grantham many of the schools are well and truly over-
subscribed leading to severe pressure on school places.  It is noted likewise that 
a number of schools remain under-subscribed as a result of parental reference.  
However the overall picture for the Grantham SOP area is one of buoyant pupil 
demand for the next three years, beyond that significant new development will 
have become occupied leading to more pupils needing to be entered into the 
predictions, I believe. 
 
I appreciate your Council’s concern that any s.106 contribution must be 
necessary and reasonable as per guidance within Circular 05/2005.  I hope the 
above will go some way to confirming our concerns that excess demand is 
already being exerted overall in Grantham and will continue for some years to 
come and that the ‘insurance policy’ of holding s.106 contributions to allow 
necessary expansion of secondary school provision were reasonable and 
necessary would be extremely beneficial. 
 

It is clear that the information received that LCC are hoping to ‘bank’ the requested 
educational contribution with the view that the ‘buoyant’ pupil figures over the next 3 
years will result in its utilisation.  Furthermore, they have confirmed that there is no 
specific local school that the funds would go towards as a direct result of the 

 



development proposed.  Reference has clearly been given to the ‘Grantham area’ as 
well as schools in Corby Glen and Welbourn. 
 
On this basis there is clearly no functional or geographical link between the 
development and the contribution being asked for and, in the opinion of the planning 
authority, the request is contrary to the requirements of Circular 05/05 and should not 
be taken into consideration as part of the proposal. 
 
Recommendation 
 
That, contrary to the decision made at the Development Control Committee on 16 May 
2006, the development be permitted without the requirement for an educational 
contribution through a Section 106 Agreement, with the imposition of the conditions 
previously suggested. 
 
 M Shipman 
Acting Development Control Services Manager 
 
 
 
 

RELEVANT CONSIDERATIONS OF THIS REPORT 

  
SIGNIFICANT 

 

 
MINOR 

 
NONE 

STATUTORY POWERS *   

COUNCIL STRATEGIES  *  

COUNCIL POLICIES  *  

T & C PLANNING *   

BEST VALUE *   

 

 



REPORT PLA.601   
 

Development Control Committee 
25 July 2006 
 
 
Report by Planning Officer 
 

 

S05/1691 – Residential Development (43) 
Land South of Spalding Road, Frognall. 
 
 
On 14 February 2006 the Development Control Committee resolved to approve an 
application (Ref S05/1691) for 43 dwellings and ancillary works at the Ampy site to the 
south of Spalding Road, Frognall, Deeping St James subject to the signing of a S106 
Legal Agreement and conditions. 
 
In preparation to complete the S106 Agreement a draft decision notice is printed to be 
engrossed with the document, it was noticed that two conditions were unclear.  These are 
conditions 3 and 12. 
 
Condition 3 reads: 
 

“The existing natural hedge along the eastern, southern and western boundaries of 
the site shall be retained and shall be strengthened by underplanting in accordance 
with a scheme to be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority.  Planting shall be undertaken before occupation of the relevant property.” 

 
Condition 12 reads: 
 

“No development shall be undertaken, including demolition until written confirmation 
has been received by the local planning authority that Clause ** of the Legal 
Agreement has been completed.” 

 
It is proposed that condition 3 is amended to read: 
 

“The existing natural hedge along the eastern boundary to the north of the proposed 
pedestrian and cycle access to the site and the northern boundary subject to 
highway requirements in connection with sight lines shall be retained and shall be 
strengthened by underplanting in accordance with a scheme to be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority.  Planting shall be undertaken 
before occupation of the relevant property.” 

 
The reason for the amendment is that there is no physical boundary to the west and the 
southern boundary is defined by Leylandii that does not need to be strengthened. 
 
Condition 12 is irrelevant because the permission is not issued until the S106 agreement is 
signed. 
 

Agenda Item 6 



Recommendation 
 
That the permission be granted subject to the amended condition 3 and by the deletion of 
condition 12. 
 
 

M Shipman 
Acting Development Control Services Manager 
 
 
 

RELEVANT CONSIDERATIONS OF THIS REPORT 

  
SIGNIFICANT 

 

 
MINOR 

 
NONE 

STATUTORY POWERS *   

COUNCIL STRATEGIES  *  

COUNCIL POLICIES  *  

T & C PLANNING *   

BEST VALUE *   

 

 

 



 
 

AGENDA ITEM 7A 
 
 

 

SF.1 S06/0862/35 Registration Date:  15-Jun-2006 
 

Applicant Mr & Mrs D  Kerr 177a, Belton Lane, Grantham, Lincs 

Agent Riverside Design 88, Belton Grove, Grantham, NG31 9HH 

Proposal Erection of summer house 

Location 177a, Belton Lane, Grantham 

App Type Full Planning Permission 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   That the development be Approved subject to condition(s) 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years 
from the date of this permission.  

 

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is/are: 
 

1. Required to be imposed pursuant to section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
 

*   *   *   *   * 

 

 

Agenda Item 7 



AGENDA ITEM 7B 
 

Development Control Committee 
25 July 2006  
 
 
 

NU.1 S06/0576/54 Registration Date:  19-Apr-2006 
 

Applicant Saxondale Properties Jasmine House, Main Street, Wysall, Nottingham, 
NG12 5QS 

Agent Maber Associates St Marys Hall, 17, Baker Gate, The Lace Market, 
Nottingham, NG1 1JU 

Proposal Erection of three retail units & six flats 

Location Land Adj. Lytham Close, Sunningdale, Grantham 

 

Site Details 
Parish(es) 
 

 
Londonthorpe & Harrowby Without 
Unclassified road 
Radon Area - Protection required 
Section 106/52 applies on site 
H1 Housing - Grantham 
Shopping in villages 
Airfield Zone - No consultation required 
TPO affects site - TPO1 
Drainage - Lincs 

 
REPORT 
 

The Site and its Surroundings 
 
The site is located on the corner of Sunningdale and Lytham Close (to the south and west) 
and is bordered by residential properties to the north and east.  The site is undeveloped, 
currently fenced off and has a slope down towards the north and the terraced row of 
properties of 2 to 10 Lytham Close. 
 
Along the eastern side of the site, but not within the application site, are several trees that 
are protected by a tree preservation order. 
 
The site is allocated in the South Kesteven Local Plan under Policy S7.2, for the provision 
of a local shopping centre to directly serve the residential estate within which it is centrally 
sited. 
 
Site History 
 
Application S05/1371/54 sought consent for the erection of 3 shops and 6 flats on the site.  
This application was withdrawn by the applicant as there were major concerns raised by 
the planning authority concerning the size and design of the building proposed, the impact 
that it would have on the street scene in general and the potential for the overlooking of 
the properties to the north.  The building proposed measured 30m by 13m. 
 
The building proposed at the time had a 3-storey frontage to Sunningdale and was full 4-
storeys high at the rear due to the levels change within the site.  The overall height of the 
building was 13.9m (11.7m from the frontage) and would have had 6 bedroom windows, 5 
large lobby area windows and 4 kitchen/store windows that would have directly faced the 
rear of the dwellings on Lytham Close. 
 
A later application, S05/1677/54, sought consent for a revision to the above application for 
the erection of retail units and 6 self-contained flats.  There remained a concern that, due 
to the height of the building proposed, the site levels and issues of proximity, there would 

 



be an adverse impact on the adjacent properties.  The application was refused at the 
Development Control Committee on 14 February 2006 for the following reason: 
 

The proposed development, by reason of its overall scale, height and the site levels 
across the site would result in a visual impact on the neighbouring properties to the 
north and would lead to issues of overlooking and a loss of privacy to those 
properties that would be detrimental to the residential amenities of their occupiers.  
For these reasons the proposal would be contrary to Policies S6 and EN1 of the 
South Kesteven Local Plan. 
 

The Proposal 
 
Consent is now sought for the erection of a convenience store (232m²) and 2 retail units 
(each 64m²) at ground floor with the provision of 6 flats at first floor.  The development will 
be 2-storey throughout and therefore domestic in overall scale. 
 
The layout of the site has been changed from that previously refused, with the building 
sited on the western half of the site and the car parking located on the eastern half.  This 
addresses the issue of site levels as the building steps down the slope accordingly, 
therefore reducing any impact on the dwellings to the north.  In addition, having the car 
parking close to and under the protected trees (outside of the site) will avoid any potential 
root or branch damage. 
 
Space around the building will allow for good landscaping, separate pedestrian and 
vehicular access points, disabled car parking and cycle parking. 
 
Windows to the first floor flats will face east over the car parking area or west over Lytham 
Close.  Two small, secondary lounge windows will face south onto Sunningdale.  There 
are no proposed windows to be sited in the north facing elevation, which will avoid any 
issues of overlooking and loss of privacy to the dwellings to the north. 
 
An amended layout plan was received on 10 May 2006 to address the initial concerns of 
the Highway Authority relating to car parking numbers, cycle parking and servicing.  The 
Highway Authority has accepted these details. 
 
The applicants have requested that the Use Classes for the proposed development are to 
be A1 (general retail) for the larger convenience store and A5 (take-away) for the smaller 
units.  As the retail units are within a residential area it would be reasonable to condition 
any approval to ensure that the hours of opening of the shops is limited and that deliveries 
could not take place at unsociable hours. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
South Kesteven Local Plan 
 
Policy S7.2 – Ensures that suitable sites are reserved within large residential development 
areas for the provision of a local shopping facility. 
 
Policy S6 – Allows for local shopping areas within the main settlements, to meet the 
everyday needs of the residents, providing they: 
 
i) do not seriously affect the amenities of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby 

properties; 
 
ii) avoid unnecessary conflict between pedestrian and vehicular traffic movements, 

and 
 
iii) where necessary, have satisfactory access and car parking provision. 
 

 



Policy EN1 – Seeks to protect and enhance the environment in ensuring that development 
proposals (inter alia) respect the general character of the area through layout, siting, 
design and materials. 
 
Policy T3 – Seeks to ensure that parking is provided to an appropriate standard to serve 
the land use proposed. 
 
Statutory Consultations 
 
Parish Council:   
 

The members wish to point out several points on this application. 
 
Firstly the latest application is by far the best of the plans seen. 
 
The facility is definitely needed. 
 
We would request no HGVs delivering between the hours of 9pm and 7am. 
 
We would question the ability of HGVs delivering as there appears to be no easy 
access for unloading. 

 
Local Highway Authority:  Requests 4 conditions and a Note to Applicant on any approval. 
 
Community Archaeologist:  No comments made. 
 
Environment Agency:  No comments made. 
 
SKDC Arboriculturalist:  A no dig method of construction should be used for the car 
parking beneath the tree canopies, on the eastern boundary, to protect tree roots. 
 
Representations as a result of publicity 
 
The application has been advertised in accordance with established procedures and 
representations have been received from the following: 
 
1. J T Winfield, 11 Lytham Close. 
2. C Downes, 2 Portrush Drive. 
3. C Parkinson, 6 Lytham Close. 
4. S Ingham, 2 Lytham Close. 
5. P Davies, 3 Lytham Close. 
6. S Tinker, 1 Portrush Drive. 
7. N Short, 93 Sunningdale. 
8. P G Sproxton, 80 Sunningdale. 
9. Mr & Mrs Tucker, 78 Sunningdale. 
10. S Tetley, 10 Lytham Close. 
11. D Hardy, 1 Lytham Close. 
 
The following issues were raised: 
 
a) Improvement on the previous application. 
 
b) Too many buildings, over-development. 
 
c) Fencing would be incongruous and a brick boundary wall would be preferred. 
 
d) Buildings too tall and out of character. 
 
e) Insufficient parking. 

 



 
f) Deliveries should not take place from Lytham Close. 
 
g) Objection to take-away uses, issues of noise and disturbance. 
 
h) Buildings too high for a residential area. 
 
i) Anti-social behaviour issues. 
 
j) Proximity issues and reduction in levels of light. 
 
Planning Panel Comments 
 
13 June 2006 – Due to the planning history of the site the application be considered by the 
Development Control Committee. 
 
Applicants Submissions 
 
The Agents for the application submitted a Design Statement as part of the proposal.  The 
relevant sections of that statement (that are not already covered by this report) are as 
follows: 
 

5. The scheme evolution 
 
5.1 The site is important to the estate in that it will need to provide a full range of 
products if it is to satisfy the requirements for the area. 
 
5.2 The Convenience Store format will be appropriate to the site and the 
opportunity exists to provide a very useful addition to the area. 
 
5.3 The relationship between the units and the car parking will tend to determine 
the attractiveness of this scheme and careful consideration of surfacing will be 
required. 
 
5.4 The intention is to expose the mature trees on the eastern boundary with the 
car parking below, in a forecourt layout to the retail store, with additional 
landscaping to the area. 
 
5.5 The buildings will sit alongside a paved court, with ramped pedestrian access 
from the Sunningdale road approach, to give a friendly access area. 
 
5.6 Servicing to the retail units is available from the courtyard where large 
vehicles will be able to turn easily. 
 
5.7 Car parking is provided to the level of 15 spaces for the retail development.  
Whilst this is slightly below the recommended standards the site is located in the 
centre of a housing estate where a large volume of visits will be by foot and cycle. 
 
5.8 The level changes from Sunningdale road to the back of the site have been 
carefully considered to create suitable ramping and level approaches for the store.  
The section through the site reveals the relationship between the new buildings and 
the adjoining houses and gardens. 
 
5.9 The scheme has carefully considered the height of the buildings adjoining 
this boundary and there is an opportunity to reduce the storey height of the retail 
unit, by pitching the roof down to the boundary, to minimise the impact at this 
position. 
 

 



5.10 This will therefore present a lower profile to the boundary throughout the 
length of the Lytham Close gardens. 
 
5.11 The appearance of the scheme is sympathetic to the residential character of 
the area, whilst incorporating materials that will lift the quality of the scheme above 
the standard housing characteristics. 
 
6. Planning Policies relevant to the development 
 
6.1 The site is allocated for Retail Development, in accordance with the South 
Kesteven Local Plan Policy S7.2, which is consistent with this proposal. 
 
6.2 The Policy S6 allows for shopping areas within main settlements providing it: 
 
 Does not affect the amenity of the nearby properties; 
 Avoids conflict of pedestrian and vehicle movements; 
 Has satisfactory access and car parking provision. 
 
All of these criteria have been met. 
 
6.3 The policy EN1 is satisfied if proposals reflect the general character of the 
area, via siting, layout, design and materials.  The design of the scheme is 
formulated to follow this requirement. 
 
6.4 Policy T3 requires adequate parking to be provided. 
 
7. Conclusions 
 
7.1 the development proposed by this Planning application is a retail scheme on 
a site designated for such use in the Structure Plan. 
 
7.2 The site has been evaluated to determine the constraints and opportunities 
that this type of scheme requires and has been found to be suitable for the scale of 
development proposed. 
 
7.3 The characteristics of the scheme that may affect adjoining owners has been 
carefully laid out to minimise the impact on the existing housing. 
 
7.4 The vehicle and pedestrian approaches to the site are safe and appropriate 
for this scale of retail provision. 
 
7.5 This scheme is probably the best development plan that can be achieved on 
this site and the proposals will provide a sustainable and extremely useful amenity 
to the whole estate. 
 

Conclusions 
 
The provision of a small retail development is required within this area and is encouraged 
by Policy S7.2 of the South Kesteven Local Plan.  The site is ideally located centrally 
within the residential estate and will have a good catchment area.  Previous proposals 
were withdrawn and refused s there were concerns relating to size, scale and overlooking. 
 
The current proposal will have a minimal impact on the dwellings on Sunningdale.  There 
will be some impact on the dwellings fronting Lytham Close due to the height of the 
building and its positioning but, on balance and by reason of the distance that the building 
will be sited from the common boundary, the proposal will be acceptable. 
 
 

Summary of Reason(s) for Approval 

 



 
The proposal is in accordance with national and local policies as set out in Planning Policy 
Guidance Note 6 and Policies S7.2, S6, T3 and EN1 of the South Kesteven Local Plan.  
The issues relating to height, design, access/parking, over-development, opening/delivery 
times, usage, overlooking, damage to trees and anti-social behaviour are material 
considerations but, subject to the conditions attached to this permission, are not sufficient 
in this case to indicate against the proposal and to outweigh the policies referred to above. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   That subject to no adverse comments from the Arboriculturalist, 
the development be Approved subject to condition(s) 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three 
years from the date of this permission. 

2. Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, final details of the 
materials to be used in the construction of external walls and roofs shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the District Planning Authority. Only such 
materials as may be agreed shall be used in the development. 

3. The arrangements shown on the approved plan 1276-10A dated 10 May 2006 for 
the parking/turning/loading/unloading of vehicles shall be available at all times when 
the premises are in use. 

4. In conjunction with the development hereby permtted delivery and access shall be 
from Sunningdale only and the Lytham Close access points shall be used for bin 
stores only. 

5. No development shall take place before the detailed design of the arrangements for 
surface water drainage has been agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
and no building shall be occupied before it is connected to the agreed drainage 
system. 

6. This consent relates to the application as amended by letter and details received on 
10 May 2006 unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority. 

7. The finished floor levels for the buildings hereby permitted shall be as per the 
sectional level detail shown on drawing No. 1276-11, and shall not be varied without 
the written consent of the planning authority. 

8. The premises shall not be used for retail purposes outside the hours of 2200 and 
0730 Monday to Saturday and 2100 and 0830 on Sundays or public holidays 
without the prior written consent of the local planning authority. 

9. There shall be no deliveries to or from the premises otuside the hours of 2000 and 
0700 on any day of the week without the prior written consent of the local planning 
authority. 

10. No development shall take place until there has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority a plan indicating the positions, design, 
materials and type of boundary treatment to be erected. The boundary treatment 
shall be completed before the building(s) are occupied, or in accordance with a 
timetable agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be 
carried out in accordance with approved details. 

11. Before any development is commenced the approval of the District Planning 
Authority is required to a scheme of landscaping and tree planting for the site 
(indicating inter alia, the number, species, heights on planting and positions of all 
the trees). Such scheme as may be approved by the District Planning Authority 
shall be undertaken in the first planting season following the occupation of the 
buildings or the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner, and any 
trees or plants which within a period of five years from the completion of the 
development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be 
replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species, unless 
the District Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation.  

 



 

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is/are: 
 

1. Required to be imposed pursuant to section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990. 

2. These details have not been submitted and the District Planning Authority wish to 
ensure that the colour and type of materials to be used harmonise with the 
surrounding development in the interests of visual amenity and in accordance with 
Policy EN1 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

3. To enable calling vehicles to wait clear of the carriageway of Sunningdale in the 
interests of safety, and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the South Kesteven Local 
Plan. 

4. To ensure safe access to the site and each dwelling/building in the interests of 
residential amenity, convenience and safety, and in accordance with Policy EN1 of 
the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

5. To ensure that surface water run-off from the development will not adversely affect, 
by reason of flooding, the safety amenity and commerce of the residents of this site, 
and in accordance with Policy T3 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

6. For the avoidance of doubt. 

7. The building is close to existing residential properties where any increase in the 
height of the building above that approved may give rise to an adverse impact on 
those dwellings, contrary to Policies S6 and EN1 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 
 

8. The site is close to residential properties, the occupiers of which would be adversely 
affected by the operation of the use outside these hours and in accordance with 
Policy EN1 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

9. The site is close to residential properties, the occupiers of which would be adversely 
affected by the operation of the use outside these hours and in accordance with 
Policy EN1 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

10. In the interests of amenity and to ensure a satisfactory development and in 
accordance with Policy EN1 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

11. Landscaping and tree planting contributes to the appearance of a development and 
assists in its assimilation with its surroundings. A scheme is required to enable the 
visual impact of the development to be assessed and to create and maintain a 
pleasant environment and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the South Kesteven 
Local Plan. 

 
Note(s) to Applicant 

1. Prior to the commencement of any of the access works within the public highway, 
please contact the Divisional Highways Manager (Lincolnshire County Council) on 
01522 782070 for appropriate specification and construction information. 

2. You are advised that the application site falls within an area which requires 
protection from Radon. You are advised to contact the District Council's Building 
Control Services to ascertain the level of protection required, and whether 
geological assessment is necessary. 

 
Under the provisions of the Council’s Constitution this application was deferred 
from the Development Control Committee on 4 July 2006 following a resolution to 
refuse planning permission contrary to the stated recommendation of the Planning 
Officer. 
 
A recorded vote was taken at the meeting on 4 July 2006 and 11 Members voted in favour 
of the refusal of the application.  In accordance with the Council’s Constitution these 

 



Members were asked to provide their suggested reasons for the refusal of the application.  
Comments received in the allotted time period are as follows: 
 
Cllr G Chivers 
 

I intend to vote to refuse this application on the following grounds: 
 
1. The structure is overbearing and out of keeping with the area. 
 
2. The use of the flats above the premises will take up most of the parking 
spaces provided to the detriment of customers to the retail section. 
 
3. Overdevelopment of the site with too many retail outlets on such a small site. 
 

Cllr I Stokes 
 

The proposed development by reason of its overall scale, height and site levels 
across the site would result in a visual impact on the neighbouring properties and 
would lead to issues of overlooking and a loss of privacy to those properties that 
would be detrimental to the residential amenities of their occupiers. 

 
Planning Officer’s Comments 
 
The previous report clearly stated why, in this instance, the proposed development was 
considered to be acceptable. 
 
The Highway Authority have assessed the proposal and, as referred to in the original 
report, are satisfied with the proposal subject to the imposition of 4 conditions.  A reason 
for refusal based on traffic/parking issues cannot, therefore, be sustained. 
 
The issue of impact will be addressed later in this report.  The possible overbearing impact 
of the development is not considered to be an issue due to the degree of separation 
between the proposed buildings and the adjacent dwellings.  The building proposed is 
domestic in scale and is not considered to be out-of-keeping with the surroundings. 
 
Members are aware that there were 2 applications at the last Committee for consideration.  
Each of these applications has to be considered on its own merits and, in the opinion of 
the Planning Officer, both of the proposals were considered acceptable for this site.  If both 
permissions were granted it would not be possible to implement both permissions on the 
land due site constraints, the position of the building and the positioning of the associated 
car parking areas.  It would be up to the developers to decide which development was to 
be implemented if both consents were granted.  Members must therefore dispel any 
concern that they can only issue a single permission on the site. 
 
It is believed that the issues of concern to Members was the proximity of the building in 
relation to the residential dwellings to the north and the potential for overlooking and a loss 
of privacy. 
 
The nearest part of the building to the properties to the north only extends across the rear 
boundary of one garden (some 12.6m from the dwelling itself) and around 1.2m in length 
of the adjacent of the garden.  In approving the other application for this site Members 
have allowed for a building (albeit single storey) the same distance from the dwellings to 
the north but running the entire length of all the rear gardens to those properties.  The 
proximity of the proposed building to the dwellings to the north is not sustainable as a 
reason for refusal of this application. 
     
The original report has already mentioned that there are no windows to be positioned in 
the north facing elevation, which eliminates any downward overlooking of the dwellings to 
the north.  There are windows to be positioned in the east and west facing elevations, 

 



which will offer only a very oblique view of the rear garden areas.  Notwithstanding this, the 
nearest first floor windows will be bedrooms with the nearest habitable rooms 
(lounge/kitchen areas) being set at least 7m into the site.  There is no issue of overlooking 
or loss of privacy with this application. 
 
 

*   *   *   *   *   * 
 

 



 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Page No. NU11 (application ref. S06/0770/35) appears after page no. SR12 
in this agenda. 

 



 

 

NR.1 S06/0622/55 Registration Date:  28-Apr-2006 
 

Applicant Ablehomes Ltd 4, Castle Gate, Newark, Notts, NG24 1AX 

Agent  

Proposal Erection of four dwellings & garage and replacement garage to 
Farbrooke 

Location Farbrooke, 17, Main Road, Long Bennington 

 

Site Details 
Parish(es) 
 

 
Long Bennington 
Unclassified road 
Area of special control for adverts 
Drainage - Lincs 

 
REPORT 

 

The Site and its Surroundings 
 
The site is located on the west side of Main Street and wraps around the existing property 
of Farbrooke (No. 17), which fronts Main Street.  To the north of the site are properties 
fronting Vicarage Lane.  Immediately south of the site is a new property of 15 Main Road 
and to the west of the site is a parcel of overgrown land, on which planning permission has 
been refused for development. 
 
The site is a level parcel of land that is currently used as domestic garden to Farbrooke.  A 
single, large tree that is central to the site, along with some smaller specimens, would be 
removed to make way for the proposed development. 
 
The adjacent site will be referred to in the ‘Site History’ section of this report and Members 
will recall that the refused applications that relate to that site are currently the subject of an 
appeal, which are to be heard at a Public Inquiry in August. 
 
Site History 
 
Outline planning permission was granted for the erection of a single dwelling on the site on 
11 August 2005, under application S05/0860/55.  This outline approval was for a slightly 
smaller site than that now proposed, as the land to the frontage of 15 Main Road was not 
included in the overall site. 
 
Planning permission exists for the erection of 2 bungalows on the land to the west of the 
application site under application SK.55/1288/84.  Approval was gained for these 
properties and the development was commenced by the construction of groundworks and 
drainage.  More recently approval was given on 28 November 2005 for the erection of 3 
bungalows on the same site. 
 
There are 3 planning applications currently at appeal for this site.  All of these applications 
(S05/354/55, S05/922/55 and S05/932/55) were for 5 properties (bungalows, 2-storey and 
2.5-storey properties) where the planning authority considered that the increase in dwelling 
numbers on the site would create an overdevelopment that would adversely impact on the 
neighbouring properties.  A Public Inquiry is being held in August to consider the current 
appeals on these applications. 
 
The Proposal 
 
Consent is sought for the retention of Farbrooke and the erection of 4 new dwellings within 
its garden area.  Access into the site would be gained via a private drive directly off Main 
Road.  Part of the existing frontage garden to 15 Main Road is included within the site area 
to allow for a frontage dwelling to Main Road. 

 



 
Two garage blocks would be provided to serve plots 1, 2, 4 and Farbrooke itself, with plot 
4 having an integral garage.  The proposed dwellings are all 2-storey and are spaced 
around a central courtyard/turning area.  The dwellings have been designed in order to 
avoid any overlooking where possible and to provide suitable garden areas. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
National Guidance 
 
PPG3 – Housing.  The development would be in accordance with this national planning 
guidance, as it would form a brownfield development within a Local Service Centre. 
 
Lincolnshire Structure Plan 
 
Policy H2 – Seeks the provision of a percentage of new housing on previously developed 
land. 
 
South Kesteven Local Plan 
 
Policy H6 – Allows for development that (inter alia) has no resultant impact on the form, 
character and appearance of the settlement. 
 
Policy EN1 – Allows for development that (inter alia) reflects the general character of the 
area through layout, siting, design and materials. 
 
Interim Housing Policy – Identifies Long Bennington Village as a ‘Local Service Centre’ 
where new residential proposals are only permitted where they are proposed on  a 
previously developed (brownfield) site. 
 
Statutory Consultations 
 
Parish Council: 
 

1. The proposed development is by its position ‘backland’ development. 
 
2. Access to the development. 
 
 The access and egress to this site from Main Road is narrow and long and 

will no doubt be a source of noise pollution to the existing adjacent 
properties. 

 
3. Sewerage and Drainage. 
 
 It is fairly common knowledge that the sewerage system in Long Bennington 

and particularly in the area of this development is inadequate. 
 
 The disposal of surface water from this site is proposed to be by soakaways.  

The land in Long Bennington is heavy clay and soakaways will be 
spectacularly unsuccessful serving only to exacerbate the current serious 
problems of flooding at times of heavy rain to areas surrounding this 
proposed development. 

 
4. Development of this backland will result in loss of privacy to frontage plots at 

least two sides. 
 
5. If this development is approved it will set a precedent for development of 

adjacent backland which would seriously affect the general environment, 
privacy and amenity in the immediate locality. 

 



 
There is a history associated with this site which the Council understands has been 
covered in some detail by Mr J Bishop resident at 13 main Road, which the council 
will not repeat here but support fully Mr Bishops representations. 
 

Local Highway Authority:  Requests 4 conditions and 2 Notes to Applicant on any 
approval. 
 
Community Archaeologist:  No objections. 
 
Environment Agency:  No comments made. 
 
Asset & Facilities Management:  All surface water drainage must be independent of the 
existing systems, which are at capacity and prone to flooding. 
 
Representations as a result of publicity 
 
The application has been advertised in accordance with established procedures and 
representations have been received from the following: 
 
1. J W Bishop, 13 Main Road, Long Bennington. 
2. S & C Murphy, 3 Vicarage Lane, Long Bennington. 
 
The following issues have been raised: 
 
a) Repositioned driveway to 15 Main Road will create issues of noise and disturbance. 
 
b) Additional entrance points will impact on highway safety. 
 
c) Previous appeal for rear and frontage dwellings to 15 Main Road was dismissed 

and there has been no change in circumstances since. 
 
d) Over-intensive use of the site. 
 
e) Will create a cramped environment contrary to Policies H6 and EN1. 
 
f) Overlooking of adjacent properties. 
 
g) Issues of drainage. 
 
h) Loss of mature trees. 
 
i) Adequate areas of developable land are identified in the Local Plan. 
 
j) Will set a precedent for similar development. 
 
k) Loss of village character. 
 
l) Loss of views and light. 
 
m) Development to be sited over gas and water supply pipes. 
 
Planning Panel Comments 
 
13 June 2006 – The application be deferred for a site inspection and referred to the 
Development Control Committee. 
 
Applicants Submissions 
 

 



“We believe the proposals to be in conformity with current policies in that the 
scheme, if permitted, would make best possible use of existing brownfield land 
within the established settlement boundary of a sustainable village. 
 
The principle of development on this site has already been established in that there 
is an existing planning consent for a dwelling in the Western section of the 
application site. 
 
The scheme has been carefully thought through and the following points are, I 
believe, relevant: 
 
1. House types have been limited to 2-storeys only thereby avoiding 

inappropriate overlooking and overshadowing of adjacent premises. 
 
2. The properties have been designed so that architecturally they sit well with 

the existing dwelling at Farbrooke. 
 
3. The proposed dwelling on plot 1 is visually compatible with the adjacent No. 

13 Main Road. 
 
4. A variety of house types and of materials will produce a scheme which is 

interesting and appropriate for this location.” 
 
 
 
 

Conclusions 
 
Long Bennington is classed as Local Service Centre where new residential development 
can be sustained if planning proposals seek to develop on brownfield sites.  This land is 
classed as previously developed and does not extend the built form of the village out into 
the open countryside.  The site can be developed with properties of similar height to those 
surrounding and to a design that would avoid any potential overlooking or loss of privacy.  
The proposal conforms to national planning guidance and the current development plan 
and, subject to the imposition of relevant conditions, forms an acceptable development. 
 
 

Summary of Reason(s) for Approval 
 
The proposal has been considered against national and local policies as set out in 
Planning Policy Guidance Note 3, Policy H2 of the Lincolnshire Structure Plan, Policies H6 
and EN1 of the South Kesteven Local Plan and adopted supplementary planning guidance 
contained in the Interim Housing Policy.  The issues relating to flooding, loss of 
landscaping, highway safety, overlooking, noise and disturbance, village character, visual 
intrusion, precedent and over-development are material considerations but, subject to the 
conditions attached to this permission, are not sufficient in this case to indicate against the 
proposal and to outweigh the policies referred to above. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   That the development be Approved subject to condition(s) 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three 
years from the date of this permission. 

2. Samples of the materials to be used for all external walls and roofs shall be 
submitted to the District Planning Authority before any development to which this 
permission relates is commenced and only such materials as may be approved in 
writing by the authority shall be used in the development. 

3. No development shall take place until there has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the District Planning Authority a plan showing the exact location, species 

 



and spread of all trees and hedges on the site and those proposed to be felled or 
uprooted during building operations together with measures for their protection in 
the course of development. 

4. The screen walls shown on the submitted plan shall be erected at the same time as 
the associated dwellings. 

5. Before any development is commenced, details including location and means of 
disposal of surface water and foul drainage shall be submitted to and approved by 
the District Planning Authority, and no building shall be occupied until the drainage 
works have been provided. 

6. The arrangements shown on the approved plan 1/2/2006 dated 28 April 2006 for 
the parking/turning/loading/unloading of vehicles shall be available at all times when 
the premises are in use. 

7. Prior to any of the buildings being occupied, the private drive shall be completed in 
accordance with the details shown on drawing number 1/2/2006 dated 28 April 
2006.  (Please note that this road is a private road and will not be adopted as a 
highway maintainable at the public expense (under the Highways Act 1980) and as 
such the liability for maintenance rests with the frontagers.) 

8. No development shall take place before the detailed design of the arrangements for 
surface water drainage has been agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
and no building shall be occupied before it is connected to the agreed drainage 
system. 

9. The minimum width of the access shall be 4.1 metres. 

 

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is/are: 
 

1. Required to be imposed pursuant to section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990. 

2. These details have not been submitted and the District Planning Authority wish to 
ensure that the colour and type of materials to be used harmonise with the 
surrounding development in the interests of visual amenity and in accordance with 
Policy EN1 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

3. These features make an important contribution to the appearance of the area. Their 
retention will maintain the appearance of the area and help assimilate the 
development with its surroundings and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the South 
Kesteven Local Plan. 

4. To provide a satisfactory appearance to this residential estate by screening rear 
gardens from public view and in the interests of the privacy and amenity of the 
occupants of the proposed dwellings and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the 
South Kesteven Local Plan. 

5. The application was submitted in outline and no such details have been submitted 
and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

6. To allow vehicles to enter and leave the highway in a forward gear in the interests 
of highway safety, and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the South Kesteven Local 
Plan. 

7. In the interests of safety of the users of the public highway and the safety of the 
users of the site, and in accordance with Policy H6 of the South Kesteven Local 
Plan. 

8. To ensure that surface water run-off from the development will not adversely affect, 
by reason of flooding, the safety amenity and commerce of the residents of this site, 
and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

 



9. In the interests of safety of the users of the public highway and the safety of the 
users of the site, and in accordance with Policy H6 of the South Kesteven Local 
Plan. 

 
Note(s) to Applicant 

1. Prior to the commencement of any of the access works within the public highway, 
please contact the Divisional Highways Manager (Lincolnshire County Council) on 
01522 782070 for appropriate specification and construction information. 

2. This road is a private drive and will not be adopted as Highway Maintainable at the 
public expense (under the Highways Act 1980) and, as such, remains the 
responsibility of the individual property owner. 

 
Under the provisions of the Council’s Constitution this application was deferred 
from the Development Control Committee on 4 July 2006 following a resolution to 
refuse planning permission contrary to the stated recommendation of the Planning 
Officer. 
 
A recorded vote was taken at the meeting on 4 July 2006 and all 14 Members voted in 
favour of the refusal of the application.  In accordance with the Council’s Constitution these 
Members were asked to provide their suggested reasons for the refusal of the application.  
At the time of the closing date for comments no suggested reasons for refusal were 
forthcoming from any Members.  However, the following suggested reason for refusal was 
discussed by members at the meeting and was agreed to be considered: 
 

1. It is considered that the density of the development on the site should be 
commensurate with the wider pattern of the settlement.  Long Bennington is 
predominantly characterised by dwellings set in large plots.  The density of this 
development is greater than that of the surrounding area and, as such, creates a 
discordant element within the centre of the village contrary to PPG3. 

 
2. It is also considered that the proposed development creates an adverse 
impact on the amenities of the properties on Vicarage Lane from overlooking and a 
loss of privacy, contrary to Policies EN1 and H6 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

 
Planning Officer’s Comments 
 
The previous report clearly stated why, in this instance, the proposed development was 
considered to be acceptable.  The site is brownfield in character and has already had the 
principle of development (albeit a single dwelling) accepted. 
 
PPG3 suggests that, where suitable sites for development exist they should be developed 
to a density of between 30 and 50 dwellings per hectare.  The lower figure is deemed to be 
appropriate for village development with the upper figure seen as a target for urban 
development. 
 
The site area is fractionally over 0.2ha.  A site of this size, within a village location, should 
yield a development of 6 dwellings in order to be in accordance with the requirements of 
PPG3.  It is clear from this that the site has a density below that currently sought by 
national planning guidance and cannot be considered to be an overdevelopment of the 
site.   
 
Plot 4 has a single bedroom window facing the Vicarage Lane properties to the north and 
would be 24m from the nearest part of the nearest dwelling.  Plot 3 has 3 bedroom 
windows facing the dwellings to the north and would be at least 27m away from the 
nearest dwelling.  Due to the distances involved and the fact that none of the first floor 
windows serve habitable rooms, there is not considered to be an issue of overlooking and 
loss of privacy between the development and the adjacent properties to the north. 

 



 
 
 

NR.2 S06/0713/55 Registration Date:  16-May-2006 
 

Applicant Dr   Lawrenson & Dr Pullinger 15, Winters Lane, Long Bennington, 
Newark, NG235DW 

Agent Mr Drage, Beemac Construction Ltd The Old Stables, Norwell Road, 
Caunton, Newark, Notts, NG23 6AQ 

Proposal Demolition of existing house & surgery and erection of two storey 
starter flats (18).. 

Location 15 - 17, Winters Lane, Long Bennington 

 

Site Details 
Parish(es) 
 

 
Long Bennington 
Unclassified road 
Demolition of any building - BR1 
Area of special control for adverts 
Drainage - Lincs 

 
REPORT 

 

The Site and its Surroundings 
 
The application site consists of the current surgery site and the adjacent property17, 
Winters Lane. The existing surgery and adjacent property would be demolished to facilitate 
the development. The site is accessed off Winters Lane which is a cul-de-sac which 
currently serves a number of residential properties and a Day Nursery. 
 
The site is roughly square in shape, with a frontage onto Winters Lane with approximately 
45 metres. The site has a depth of approximately 38 metres. 
 

Site History 
 
SK.96/0170/55/8 – Planning permission was granted for an extension to the Doctors 
surgery on 21 February 1996. 
 
S05/1603 – Planning Permission was granted for the erection of a temporary portacabin 
for use by community nursing team on 12 January 2005. 
 
Planning permission was granted for a replacement surgery on Valley Lane in Long 
Bennington. (Planning Ref: S05/0820) on 9 August 2005. 
 

The Proposal 
 
The proposed development would require the demolition of the existing surgery and 
adjacent dwelling (17, Winters Lane) to facilitate the construction of 18, two storey starter 
flats. 
 
The flats would take the form of an ‘L’ shaped block fronting onto Winters Lane with car 
parking behind. The parking would be accessed via a vehicle opening through the 
southern elevation of the proposed building.  
 
The two storey building would have an overall ridge height of 8.8 metres with windows 
located in the front and rear elevations. 
 

Policy Considerations 
 
Planning Policy Guidance Note PPG3 – Residential Development 
 

 



Draft PPS3 - Housing 
 
Lincolnshire Structure Plan  
 
Policy S4 – Rural Communities 
 
Policy H2 – Housing on Previously Developed Land – the policy indicates that the District 
Councils should work to achieve a Lincolnshire target of ‘at least 40%’ of additional 
dwellings on previously developed land.  
 
South Kesteven Local Plan  
 
Policy EN1 – Protection and Enhancement of the Environment – seeks to protect and 
enhance the environment in ensuring that development proposals respect the general 
character of the area through layout, siting, design and materials. 
 
Policy H6 – Residential Development – Allows for development that has no resultant 
impact on the form, character and appearance of the settlement. 
 
Policy T3 – Seeks to ensure that parking is provided to an appropriate standard to serve 
the proposed use. 
  
Interim Housing Policy – Identifies Long Bennington village as a ‘Local Service Centre’ 
where new residential proposals are only permitted where they are proposed on a 
previously developed ‘brownfield’ site.  
 

Representations as a result of publicity 
 
The application has been advertised in accordance with the statutory procedures. 
Representations have been received from the following: 
 
1. Mr and Mrs Eggleston, 4, Alexandra Close, Long Bennington 
2. Mr Gooden, 1, Orchard Park 
3. Mr Longden, 2, Orchard Park 
4. Mr and Mrs Reed, 11 winters Lane 
5. Mr and Mrs Angus, 13 Winters Lane 
6. Mr and Mrs Cooper, 6, Winters Lane 
7. Mr and Mrs Cabourne, 3, Alexandra Close 
8. Mr Brooks and Mrs Rooms, 12 Winters Lane 
9. Mr Bailey and Mrs Wedesch, 1, Winters Lane 
10. Mr and Mrs Louth, 27 Winters Lane 
11. Mrs Potts, Kings Farm Day Nursery, Winters Lane 
12. Mrs Ara, 31 Winters Lane 
13. Miho Ara, 31 Winters Lane 
14. Mrs Burrows, 21 Winters Lane 
15. Mr Hockings and Miss Potts, 17A Winters Lane 
16. Mr Donger, 7, Winters Lane 
17. Mr Gledhill, 4, Winters Lane 
18. Mr Renshaw, Amelia Cottage, 3, Winters Lane 
19. Mr Weightman, 2 Winters Lane 
20. Mr and Mrs Kimber, 4, Orchard Park 
21. Mr Hogg, 35, Winters Lane 
 
A summary of the main issues raised are listed below: 
 
a) The development is too large for the site. 
b) Houses would be a more appropriate alternative to flats. 
c) Infrastructure would be unable to cope. 
d) Poor land drainage at the site. 

 



e) Loss of privacy for adjacent/neighbouring occupiers. 
f) Loss of light. 
g) Highway safety. 

h) Noise and disturbance and pollution from vehicle movements to and from the 
site day and night. 

i) The proposal is contrary to the Parish Plan. 
j) Visual impact. 
k) Sewerage system unable to cope. 
l) Inadequate parking would be provided. 
m) Health and Safety. Access for emergency vehicles. 
n) Fear of Crime. 
o) No justification for high density development. 
p) Development is best suited to urban areas. 
q) Parking problems on Winters Lane at present. 
r) Such a compact development would result in antisocial behaviour. 
s) Occupiers will be dependent upon the transport/vehicle due to the out of town 

location. 
t) Proposed bollards will result in parking elsewhere along Winters Lane. 

u) The provision of bus stops would remove the ability of residents to ‘hail’ as 
bus from anywhere on Main Street as is currently the case. 

v) Long Bennington School is at capacity. 
w) The area is susceptible to flooding. 
x) The cost of the units is likely to be outside the range of first time buyers. 
y) Substation would result in noise and disturbance. 
z) Bin area would result in smells and health and safety issues. 
aa) The design of the development is not in keeping with the rest of the properties in the 

area. 
bb) Would result in a dominant and oppressive environment. 
cc) No provision for garden, play areas or drying areas. 
dd) Loss of established trees and hedge rows. 
ee) Unsociable occupiers likely to result in an increase in crime. 
ff) Inappropriate development adjacent to a childrens day nursery. 
gg) The adjacent childrens play area would be overlooked.  
 
 

Statutory Consultations 
 
Parish Council:  A summary of the parish council comments are listed below: 
 

1. Whilst the Parish Plan calls for affordable housing to enable younger people to stay 
in the village, the type of accommodation in this proposal does not meet this 
criterion. The building of high density, private and rented accommodation for young 
people in the form flats is not appropriate for a village location. 

2. There will be no gardens for children of families to play. 
3. The on road parking problems experienced at present with the Doctors’ Surgery will 

be worsened by this development which has one parking bay per flat. 
4. The intention to install bollards opposite the development will result in long term 

excess parking outside many of the existing properties on Winters Lane. 
5. The site in question is an ideal location for the provision of retirement homes and 

sheltered accommodation. 
6. The Council strongly urges the refusal of this type of development 

 
Leisure and Cultural Services – Amenities Manager: 
 

Considering the number of flats and the nature of the development I would suggest 
that it will not be necessary for the provision of Public Open Space or play 
equipment. If however the developers decide to provide such facilities and require 
South Kesteven Local Plan to adopt then the adoption detailed in the enclosed 
document will apply. 

 



 
Lincolnshire Police: 
  

In the interests of crime reduction and community safety the following points should 
be given due regard: 

 
1. Boundary Treatment – the perimeter of the site should be secured with a robust 

fence or wall. 
2. Lighting- prior to the development being brought into use the parking area together 

with the access point shall be provided with details of lighting to be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority. 

3. Landscaping – landscaping should be kept to a minimum growth height of 1 metre. 
Trees should be pruned to a minimum height of 2 metres. 

4. Access control – where a common entrance door serves four or more flats it is 
recommended that an access control system should be installed. 

 
Asses and Facilities Management: 
 

Existing surface water drainage systems are at capacity. All new drainage must be 
independent (soakaways). 

 
South Kesteven District Council Archaeology:  The proposed development does not affect 
any known archaeological sites. 
 
Local Highway Authority:  Requests that any permission given by the local planning 
authority shall include the conditions below: 
 

1. Prior to the occupation of any of the units a scheme of bollards along the frontage of 
the site. and formalised bus stop arrangements shall be provided on the north and 
south bound side of Main Street (close to the junction with Winters Lane). 

2. Existing access is stopped up. 
3. Parking and turning etc. in accordance with the submitted plan. 
4. Details of surface water drainage to be submitted.  

 
Housing Solutions 
 

With regard to the affordable housing I can confirm the following requirements: 
 

1. 31 % affordable housing on site. 
2. Not less than 60% of the affordable housing units to be rented at no more than the 

Housing Corporations maximum levels. 
3. The affordable housing units to the transferred to one of the District Council’s 

preferred RSL (Registered Social Landlord. 
4. The RSL to enter into a nomination agreement for all the affordable housing units. 
 
The above are standard to all developments. However, I understand that the owner of 
the site wishes to rent out the affordable housing units. Therefore the above applies but 
the owner will need to enter into a nomination agreement with the district council and 
agree to the district council’s allocation policy taking into account the needs of local 
people in the first instance. 
 
The above applies to both rented and shared ownership housing units. 
 

Planning Panel Comments 
 
27 June 2006 – Site visit and then determined by committee. 
 

Applicants Submissions 
 

 



A summary of the main points contained in the supporting statement are listed below: 
 
1. The application site falls within the built up area of Long Bennington and as such 

satisfies the criteria of policy H6 of the adopted South Kesteven Local Plan. 
2. Completed developments are comprehensively managed in-house, utilising modern 

technology. CCTV monitored security is operated from the Applicant’s offices. 
3. The applicant is willing to secure the affordable housing provision by means of a 

section 106 Agreement. 
4. The applicant has accepted that the highway works requested by the local highway 

authority can be accomplished by the imposition of a ‘grampian condition’. 
5. In addition to the car parking provision it has been possible to incorporate hard and 

soft landscaping both around the perimeter of the site and between the proposed 
buildings and the car park. 

6. Given the village location particular emphasis has been placed on landscaping and 
a scheme has been designed which not only replace existing components and trees 
that will be removed but will also enhance the environment around the new building. 

7. The scheme has been designed to take account of the Lincolnshire Design Guide 
for Residential Areas. The two storey development and utilisation of traditional 
building materials, i.e. brick/tile combination will relate well to neighbouring houses 
and incorporates the character and features of the local design and architecture of 
the village. 

8. The scheme provides for 18 units on previously developed land. In terms of density 
and represents an efficient reuse of the site whilst remaining sympathetic to the 
character of the village. The scheme will also assist in meeting the target of 35%of 
new development on brownfield land set by Structure Plan Policy H2. 

9. The development is of a type encouraged by PPG3. 
10. Long Bennington is a ‘Local Service Centre’ (as defined in the Council’s Interim 

Housing Policy Statement). It benefits from a range of facilities both within the 
village and accessible to public transport. 

11. In terms of the Lincolnshire Structure Plan policy S4, Long Bennington is a village 
where existing services and facilities can be supported by further development and 
as such is a settlement within which development can be permitted. 

12. The application scheme therefore represents a good layout and design in a 
sustainable location. It makes efficient use of the land both in terms of density and 
by its reuse of previously developed land. It would provide much needed low cost 
housing as well as an element of affordable rented housing in a settlement which is 
recognised by the housing officers as a ‘hot spot’ in terms of housing need. 

   
Comments 
 
No objections have been received from the highway authority subject to appropriate 
conditions (including the provision of bollards to prevent on street parking along Winters 
Lane and the provision of bus stops on Main Street) 
 
The affordable housing element on the site would be secured by a section 106 legal 
agreement. 
 
The Amenities Manager has not requested the provision of any public open space or play 
equipment due to the number of flats and the nature of the development. 
 
The Assets and Facilities Manager has identified that the existing surface water drainage 
systems are at capacity. All new drainage must be independent (soakaways). 
 
The Long Bennington Parish Plan currently has no statutory status. It is intended part of 
the Parish Plan (The Village Design Statement) be endorsed as a Position Statement by 
South Kesteven District Council and included in the new Local Development Plan as a 
Supplementary Planning Document. The current Local Plan will be superseded a Local 
Plan Document that is currently in preparation (at ‘Housing and Economic Development 

 



PDP – Preferred Options’ stage) and should be formalised in early 2007. As such the 
current local plan remains in force to date.  
 
Public concern and residents fears of crime and antisocial behaviour from the future 
occupiers of the units are material planning considerations. However, they should be 
justified. Public opposition to a development per se is not a material planning consideration 
even though it may be a powerful background consideration in a democratically based 
planning system. 
 

Conclusions 
 
The ‘L’ shaped design of the proposed development would result in the built form being 
located at the frontage of the site (southern and eastern boundaries facing Winters Lane). 
This ensures that there is reasonable separation between the existing properties and the 
proposal. The closest property to the east of the application site, 21 Winters Lane is 
approximately 10 metres from the site boundary. The nearest property to the east, 13 
Winters Lane is a similar distance away from the boundary of the application site. It is 
considered that this distance should be adequate to ensure there is no significant 
overshadowing or loss of light experienced by the occupiers of the adjacent properties or 
their associated garden areas that would justify refusal of planning permission on these 
grounds. 
 
The proposed layout would result in the car park being located next to the residential 
property immediately adjacent to the north of the site. A landscaping belt is proposed 
between the parking bays and the existing dwelling to ensure that vehicles would not 
manoeuvre in close proximity to the dwelling and its associated private garden area. 
 
The layout and design of the ‘L’ shaped block has maximised the separation between the 
proposal and the adjacent properties, which when coupled with the location of windows to 
the front and rear elevations of the building only should ensue that any overlooking/loss of 
privacy would not be so significant that could justify refusal of planning permission on 
these grounds. 
 
The design of the building, whilst two storey, is designed to incorporate traditional building 
materials and styles. It has a ‘quasi’ barn conversion appearance and layout, and as such 
is not considered detrimental to the character and appearance of the street scene or wider 
area. 
 
The existing surgery building and adjacent residential property are not considered to have 
any significant architectural merit that would justify their retention.  
 
Whilst the proposed development would require the removal of existing trees/hedges, an 
indicative landscaping scheme has been included with the application. To reinforce this on 
site landscaping condition of any grant of planning permission would ensure appropriate 
screen planting and allow the development to assimilate with its surroundings.   
 
A transport statement has been submitted with the application to demonstrate that the 
proposed development would result in a material benefit to the road network. The type of 
development proposed is such that there is unlikely to be significant reliance upon the 
private motor vehicle by the future occupiers. This matter when coupled with the requests 
of the highway authority for bollards to prevent on street parking outside the site and the 
formation of bus stops on Winters Lane would result in a form of development acceptable 
from a highway safety/capacity perspective. 
 
The concern of local residents regarding antisocial behaviour/fear of crime, whilst a 
material planning consideration, does not appear to be justified. 
The applicant has indicated that the target market is ‘people who could not find, and/or 
could not afford, centrally located, small scale accommodation….Typically the 
development partner retains a long-term interest in the properties it develops, holding them 

 



to provide rented accommodation for local people. Where units are sold, the applicant 
continues to own and manage the common areas of the properties’.  
 
There is no evidence from the submitted application that the proposed occupiers would 
result in a significant increase in the antisocial behaviour or crime of the area. Unless 
evidence can be provided that the fear of crime and antisocial behaviour is intimately 
linked with the development, planning permission should not be refused on these grounds. 
An example of a successful refusal of planning permission on these grounds is for a bail 
and probation hostel. Evidence was provided of the crime and disorder committed by the 
hostel’s residents and planning permission refused accordingly {West Midlands Probation 
Committee v Secretary of State for the Environment (1998 JPL 388)}.     
 
No details have been submitted in relation to the proposed substation and bin/bike storage 
area. A condition requiring details of these buildings is required to ensure that they do not 
result in any significant loss of residential amenity to adjacent occupiers. 
 
The affordable housing element to the scheme requires the applicant to enter a section 
106 legal agreement to ensure that it is delivered.  
 
  
Summary of Reason(s) for Approval 
 
The proposal is in accordance with national and local policies as set out in Planning Policy 
Guidance Note 3, Draft PPS3 - Housing, Lincolnshire Structure Plan Policy S4 - Rural 
Communities, Policy H2 - Housing on Previously Developed Land, South Kesteven Local 
Plan Policies EN1, H6 and T3 and the Interim Housing Policy.  The issues relating to 
highway safety/highway capacity, residential amenity, visual amenity, fear of crime, 
landscaping/loss of trees/hedges, heights of buildings, noise and disturbance from vehicle 
movements and inadequate drainage are material planning considerations, but subject to 
the conditions attached to this permission are not sufficient in this case to indicate against 
the proposal and to outweigh the policies above. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   That subject to the conclusion of an Agreement under Section 
106 of the Town and Country Planning Act to ensure an affordable housing element within 
the scheme, the development be Approved subject to condition(s) 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three 
years from the date of this permission. 

2. Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, final details of the 
materials to be used in the construction of external walls and roofs shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the District Planning Authority. Only such 
materials as may be agreed shall be used in the development. 

3. Before any development is commenced the approval of the District Planning 
Authority is required to a scheme of landscaping and tree planting for the site 
(indicating inter alia, the number, species, heights on planting and positions of all 
the trees). Such scheme as may be approved by the District Planning Authority 
shall be undertaken in the first planting season following the occupation of the 
buildings or the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner, and any 
trees or plants which within a period of five years from the completion of the 
development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be 
replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species, unless 
the District Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation. 

4. No development shall take place until there has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority a plan indicating the positions, design, 
materials and type of boundary treatment to be erected. The boundary treatment 
shall be completed before the building(s) are occupied, or in accordance with a 
timetable agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be 
carried out in accordance with approved details. 

 



5. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development Order) 1995 (or any order revoking or re-enacting that order with or 
without modification), no windows/dormer windows (other than those expressly 
authorised by this permission) shall be constructed without the prior consent in 
writing of the local planning authority. 

6. Prior to any flat/unit hereby permitted being occupied, bollards shall be erected 
along the site frontage in accordance with details to be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the local planning authority.   Development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 
local planning authority. 

7. Prior to any flat/unit hereby permitted being occupied, formalised bus stop 
arrangements shall be provided to serve the north and southbound carriageways of 
Main Street (adjacent to its junction with Winters Lane) in accordance with details 
(including engineering specification) to be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the local planning authority.Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority. 

8. Within seven days of the new access being brought into use, the existing access 
onto Winters Lane shall be permanently closed in accordance with a scheme to be 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

9. The arrangements shown on the approved plan 523/10 dated 16 May 206 for the 
parking/turning/loading/unloading of vehicles shall be available at all times when the 
premises are in use. 

10. No development shall take place before the detailed design of the arrangements for 
surface water drainage has been agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
and no building shall be occupied before it is connected to the agreed drainage 
system. 

11. Before any development is commenced, details including location and means of 
disposal of surface water and foul drainage shall be submitted to and approved by 
the District Planning Authority, and no building shall be occupied until the drainage 
works have been provided. 

12. Before any development is commenced, details of the proposed substation and bin 
store/cycle store shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority.  Such details shall include details of the means of insulation against the 
transmission of noise and vibration to adjoining properties, the siting, design and 
external appearance of the substation and bin/cycle store.  Development shall be 
carried out in accordance with the approved details unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the local planning authority. 

13. Prior to commencement of work on site a method statement regarding the proposed 
demolition and construction works shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the local planning authority.  The statement shall cover the following points: 
 
a) Hours of working on site; 

b) Type of machinery and equipment to be used on site; 

c) Details of how noise, vibration and dust are to be controlled, using best 
practicable means; and 

d)  Any other processes such as blasting, pile driving which may need controlling. 
 
The works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved method statement. 
 

14. No development shall be commenced until details of any lighting to be used to 
illuminate the site has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority.  Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority. 

 



 

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is/are: 
 

1. Required to be imposed pursuant to section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990. 

2. These details have not been submitted and the District Planning Authority wish to 
ensure that the colour and type of materials to be used harmonise with the 
surrounding development in the interests of visual amenity and in accordance with 
Policies EN1 and H6 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

3. Landscaping and tree planting contributes to the appearance of a development and 
assists in its assimilation with its surroundings. A scheme is required to enable the 
visual impact of the development to be assessed and to create and maintain a 
pleasant environment and in accordance with Policies EN1 and H6 of the South 
Kesteven Local Plan. 

4. To prevent overlooking to and from the development and to reduce the impact of 
the development on the appearance of the area and in accordance with Policies 
EN1 and H6 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

5. The planning authority wish to be in a position to determine the effects that such 
development would have on the surrounding area and in accordance with Policies 
EN1 and H6 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

6. In the interests of safety of the users of the public highway and the safety of the 
users of the site, and in accordance with Policies EN1 and H6 of the South 
Kesteven Local Plan. 

7. In the interests of safety of the users of the public highway and the safety of the 
users of the site, and in accordance with Policies EN1 and H6 of the South 
Kesteven Local Plan. 

8. In the interests of safety of the users of the public highway and the safety of the 
users of the site, and in accordance with Policies EN1 and H6 of the South 
Kesteven Local Plan. 

9. To enable calling vehicles to wait clear of the carriageway of Winters Lane in the 
interests of safety, and in accordance with Policies EN1 and H6 of the South 
Kesteven Local Plan. 

10. To ensure that surface water run-off from the development will not adversely affect, 
by reason of flooding, the safety amenity and commerce of the residents of this site, 
and in accordance with Policies EN1 and H6 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

11. To ensure satisfactory provision is made for the disposal of foul and surface water 
drainage from the site and in accordance with Policies EN1 and H6 of the South 
Kesteven Local Plan. 

12. To protect the amenity of adjacent occupiers and in accordance with Policies EN1 
and H6 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

13. To ensure that the demolition of the existing buildings and the construction of the 
development is carried out according to the best practice to minimise disruption to 
adjoining occupiers and in accordance with Policies EN1 and H6 of the South 
Kesteven Local Plan. 

14. To protect the amenities of adjacent occupiers and in accordance with Policies EN1 
and H6 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

 
Note(s) to Applicant 

1. Prior to the commencement of any of the access works within the public highway, 
please contact the Divisional Highways Manager (Lincolnshire County Council) on 
01522 782070 for appropriate specification and construction information. 

 



2. This permission shall not be construed as granting rights to development on, under 
or over land not in the control of the applicant. 

3. The attached planning permission is for development which will involve building up 
to, or close to, the boundary of the site.  Your attention is drawn to the fact that, if 
you should need access to neighbouring land in another ownership in order to 
facilitate the construction of the building and its future maintenance, you are 
advised to obtain permission from the owner of such land for such access before 
work is commenced. 

 

*   *   *   *   *   * 

 



 

SU.1 S06/0215/69 Registration Date:  13-Feb-2006 
 

Applicant Status Architecture 6-10, King Street, Leicester, LE1 6RJ 

Agent  

Proposal Erection of dwelling 

Location Land Adjacent 98, Empingham Road, Stamford 

 

Site Details 
Parish(es) 
 

 
Stamford 
A Class Road 
Demolition of any building - BR1 
Radon Area - Protection required 
Airfield Zone - No consultation required 
TPO adjoins site - TPO2 
Drainage - Welland and Nene 

 
REPORT 
 

The Site and its Surroundings 
 
The application site is in a suburban location on the south-eastern corner of the junction of 
Empingham Road and Roman Bank, the former being the A606, one of the principle 
approaches to the town centre from the west.  It currently forms part of the garden to No. 
98 Empingham Road, an early 20th Century semi-detached dwelling. 
 
The area is characterised by predominantly detached and semi-detached, mid-twentieth 
century, properties. 
 
The majority of houses are set well back within their plots and do not, therefore, impose 
themselves on the streetscene, which in the principal view along Empingham Road from 
the west, is typically twentieth century suburban with mature planting in relatively long front 
gardens and trees in the grass verge. 
 
Site History 
 
An earlier application (S05/0842/69) for a three bedroom detached house in the same 
position, featuring a distinctive 5.5m diameter flat-roofed ‘drum’ was refused under 
delegated powers, after consultation with the Chairman and Vice-Chairman. 
 
The Proposal 
 
Full planning permission is sought for the erection of a two-bedroom, detached house, 
positioned right up to the back edge of the footpath on the Empingham Road corner. 
 
The house would have an L-shaped ground floor plan with only a two-storey element on 
the ‘upright’ of the L, the northern wall of which would be rounded. 
 
Materials are specified to be stained timber boarding for the upper part of the two-storey 
element, except for the rounded end wall, and facing bricks for the remainder.  The roof 
tiles are to be double lap plain tiles. 
 
It is stated that the house would have high insulation and high thermal mass, rainwater re-
cycling, solar water heating, materials chosen for sustainability, low-carbon index and local 
sourcing and good levels of natural ventilation and daylight. 
 
A new access would be formed off Empingham Road to serve the proposed dwelling. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 

 



Central Government Guidance 
 
PPG3 – Housing (2000) 
 
South Kesteven Local Plan 
 
Policy EN1 – Protection and Enhancement of the Environment 
 
Policy H6 – Housing on Unallocated Sites 
 
Statutory Consultations 
 
Local Highway Authority:  If permitted, requests two standard conditions. 
 
Town Council:  No objections. 
 
Representations as a result of publicity 
 
The application has been advertised in accordance with the Statement of Community 
Involvement.  The closing date for representations being 16 March 2006. 
 
Letters have been received from the following: 
 
1. R J Watts, 49 Empingham Road. 
2. Mr & Mrs R Noble, 47 Empingham Road. 
3. I & S Jarvie, 55 Empingham Road. 
4. A C M & D R Page, 100 Empingham Road. 
 
The issues raised are: 
 
a) Out of keeping with nearby properties.  (4) 
 
b) Dangerous access near busy junction.  (4) 
 
c) Where will solar panels be sited?  (1) 
 
d) Visual intrusion.  (1) 
 
e) Would create a dominant and oppressive environment.  (1) 
 
Planning Panel Comments 
 
To be determined by Committee. 
 
Applicants Submissions 
 
The architects for the scheme have submitted information on two houses in Leicestershire 
which they claim are on sites comparable to that under consideration with this application. 
 
Their supporting letter reads as follows: 
 

As with Empingham Road, Stamford, both projects are prominent in the street 
scene and the designs for both have emanated from townscape requirements.  
Evington Lane (see further photo) is on a bend in the road and replaced an untidy 
1920s bungalow and asbestos cement garage.  It now provides a quality and 
interesting element in the street scene. 
 
The Sileby Road, Mountsorrel project repairs an untidy gap in the village lane by 
building a granite front wall (a very traditional local material) to contain the street 

 



and it is anchored to the street by putting the garage on the back of footpath line 
(another village tradition) thereby linking the development to the neighbour but with 
the added advantage of hiding the poor quality rendered gable of the adjacent 
building. 
 
Both of these schemes demonstrate how it is possible to repair and enhance 
sensitive sites in a contemporary way that respects traditional townscape values. 
 
With the Stamford proposal the junction is road dominated, open and untidy with its 
present fence boundary.  The proposed building addresses the corner without 
dominating it, uses traditional and good quality materials (to be agreed with 
yourselves) and repairs the street containment with a brick wall.  We believe that 
the end result will make a small but positive contribution to this mediocre part of 
Empingham Road. 
 

The photographs of the schemes referred to above will be included in the presentation to 
committee. 
 
Conclusions 

 
It is not being suggested that the design of the dwelling itself is unacceptable, more that it 
is appropriate for this location.  It is considered to be too radical a departure from the 
established form, style and character prevailing in the immediate area. 
 
It is, therefore, considered that the proposal is contrary to national and local policies. 
 
 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION:   That the development be Refused for the following reason(s) 
 
  

 

 

1. The proposal involves the erection of a detached dwelling on a very prominent 
corner site in a mature residential area on one of the principal approach roads to 
the town centre from the west.  The site currently forms part of the domestic garden 
of a semi-detached dwelling, No. 98 Empingham Road. 

 
It is considered that the proposed development constitutes too severe a departure 
from the established traditional pattern, style and character of existing residential 
properties in the vicinity and would, therefore, cause an aggressive visual and 
architectural intrusion on the scene. 

 
The proposal would, therefore, be contrary to Policies EN1 and H6 of the South 
Kesteven Local Plan, advice on new dwellings in Supplementary Planning 
Guidance contained in the Lincolnshire Design Guide for Residential Areas and 
Central Government Planning Policy Guidance contained in PPG (Housing - 2000). 
 

 
 

*   *   *   *   *   * 

 



 

 

SU.2 S06/0439/69 Registration Date:  27-Mar-2006 
 

Applicant E Bowman & Sons C/o Agent 

Agent John Martin & Associates Farm Hall Offices, West Street, Godmanchester, 
Cambs, PE29 2HG 

Proposal Residential development (outline) 

Location Land And Premises Of E Bowman & Sons, Cherryholt Road, Stamford 

 

Site Details 
Parish(es) 
 

 
Stamford 
Unclassified road 
Radon Area - Protection required 
Airfield Zone - No consultation required 
Drainage - Welland and Nene 
EA: Flood Risk Zone 2/3 (new bld only) 

 
REPORT 
 

The Site and its Surroundings 
 
The 0.74ha application site is currently a stonemasons premises on the eastern side of 
Cherry Holt Road, a 6.5m wide, unclassified road running south off Priory Road. 
 
It is an area of mixed uses, with some residential commercial/industrial premises and an 
electricity substation on the opposite (west) side of the road.  There are further commercial 
premises at the southern end of the road, adjacent to the river.  To the south and east is 
pasture land.  To the north, on higher ground, are residential properties, one fronting 
Cherry Holt road and the remainder on Priory Road. 
 
High voltage power lines run close to the southern edge of the site. 
 
There is a gentle fall across the site, from north to south, of approximately 6m.  The 
southernmost 40m of the site lies within the floodplain of the river Welland. 
 
The site at present comprises a mixture of single and two storey buildings constructed of a 
variety of materials, including brick, timber and concrete blockwork.  The unbuilt portions of 
the site are used for vehicle parking/manoeuvring and storage purposes. 
 
The Site History 
 
There is no relevant history of planning applications on the site. 
 
The Proposal 
 
Outline planning permission is sought for the redevelopment of the site for residential 
purposes. 
 
The application is accompanied by both a Transport and a Flood Risk Assessment. 
 
Although not forming part of the application, an indicative layout has been submitted 
showing how a total of 19 dwellings and 28 flats could be accommodated on the site, albeit 
in somewhat regimented fashion. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
Central Government 
 
PPS1 – Delivering Sustainable Development. 

 



 
PPG3 – Housing (2000) 
 
PPS3 (Draft) – Housing 
 
PPG13 – Transport 
 
PPS23 – Planning and Pollution Control 
 
PPG25 – Development and Flood Risk 
 
Lincolnshire Structure Plan (Deposit Draft) 
 
Policy S1 – Promoting Sustainable Development 
 
Policy S2 – Location of Development 
 
Policy H2 – Housing on Previously Developed Land 
 
South Kesteven Local Plan 
 
Policy H6 – Housing on Unallocated Sites 
 
Policy E11 – Safeguarding Industrial Sites 
 
Policy EN1 – Protection and Enhancement of the Environment 
 
Policy REC3 – Public Open Space and New Housing Development 
 
Interim Housing Policy 2005 
 
Statutory Consultations 
 
Local Highway Authority:  Stage 1 Safety Audit for the junction of Cherryholt Road and 
Priory Road – submitted and under consideration – final comments awaited. 
 
 Environment Agency:  Objection pending submission of an amended Flood Risk 
Assessment.  Amended FRA to be submitted. 
 
Head of Policy and Economic Regeneration: 
 

“Thank you for consulting Planning Policy on the above application.  I have 
considered the Supporting Planning Statement and would wish the following 
planning policy issues to be noted. 
 
The interpretation of the 1995 South Kesteven Local Plan on pages 7 and 8 is 
erroneous.  Although the plan period has expired, the policies still have materiality.  
National guidance on employment land has changed little to supersede the 1995 
Plan; PPG4 was issued in 1992, and the only update to that guidance has been 
through an update to PPG3.  This states that local authorities should, subject to 
criteria, favourably consider planning applications for housing on employment sites 
that are no longer needed for such use. 
 
The Supporting Statement claims that Policy E9 of the Local Plan provides for the 
redevelopment of existing employment sites.  However, this Policy only allows for 
the redevelopment or expansion of business or industrial uses on existing 
employment sites NOT change of use to Non-B Class uses. The relevant policy to 
consider in relation to this application is E11, which states that permission will not 

 



normally be granted for uses other than existing or allocated industrial, office or 
warehousing, unless the local planning authority is satisfied that: 
 
1. There are ample suitable sites available in the locality; 
2. The existing site use causes unacceptable traffic or environmental problems 

that would be significantly alleviated by a change of use; 
3. There is no demand for the existing use. 
 
The Supporting Statement does not address any of the above issues.  It does not 
prove a lack of demand for employment use on the site, nor that there are suitable 
alternative employment sites in the locality.  The applicant does refer to the fact that 
the current site is not fit for purpose and that they are seeking to relocate – 
providing this relocation is relatively local then local employment should not be 
affected.  However, without the evidence of an assessment of demand for 
employment use on the site and availability of alternative employment land it is not 
possible to recommend this application for approval.” 
 

Housing Solutions: 
 

Affordable housing requirement as follows: 
 
31% affordable housing on site – 50% rented, 50% shared ownership. 
 
The affordable housing to be provided by one of SKDC’s preferred RSL partners. 
 

Leisure and Cultural Services:   Comments awaited. 
 
Community Archaeologist:  If permitted, requests standard condition W8. 
 
Town Council: 
 

No objections in principle.  We note that this is a C9 designated area and believe 
that a high quality development is called for.  We also see this development being 
the subject of a sensible 106 Agreement. 
 

Representations as a result of publicity 
 
The application has been advertised in accordance with the Statement of Community 
Involvement.  Representations have been received from the following: 
 
1. Mr C McIlfatric, 1-2 Adelaide Gardens, Stamford. 
2. Mr & Mrs B E Youngs, Byways, Cherryholt Road, Stamford. 
3. D W George, Welland Printers, Cherryholt Road. 
4. Mrs L M Battley, 12 Cherryholt Road.  
5. A J Stones & K L Barrett, 7 Priory Road. 
6. Mr & Mrs J Summerskill, 9 Priory Road. 
 
The issues raised are as follows: 
 
a) Current use of site does not generate any noise outside of workers arriving in 

morning and leaving in evening and nor weekends when not occupied.  Residential 
use would significantly increase noise levels.  (3) 

 
b) Proposed use would generate significantly more traffic than current use.  (2) 
 
c) Increase in traffic will increase likelihood of accidents at Priory Road junction.  (3) 
 
d) Alternative routes, Adelaide Street and Brownlow Street, are too narrow to 

accommodate increased traffic.  (3) 

 



 
e) Existing on-street parking problems on Cherryholt Road will be exacerbated.  (2) 
 
f) Loss of privacy and overshadowing of Priory Road and Cherryholt Road residential 

properties.  (2) 
 
g) Traffic Assessment flawed.  It is based development of 28 units when proposal is 

for 47.  (1) 
 
h) On street parking already makes it difficult for delivery vehicles to access premises 

in the vicinity.  (1) 
 
Comment 
 
Most representations make comments on the indicative layout but, as stated above, this 
does not form part of the application. 
 
Planning Panel Comments 
 
To be determined by the Development Control Committee. 
 
 
Applicants Submissions 
 
The applicant’s agent has submitted the following supporting statement: 
 

1. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 This Planning Statement has been prepared by John Martin & Associates to 
support the planning application submitted on behalf of E Bowman & Sons Ltd to 
redevelop the site on which their existing business premises are located at 
Cherryholt Road, Stamford for residential purposes. 
 
1.2 The application is made in outline with all matters reserved for later 
consideration and has been prepared following a pre-application meeting with the 
planning officer at South Kesteven District Council on 16 January 2006. 
 
1.3 The application site extends to approximately 0.7 hectares as shown on the 
plan included as Appendix 1.  The site is presently occupied by a number of 
buildings used variously for office and workshop purposes associated with the 
business activities of the applicant.  In addition there are a number of hard standing 
areas within the site which are used for storage of materials and a small car park 
area is situated adjacent to the northern site boundary.  Photographs of the site and 
the existing building are included in Appendix 2. 
 
1.4 All the buildings on the site are of a considerable age inhibiting modern 
working practices which together with the access problems referred to in 2.10 is 
restricting economic operations on the site.  The company therefore intends to 
relocate rather than redevelop commercially on the site in view of adjacent 
residential development and to this end is in negotiation to secure alternative 
premises. 
 
1.5 The application proposes the demolishment of the existing buildings on the 
site and redevelopment for residential purposes.  In this regard an illustrative layout 
(drawing No. H6454/SK1) is included in support of the application as Appendix 3.  
This shows how the site might be developed having due regard to the site location 
and constraints, existing built form of the area and surrounding environment. 
 
2. PROPOSAL SITE AND SURROUNDINGS 

 



 
2.1 The application site is located to the east of Cherryholt Road approximately 
500m to the east of Stamford town centre.  It is rectangular in shape with 
boundaries formed by existing residential development to the north, agricultural land 
to the east and south and Cherryholt Road to the west. 
 
2.2 The existing buildings on the site extend to approximately 2650sq.m. and are 
made up of offices, workshops, saw mill buildings, secure storage and open sheds 
and range in their age, style and construction. 
 
2.3 The most northerly building on the site consists of a two storey office which 
fronts onto Cherryholt Road with a single storey rear building used as a joinery 
shop.  The other buildings within the site range in eaves and ridge heights and are 
used primarily as workshops and secure storage, with the main area of open 
storage located at the southern end of the site. 
 
2.4 There are various site buildings located to the back edge of the pavement 
along the majority of the site frontage to Cherryholt Road, with two existing site 
entrance points breaking the continuous built frontage. 
 
2.5 There is existing development on the opposite side of Cherryholt Road from 
the site. This development is a mixture of bungalows on Cherryholt Road and two 
storey terraced houses fronting Adelaide Road to the northern half of the site with 
predominantly commercial/office buildings opposite the southern half of the site. 
 
2.6 There is a gentle slope down across the site from north to south.  The 
southern side boundary is formed by a wire mesh fence interspersed with bushes.  
Beyond this site boundary there is an overhead electricity cable which runs east 
from the sub-station located the south west of the site.  In addition a public footpath 
is located a short distance further to the south which runs east – west and provides 
the opportunity for views of the site from the south and east. 
 
2.7 There is part of the extreme southern site area which is identified on the 
Environment Agency Indicative Flood Maps as subject of flood plain areas.  As such 
the applicant has commissioned the preparation of a Flood Risk Assessment, which 
has been prepared by Geof Beel Consultancy and is submitted separately in 
support of the application. 
 
2.8 The site boundary to the east is similarly formed by a wire mesh fence 
interspersed with bushes along its south half with existing buildings forming the 
boundary along the remaining length.  Beyond this boundary is agricultural land 
which is used for seasonal grazing. 
 
2.9 The northern site boundary is formed by the rear gardens to the properties 
fronting onto Priory road.  There is at present a car park for approximately 20 cars 
located in this northern part of the site with a separate access to Cherryholt Road 
situated immediately north of the office block to which reference is made previously. 
 
2.10 There are known to be existing problems with on street parking  along 
Cherryholt Road which have caused considerable problems to the applicants 
business.  This is a major factor in the applicant seeking to relocate the business 
away from the site and proposing the residential development.  A Transport 
Assessment has been completed for the site and submitted to the County Highway 
Authority for comment.  A copy of the Transport Assessment prepared by 
Sanderson Associates is submitted separately in support of the application. 
 
3. PLANNING HISTORY 
 
3.1 None relevant to the site. 

 



 
 
 
 
4. PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT 
 
4.1 The proposal must be considered in terms of the advice set out in the 
following national planning policy guidance notes and statements and the policies of 
the approved Development Plan which comprises the Lincolnshire Structure Plan 
Deposit draft Proposed Modifications 2006 and the South Kesteven Local Plan 
1995. 
 
Government Policy Guidance 
 
4.2 The following statements and guidance of relevance in considering the 
current proposal for the residential redevelopment of the site at Cherryholt Road, 
Stamford. 
 
4.3 PPS1 Delivering Sustainable Development – this statement sets out the 
Governments objectives for the planning system and the key principles which 
should be applied to ensure decision taken on a planning application contribute to 
the delivery of sustainable development.  Paragraph 21 refers to the aim of 
maximising outputs and minimising resources used with reference to ‘building 
housing at higher densities on previously developed land, rather than at lower 
densities on green field land’. 
 
4.4 PPG3 Housing – the general thrust of this guidance is to achieve a more 
sustainable form of development.  Integral to this is the aim of securing the best use 
of land in particular by the re-use of previously developed land and buildings in 
sustainable urban locations.  The guidance includes advice as to the appropriate 
density of development by indicating a reasonable density of 30-50 dwellings per 
hectare. 
 
4.5 Draft PPS3 – Housing – This document sets out the latest Government 
approach to planning for housing.  It has been subject of consultation and when 
published in final form will replace PPG3.  It indicates that when considering 
applications for housing in advance of the development plan document being 
reviewed, local planning authorities should give weight to the policies in the 
statement as material considerations.  With regard to efficient use of land there is 
encouragement for local planning authorities ‘to ensure the redevelopment of 
brownfield land’. 
 
4.6 The draft PPS retains the definition of Brownfield land, also known as 
previously developed land as ‘that which is or was occupied by a permanent 
structure and associated fixed surface infrastructure’. 
 
4.7 PPG13 (Transport) – the guidance seeks to achieve sustainable 
development by directing development to locations which will reduce the amount of 
trips necessary to access services and facilities.  Importantly this includes emphasis 
on directing development towards urban areas in the first instance. 
 
Lincolnshire Structure Plan Deposit draft Proposed Modifications 2006 
 
4.8 Policy S2:  Location of Development – the policy proposes a ‘sequential 
approach to the development of land’ … ‘in order of priority 
 

a) suitable previously developed land and buildings within major 
settlements which are or will be well served by public transport and are 
accessible to local facilities’ 

 



 
4.9 Policy H2 – Housing on Previously Developed Land – the policy indicates 
that the District Councils should work to achieve a Lincolnshire target of ‘at least 
40%’ of additional dwellings on previously developed land. 
 
The South Kesteven Local Plan 1995 
 
4.10 The South Kesteven Local Plan was adopted in 1995 and extended over a 
plan period up to 2001.  The Local Plan has now technically expired and the 
majority of policies are now not considered to be relevant given changes in 
Government policy. 
 
4.11 Policy E9 could still be applied to the application site.  This policy provides 
for the redevelopment of existing employment sites where there is unlikely to be 
‘unacceptable environmental or traffic and parking problems’. 
 
Interim Housing Policy 
 
4.12 The District Council adopted in 2005 an Interim Housing Policy as a 
response to the over provision of housing land, primarily within the rural area 
against the Structure Plan requirement. 
 
4.13 This Interim Housing Policy confirms that new housing development will not 
be permitted on Greenfield sites within the District.  In the four towns of Grantham, 
Stamford, Bourne and the Deepings new housing development will only be 
permitted which involves 
 

a) A previously developed site (in accordance with the definition included 
in PPG3 Annex C). 
b) The interim policy does also state that in all cases planning 
permission will also be subject to relevant policies of the “saved” adopted 
South Kesteven Local Plan. 
 

5. ILLUSTRATIVE LAYOUT 

 

5.1 The illustrative layout submitted with the planning application has been 
prepared after due consideration of the existing characteristics of the site and its 
immediate surroundings.  The scale of development proposed for the site is in the 
order of 62 dwellings per hectare and as such is considered to be in conformity with 
the proposed density levels put forward in both PPG3 and Draft PPS3. 
 
5.2 The illustrative layout suggests a total of 47 units comprising a mix of 3 bed 
2½/3 storey town houses, 2/3 bed 2 storey semi-detached houses and 1 and 2 bed 
flats. 
 
5.3 The 2 storey flats have been arranged along the Cherryholt Road frontage 
with parking and amenity space behind to reflect the existing built frontage to the 
site.  Two access points have been provided into the site which reflects the existing 
arrangement and will allow for greater permeability into and out of the site and for 
ease of servicing. 
 
5.4 The houses have been arranged principally to take advantage of the views 
across the adjacent landscape.  With reference to the conclusions and 
recommendations of the Flood Risk Assessment the extent of possible flood plain 
area has been identified on the layout for diagrammatic purposes and as such there 
is no built development proposed further south. 
 

 



5.5 With regard to parking provision this would be provided on site and it would 
be the intention that the flats and semi-detached houses would have 1 parking 
space per dwelling, whereas the town houses would have 1 parking space plus an 
integral garage per dwelling. 
 
6. CONCLUSIONS 
 
6.1 This supporting statement has considered the nature of the application site, 
its planning history, the prevailing planning policies and the key planning 
considerations. 
 
6.2 Whilst made in outline the indicative layout submitted with the application 
indicates that residential development of the site shall be orientated in such a 
manner its development is of a scale and form appropriate to the character of the 
site and its surroundings. 
 
6.3 The proposal is compliant with relevant PPS and PPG’s in seeking to bring 
forward a previously developed site in a sustainable urban location, which will 
minimise the need to travel. 
 
6.4 The reasons set out in this report and separate appendices together with the 
supporting Traffic Assessment and Flood Risk Assessment, it is hoped that the 
South Kesteven District Council can give the application their support. 
 

Conclusions 
 
National planning policy guidance promotes the re-use of previously developed land within 
urban areas in preference to Greenfield sites.  To this end local authorities are required to 
undertake urban capacity studies to assess the potential to recycle land and buildings in 
their area. 
 
The application site was identified in the Urban Capacity Study and included in the 
‘Welland Quarter’ opportunity area, together with land to the south and east.  The 
suggested uses for this area are residential, retail, employment and leisure.  The proposal 
to redevelop for residential purposes would accord with the aims for the area albeit in a 
piecemeal fashion rather than the envisaged comprehensive approach. 
 
 It is a ‘brownfield’ site and capable of being developed in a way which respects the scale 
and character of the surrounding area.  Although this is an outline application with matters 
relating to siting, external appearance, access and landscaping reserved for subsequent 
approval, it is considered that residential development of the site will not have an adverse 
effect on the amenities of neighbouring residential properties.  Issues relating to privacy 
and overshadowing will, therefore, be addressed at the Reserved Matters stage. 
 
A Section 106 agreement will be required in respect of Affordable Housing and Public 
Open Space provision. 
 
At the time of writing, there are outstanding highway and flood risk issues to be resolved 
and the further comments of the Head of Policy and Economic Regeneration are awaited 
on the additional information provided by the applicants agent to meet the requirements of 
Policy E11. 
 
 

Summary of Reason(s) for Approval 
 
The proposal is in accordance with national and local policies as set out in Planning Policy 
Statement PPS1 (Delivering Sustainable Development), PPS3 (Draft - Housing), PPS23 
(Planning and Pollution Control), Planning Policy Guidance Notes PPG3 ( Housing 2000), 
PPG13 (Transport), PPG25 (Development and Flood Risk).  Policies S1, S2 and H2 of the 

 



Lincolnshire Structure Plan Deposit Draft), Policies H6, H11, REC3 and EN1 of the south 
Kesteven Local Plan and the adopted Interim Housing Policy (June 2005).  The issues 
relating to highway safety and flood risk are material considerations but, subject to the 
conditions attached to this permission, are not sufficient in this case to indicate against the 
proposal and to outweigh the policies referred to above. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   That subject to the final comments of the Local Highway 
Authority, the Environment Agency and the Head of Policy and Economic Regeneration 
and the completion of a Section 106 Agreement in respect of Affordable Housing and 
Public Open Space provision, the development be Approved subject to condition(s) 
 

1. Application for approval of reserved matters must be made not later than the 
expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission, and the 
development must be begun not later than the expiration of two years from the final 
approval of the reserved matters, or, in the case of approval on different dates, the 
final approval of the last such matter to be approved. 

2. The following matters are reserved for subsequent approval by the District Planning 
Authority and no development to which these matters relate shall be carried out 
until these matters have been approved:-  

 
 (i) detailed drawings of the estate layout to a scale of not less than 1/500 showing 
the siting of all buildings and means of access thereto from an existing or proposed 
highway and site contours at one metre intervals;  

(ii) detailed drawings to a scale of not less than 1/100 showing the siting, design 
and external appearance of the buildings including particulars of the materials to be 
used for external walls and roofs;  

(iii) a scheme of landscaping. 

3. Before any development is commenced, details including location and means of 
disposal of surface water and foul drainage shall be submitted to and approved by 
the District Planning Authority, and no building shall be occupied until the drainage 
works have been provided. 

4. No development shall take place upon the application site until the applicant has 
secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work, in accordance 
with a written scheme of investigation, which has been submitted by the applicant 
and approved by the District Planning Authority. 

5. Development approved by this planning permission shall not be commenced 
unless: 
 
a) A desk top study has been carried out which shall include the identification of 
previous site uses, potential contaminants that might reasonably be expected given 
those uses and other relevant information.  And using this information a 
diagrammatical representation (Conceptual Model) for the site of all potential 
contaminant sources, pathways and receptors has been produced. 
 
b) A site investigation has been designed for the site using the information 
obtained from the desk top study and any diagrammatical representations 
(Conceptual Model).  This should be submitted to, and approved in writing by the 
local planning authority prior to that investigation being carried out on the site.  The 
investigation must be comprehensive enough to enable: 

 
- a risk assessment to be undertaken relating to the receptors associated with 
the proposed new use, those uses that will be retained (if any) and other receptors 
on and off the site that may be affected, and. 
- refinement of the Conceptual Model, and 

 



- the development of a Method Statement detailing the remediation 
requirements. 
 
c) The site investigation has been undertaken in accordance with details 
approved by the local planning authority and a risk assessment undertaken. 
 
d) A Method Statement detailing the remediation requirements using the 
information obtained from the Site Investigation has been submitted to the local 
planning authority.  This should be approved in writing by the local planning 
authority prior to that remediation being carried out on site. 
 

6. If during development, contamination not previously identified, is found to be 
present at the site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing 
with the local planning authority) shall be carried out until the developer has 
submitted, and obtained written approval from the local planning authority, for an 
addendum to the Method Statement.  This addendum to the Method Statement 
must detail how this unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with and from the 
date of approval the addendum(s) shall form part of the Method Statement. 

7. The site investigation trial pits or boreholes located in or through the contaminated 
land must be backfilled to a specification to be submitted to and agreed in writing by 
the local planning authority.  

 

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is/are: 
 

1. Required to be imposed pursuant to section 92 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990. 

2. The application was submitted in outline only and these details are necessary to 
enable the District Planning Authority to assess the standard of the proposed 
development and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

3. To ensure satisfactory provision is made for the disposal of foul and surface water 
drainage from the site and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the South Kesteven 
Local Plan. 

4. To ensure that satisfactory provision is made for the evaluation, investigation, 
preservation (in situ where necessary) and recording of any possible archaeological 
remains on the site and in accordance with Policy C2 of the South Kesteven Local 
Plan. 

5. To ensure that the proposed site investigations and remediation will not cause 
pollution of the environment or harm to human health and in accordance with Policy 
EN1 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

6. To ensure that the development complies with approved details in the interests of 
protection of the environment and harm to human health, and controlled waters and 
in accordance with Policy EN1 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

7. To prevent the direct contamination of groundwater and in accordance with Policy 
EN1 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

 
Note(s) to Applicant 

1. The comments of the Environment Agency are enclosed for your attention. 

 
This application was deferred from the last meeting pending the final comments of 
the Environment Agency, the Highway Authority and the Head of Planning Policy 
and Economic Regeneration. 
 
Members also requested information on how the proposed development conforms to the 
Preferred Options for the Welland Quarter Opportunity Area. 

 



 
The recent consultation document entitled Housing & Economic DPD Preferred Options 
states as follows on this area: 
 

Within the Welland Quarter opportunity area at Stamford as shown on the 
map following page 23, planning permission will be granted for a 
comprehensive mixed-use redevelopment to include retail, leisure, housing 
and employment uses and together with enhanced public parking provision.  
Any scheme of redevelopment should: 
 
i. Make provision for the retention and enhancement of public car parking 

facilities within the area; 
ii. Incorporate a safe and attractive route for pedestrians and cyclists 

alongside the river between the bridge and the priory; 
iii. Incorporate appropriate measures to secure safe and convenient 

pedestrian and cycle link between the area and the main town centre 
shopping area; and 

iv. Maximise the advantages of the areas riverside setting and be of a high 
design quality. 

 
Since the report was written for the last meeting the following comments have been 
received from the Amenities Manager: 
 

I would suggest that the requirements of the local plan still be applied 
regarding the provision of Public Open Space. 
 
In addition play provision still be made in accordance with the 
recommendations of the National Playing Fields Association 6 acre standard. 
 
As the application is outline and detailed drawings are not available for 
comment, I would suggest the development would warrant a combined 
LAP/LEAP standard facility. 
 

 
 

*   *   *   *   *   * 

 

 

 



 

SU.3 S06/0451/56 Registration Date:  27-Mar-2006 
 

Applicant Allison Homes Eastern Ltd Holland Place, Wardentree Park, Pinchbeck, 
Spalding, PE11 3ZN 

Agent Stephen Bate, The Robert Doughty Consultancy Ltd 32, High Street, 
Helpringham, Sleaford, Lincs, NG34 0RA 

Proposal 11 houses and 6 apartments (Reserved matters) 

Location The Still, Off Rosemary Avenue, Market Deeping 

 

Site Details 
Parish(es) 
 

 
Market Deeping 
Unclassified road 
Demolition of any building - BR1 
Radon Area - Protection required 
TPO affects site - TPO1 
Drainage - Welland and Nene 

 
REPORT 
 

The Site and its Surroundings 
 
The 0.32 Hectare application site is located to the rear of residential properties fronting 
Bramley Road, Clover Road and Rosemary Avenue.   
 
The site is currently occupied by a redundant perfume Still and a single residential 
property.  The Still is overgrown with ivy and has trees and shrubs growing into it.  
 
There are numerous mature and semi-mature trees within the site that conceal the existing 
buildings from surrounding view.  
 
Access is, at present, a narrow 3.0m private drive running between nos 15 and 17 Bramley 
Road. 
 
Site History 

 
Outline planning permission for residential development was granted, on appeal, in 2003 
(S.02/1582/56).  
 
When the previous application was being considered an immediate Preservation Order 
was placed on all the trees on the site as they were perceived to be under threat.   No 
detailed survey of the trees was undertaken, it was imposed to control their removal. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
The Proposal 
 
The application seeks approval of Reserved Matters for a scheme of seventeen dwellings 
grouped around an extension to Rosemary Avenue, which currently serves four dwellings.   
 
The existing buildings would be demolished. 
 
The submitted drawings show a mixture of two, two and half storey houses and two, semi-
detached, three-storey blocks containing six apartments. 
 

 



The three storey  would back onto existing residences to the west, fronting Clover Road. 
The two and half storey units would have dormers to the front roofslope only and a 
rooflight at the rear to an en-suite.   
 
Materials would be a mixture of red and buff coloured facing bricks and roof coverings 
would Sandtoft double pantiles, in either brown or grey colours.  
 
The house sizes would be as follows: 
 
6no. two bed semis 
10 no. three bed semis 
1no.  four bed detached 
 
All but three of the existing trees are shown to be removed.   
 
The existing narrow driveway off Bramley Road would not be used to access the 
development.  It is understood that it will be offered to the owners of the two properties on 
either side to purchase. 
 
Statutory Consultations 
 
Local Highway Authority:   Minor amendments requested.  Final comments awaited. 
 
Community Archaeologist:  Request standard condition W8.  N.B.  The Inspector imposed 
a Watching Brief condition on the outline permission.  
 
Housing Solutions: The site falls below the 25 unit threshold for an urban development 
and, therefore, affordable housing is not a requirement. 
 
Arboriculturalist:  Comments awaited. 
 
Town Council:  Objection – this application received massive objection from residents the 
last time it was submitted and because of the timing of receipt of the application, residents 
will not know of this until me May.  Town Council feel that nothing has changed – it is still n 
inappropriate development of this site – inadequate access; three storey buildings 
inappropriate for the site and the loss of one of the ancient buildings in Market Deeping. 
 
Policy Considerations 

 
PPS 1 Delivering Sustainable Development  
 
PPG3 (Housing)  
 
PPG13 (Transport) 
 
Lincolnshire Structure Plan (Deposit Draft- April 2004) 
 
Policy S1 Policy S1 Promoting Sustainable Development  
 
Policy S2 Location of Development 
 
Policy H2  Housing on previously developed land 
 
Policy H3  Density of new housing development 
 
South Kesteven Local Plan  
 
Policy H6 Policy H6 Residential development  
 

 



Policy EN1 Protection and Enhancement of the Environment 
 
Representations as a result of publicity 
 
The application has been advertised in accordance with statutory requirements, the 
closing date for representations being 12th May 2006. 
 
Representations have been received from the following : 
 
1. Caroline Houlton, 5 Rosemary Avenue, Market Deeping. 
2. S N Cross, 7 Rosemary Avenue. 
3. Mr & Mrs I Rolt, 14 Clover Road. 
4. Mrs E Roberts, 17 Clover Road. 
5. Mrs G E Farren, 20 Clover Road. 
6. F R & M Mills, 34 Clover Road. 
7. C Dean, 4 Clover Road. 
8. Mr & Mrs R I Penn, 61 Clover Road. 
9. Mr & Mrs M Draycott, 65 Clover Road. 
10. Mr & Mrs Anzivino, 13 Bramley Road. 
11. N Mackenzie, 25 Bramley Road. 
12. Mr & Mrs Thompson, 29 Bramley Road. 
 
The planning issues raised are:   
 
a) Loss of protected trees.  A significant amenity feature to the locality. (11) 
b) Loss of wildlife habitat.  Has an Ecological Assessment been undertaken ? (5) 
c) Has a study of storm water drainage been undertaken to assess potential for 

flooding.(2) 
d) Apartments and semi-detached properties not in-keeping with existing 

development. (3) 
e) Three storey houses would create loss of privacy and overlooking issues. (6) 
f) Over intensive development, out of character with existing development. (8) 
g) Considerable increase in traffic on surrounding road network. (8) 
h) Would increase likelihood of accidents. (3) 
i) Loss of amenity to occupiers of existing properties.(1) 
j)  Concern about gate on Plot 9 leading children’s play area. (1) 
k)  Concern about safety of large Oak tree and potential damage from   

       falling branches. (1) 
l) Loss of historic buildings. (1) 
m) Would create a dominant and oppressive environment. (2) 
n) No measurements on plans to help decide how close the new buildings would be to 

neighbouring properties.(1) 
o) Services already at their limits. (1) 
 
Comments  
 
The principle of residential development on this site has already been established by the 
appeal decision on the Outline application. 
 
At the time the Outline application was under consideration an immediate Preservation 
Order was placed on all the trees on the site as they were perceived to be under threat.   
No detailed survey of the trees was undertaken, it was imposed to control their removal. 
 
The density of the proposed development accords with central government guidance 
contained in PPG3 (Housing-2000). 
 
The highway authority do not have a concern with the number of dwellings and the amount 
of traffic likely to be generated. 
 

 



Conclusions 
 
Minor amendments to the design of the proposed dwellings and the car parking 
arrangements has been sought together with further illustrative material to demonstrate 
that the privacy of existing dwellings will not be compromised by the proposed three storey 
apartment block. 
 
Clarification of surface water drainage proposals has also been sought. 
 
At the time of writing this additional information is awaited. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Summary of Reason(s) for Approval 
 
The proposal is in accordance with national and local policies as set out in Planning Policy 
Statement PPS1 (Delivering sustainable development), PPG4 (Industrial and Commercial 
Development and Small Firms), Planning Policy Guidance Notes PPG13 (Transport), 
PPG15 (Planning and the Historic Environment), PPG16 (Archaeology and Planning), 
PPG25 (Development and Flood Risk).  Policy S1 of the Lincolnshire Structure Plan 
(Deposit Draft - April 2004), Policy E2 of the South Kesteven Local Plan and the adopted 
Interim Housing Policy (June 2006). 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   That the development be Approved subject to condition(s) 
 
1. This consent relates to the application as amended by amended drawing nos. *** 

received on ***, unless the local planning authority gives written consent to any 
minor variation.  

 

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is/are: 
 

1. For the avoidance of doubt. 

 
Note(s) to Applicant 

1. Your attention is drawn to the enclosed Planning Guidance Note No. 2 entitled 
'Watching Brief' and the Community Archaeologist's assessment which may be 
helpful to you in complying with the condition relating to archaeology included in this 
approval. The South Kesteven Community Archaeologist may be contacted at 
Heritage Lincolnshire, The Old School, Cameron Street, Heckington, Sleaford, 
Lincs NG34 9RW - Tel: 01529 461499, Fax: 01529 461001. 

2. You are advised that the application site falls within an area which requires 
protection from Radon. You are advised to contact the District Council's Building 
Control Services to ascertain the level of protection required, and whether 
geological assessment is necessary. 

 
This application was deferred from the last meeting for Members to undertake a site 
visit and for negotiations to be entered into with the applicants with a view to 
securing a reduction on the height of some of the proposed dwellings. 
 
 
This application was once again deferred from the last meeting, following a Member 
site visit, for further negotiations with the applicant with a view to securing 
substitution of the two and a half story units with two storey dwellings. 
 

 



 
 

*   *   *   *   *   * 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SU.4 S06/0514/69 Registration Date:  06-Apr-2006 
 

Applicant Mr P Doyle, Bloor Homes Stirling House, The Avenue, Cliftonville, 
Northampton, NN1 5BT 

Agent Mr R A Woolston, rg & p The Old School, 346, Loughborough Road, 
Leicester, LE4 5PJ 

Proposal Residential development 

Location Former Quarry Farm Brickworks, Little Casterton Road, Stamford 

 

Site Details 
Parish(es) 
 

 
Stamford 
Adj authority - Rutland CC - AA6 
C Class Road 
Radon Area - Protection required 
Section 106/52 applies on site 
H2 Housing - Stamford 
Airfield Zone - No consultation required 
EA: Adj not waste disposal site - TIP2 
Drainage - Welland and Nene 
Wildlife - g/c newts etc - WL3 

 
REPORT 
 

The Site and its Surroundings 
 
The 4.92ha application site is the former Williamson Cliff brickworks on Little Casterton 
Road. 
 
The site has been cleared of buildings. 
 
There are existing residential properties to the south, south-east, south-west and east.  To 
the west are the former brick clay pits with full planning permission for residential 
development and the north agricultural land in Rutland. 
 
There is a steady fall across the site from north to south. 
 
Site History 
 
The site has outline planning permission for residential development granted on 27 July 
2005 (S02/1670/69).  The permission was subject to a Section 106 Agreement covering 
the following: 
 
i) Affordable Housing – 15% of total numbering the ratio of 60% for rent and 

40% shared equity. 
 
ii) Green Areas – 40 sq.m. per unit POS and 20 sq.m. per unit as play areas.  A LEAP 

within POS £12,000 commuted sum towards future maintenance. 
 
iii) Highway Contributions.  £25,000 towards off-site improvements.  £65,000 towards 

Community Travel Zone. 
 
The Outline approval did not specify a housing density or a maximum number of units. 

 



 
The Proposal 
 
Reserved Matters approval is sought for a layout comprising 183 dwellings, a mixture of 3, 
2 and 1½ storey dwellings.  27 of the units would be Social Housing. 
 
The main point of access to the site would be off Little Casterton Road.  The site will 
connect with the development already approved to the west and ultimately, via a tortuous 
route to discourage ‘rat-running’ with Belvoir Close. 
 
The density of development would be 43.3 units per hectare. 
 
The Public Open Space provision would be 0.73 ha. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
Central Government Policy Statements 
 
PPG3 – Housing 2000 
 
PPG25 – Development and Flood Risk 
 
PPS23 – Planning and Pollution Control 
 
Lincolnshire Structure Plan – Deposit Draft 
 
Policy H2 – Housing on Previously Developed Land 
 
South Kesteven Local Plan 
 
Policy H6 – Residential Development on Unallocated Sites 
 
Policy EN1 – Protection and Enhancement of the Environment 
 
Statutory Consultations 
 
Local Highway Authority:  Minor amendments to visibility splays and road surfaces 
required.  Final comments awaited. 
 
Environment Agency:   
 

No objection on Flood Risk. 
 
Objection on contamination grounds pending submission of further information. 
 
 
 
 

Housing Solutions: 
 

Plans indicate that, in-line with the Section 106 Agreement 15% affordable 
housing will be provided on site.  The plans indicate 27 affordable units 
‘pepper-potted’ on site. 

 
Leisure and Cultural Services: 
 

No objection.  Play equipment should comply with NPFA recommendations 
and to BS EN1176/BS.  All proposals should have local planning authority’s 
approval prior to provision. 

 



 
East Midlands Regional Assembly: 
 
 Thank you for your consultation dated 13 April 2006.  My understanding is that this 

application is for approval of details following grant of outline consent in July 2005 
(ref. S02/1670/69).  Therefore, there are no conformity issues of principle arising. 

 
RSS8 Policy 31 promotes conservation of the historic environment and is 
particularly applicable to historic towns such as Stamford.  The efforts the 
local authority has made in the selection of building materials that are 
sympathetic to the town’s character have achieved significant benefits both 
on new buildings within the built up framework and on edge of town 
developments that can be seen from some miles away across the 
surrounding countryside.  This work has strong accordance with the above 
policy.  In this context, it may be appropriate to select bricks that are similar 
to those formerly produced on the site, limestone type dressings and roof 
tiles that are sympathetic to the Collyweston slates historically used 
throughout the town and surrounding locality. 

 
East Midlands Development Agency: 
 

Thank you for your letter dated 13 April 2006 requesting the comments of 
emda on the above planning application.  You will have received a copy of 
the Notification Criteria which emda sent to all local authorities in June 2004.  
The above application falls under Criterion 1(b): 

 
Residential development comprising of more than 100 dwellings in the Eastern Sub-area. 

 
Significant development of the type proposed is considered to be within the 
provisions of Article 10(1)(zc)(ii) of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Development Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2003. 
 
 This reserved matters application for residential development comprises a total 
number of 183 units (140 houses/bungalows and 43 flats/apartments) with 
associated car parking and landscaping.  Outline planning permission for residential 
development has been granted in July 2005. 
 
The above application is for a part of a brownfield site previously used as a brick 
manufacturing works.  The reclamation and reuse of this site is welcomed as it is in 
line with targets for re-using previously developed land for housing as set out in the 
Site Provision and Development Strand of the Regional Economic Strategy (RES) 
‘Destination 2010’. 
 
We welcome the fact that the Design Statement includes sustainable transport 
proposals such as a connecting bus route through the site, cycle routes and public 
footpaths.  The location of the site approximately one mile from the town centre of 
Stamford supports sustainable forms of transport. 
 
Therefore, emda supports this application and recommends approval. 
 

Community Archaeologist:  Proposed development does not affect any known 
archaeological sites. 
 
Lincs Police Architectural Liaison Officer: 
 

1. Lighting to parking areas. 
 
2. Minimum of 1800mm high perimeter fencing. 
 

 



3. Landscaping to maximum growth height of 1m. 
 
4. 900mm rolled top fence to be erected around the perimeter of each public 

open space with self-closing gated access. 
 

Stamford Town Council: 
 

• The Planning committee is alarmed at this proposal. 
 

• Although the Committee has been informed that they cannot consider the 
‘big picture’ of the impact of a further development of this size on the town, it 
is noted that this proposal is contrary to Policy H2 of the existing Local Plan 
in that it is a major development sited at the urban edge of the town. 

 

• Moreover, it takes the overall numbers of new houses to close to even above 
the required numbers in Stamford up to 2021. 

 

• In addition, the Committee believes that the impact of the increased traffic 
generated, will be detrimental both in the immediate vicinity onto the adjacent 
already inadequate feeder roads and on the town as a whole. 

 

• The Committee would prefer this development not to occur, but if it does, 
they would wish to see the road through the site re-configured to make it less 
usable as a ‘rat-run’ for those wishing to travel from one part of the town to 
another, or as an alternative road from west to east or vice-versa. 

 

• The Committee also see a need for community facilities, a hall or centre and 
play areas to be included. 

 

• The Committee is also not convinced that the drainage survey adequately 
reflects the actual situation as it is known that areas close and below this site 
already suffer from flooding in heavy rain. 

 

• Recommend refusal. 
 
English Nature:  No objection. 
 
Rutland County Council:  Concerns about traffic generation onto Little Casterton Road and 
through the village of Little Casterton. 
 
Representations as a result of publicity 
 
The application has been advertised in accordance with statutory requirements and the 
Statement of Community Involvement the closing date for representations being 19 May 
2006. 
 
Representations have been received from the following: 
 
1. M Challis, 1 Elton Close, Stamford. 
2. Mr M N Christie, 1 Eshton, Wynyard Woods, Wynyard Estate, Teesside. 
3. E Taylor, 1 Gainsborough Road, Stamford. 
4. Garry Smith, 1 Haddon Road, Stamford. 
5. R & V Crossley, 12 Haddon Road, Stamford. 
6. S Rawnsley, 13 Elton Close, Stamford. 
7. A Denness, 14 Haddon Road, Stamford. 
8. C D & B M Potter, 15 Chatsworth Road, Stamford. 
9. Gail Burnham, 16 Elton Close, Stamford. 
10. Stamford Civic Society, 17 Ermine Rise, Great Casterton. 

 



11. Mr K A Edwards, 18 Haddon Road, Stamford. 
12. Mr & Mrs A S Leonard, 2 Haddon Road. 
13. Jane Bateman, 20 Ancaster Road. 
14. Mrs I Haynes, 20 Haddon Road. 
15. S & J Puttrich, 24 Elgar Way. 
16. Rev Mrs M E Lloyd, 29 Elgar Way. 
17. Mrs A M Gibbs, 3 Elton Close. 
18. T M Johnson, 33 Elgar Way. 
19. Keith Hansell, 40 Waverley Gardens. 
20. Mr & Mrs J Goff, 43 Waverley Gardens. 
21. Mr M E Allman, 45 Little Casterton Road. 
22. Mr E Wright, 47 Little Casterton Road. 
23. Mr P K Jarvis, 49 Little Casterton Road. 
24. Mr & Mrs M Griggs, 5 Elton Close. 
25. M & P Callow, 5 Gainsborough Road. 
26. Mr N Liu, 5 Haddon Road. 
27. Miss A Holwell, 55 Little Casterton Road. 
28. Mrs E Broom, 6 Haddon Road. 
29. Mr A M Christie, 6 Ravel Close. 
30. John Milliard, 6 Waverley Gardens. 
31. K Wallace, 7 Elton Close. 
32. Mr & Mrs J Owen, 8 Elton Close. 
33. L & P Brown, 8 Haddon Road. 
34. B & D Carter, 9 Elton Close. 
 
The issues raised are: 
 
a) Surrounding road network cannot cope with existing levels of traffic.  (20) 
 
b) Increased flooding at junction of Waverley Gardens and Little Casterton Road.  (1) 
 
c) Shops should be provided in development site.  (3) 
 
d) Design out of character with existing properties.  )4) 
 
e) Visually intrusive development.  (1) 
 
f) Overlooking and loss of privacy.  (13) 
 
g) Inadequate infrastructure for scale of development proposed.  (5) 
 
h) Social considerations, police, medical, education.  (1) 
 
i) Density too high.  (9) 
 
j) Loss of privacy and sunlight from three storey units close to boundaries with 

existing properties.  (12) 
 
k) Inadequate parking for three storey units.  (4) 
 
l) Environmental hazard due to ‘hotspots’ needing special treatment and producing 

toxic dust.  (2) 
 
m) Established trees on the boundary may be uprooted to accommodate new 

buildings.  (1) 
 
n) Location of affordable housing contrary to government policy on social inclusion.  

(1) 
 

 



o) Three storey units out of context with other buildings in the area.  (3) 
 
p) Unreasonable area of public open space.  (1) 
 
q) Multiple-occupancy dwellings should not be allowed.  (1) 
 
r) Nursery/primary school facilities should be provided within site.  (1) 
 
s) Will create a dominant and oppressive environment.  (6) 
 
t) Increase noise and disturbance.  (6) 
 
u) Inadequate off-street parking provision.  (6) 
 
v) Layout plan omits mature trees to rear of 18 Haddon Road.  (1) 
 
w) Design of three storey units not in-keeping with remainder of proposals.  (3) 
 
x) Insufficient medical and educational facilities in town to cater for proposed 

development.  (6) 
 
y) concern at noise and disturbance during development period.  (1) 
 
z) Development will increase on-street parking on Little Casterton Road affecting road 

safety.  (1) 
 
aa) Object to access off Little Casterton Road.  (2) 
 
bb) Buildings in close proximity to boundary will affect future growth of trees.  (1) 
 
cc) Layout plan does not show trees on nos. 10, 12, 14 and 16 Haddon Road that are a 

haven for wildlife.  (1) 
 
dd) Design of three storey units unsafe as they only have one entrance/exit.  (1) 
 
ee) Overcrowded development difficult to access for emergency vehicles.  (4) 
 
ff) Loss of trees will affect wildlife habitat.  (3) 
 
gg) Any guarantee that drainage will be adequate and not flood adjoining properties.  

(2) 
 
hh) Telecommunications mast adjacent to northern site boundary.  Is it safe to locate 

houses next to it?  (1) 
 
ii) Site should be used to put in place first stage of a ring road or developers should be 

required to contribute to future provision of such a road.  (1) 
 
jj) Access opposite 49 Little Casterton Road will make it difficult to enter and exit that 

property.  (1) 
 
In addition to the above, a petition with 33 signatures of local residents has been received 
objecting to the development on the following grounds: 
 
a) Dominant and oppressive environment created by the proposal especially 

when viewed in conjunction with additional housing development plans 
proposed for the area. 

 
b) Highway safety and traffic impact. 

 



 
c) Visually intrusive. 
 
d) Will result in excessive noise or smell nuisance. 
 
e) Overlooking and loss of privacy in some instances. 
 
f) Environmental issues.  Drainage to mature trees. 
 
g) Insufficient notices posted in area.  No notices put up in areas most affected. 
 
Planning Panel Comments 
 
To be determined by Committee. 
 
Conclusions 
 
The majority of the objections relate to impact of the proposed development on the 
surrounding road network and the positioning of the three storey units in relation to existing 
properties. 
 
The Highway Authority have not taken issue with the traffic likely to be generated by the 
proposed number of dwellings and improvements to the Scotgate and Casterton Road 
junctions will have to be undertaken before the development commences. 
 
Rutland County Council are currently considering an application for the relocation of the 
telecom mast some 500m to the north-east, further into Rutland, of its current position 
adjacent to the application site. 
 
The applicants are reconsidering parts of the layout where overlooking is a concern.   At 
the time of writing an amended layout is awaited. 
 
The objection by the Environment Agency on contamination grounds is a holding 
objection.  This is likely to be lifted when further information has been submitted 
addressing their concerns.  Again, at the time of writing this report, the additional 
information is awaited. 
 
Subject to the receipt of satisfactory amendments and further information on 
contamination, it is considered that the development as proposed conforms to both 
national planning guidance and the current development plan and, subject to the 
imposition of relevant conditions, forms an acceptable development. 
 
 
 

Summary of Reason(s) for Approval 
 
The development is in accordance with national and local policies as set out in the 
Planning Policy Guidance Notes PPG3 (Housing - 2000), PPG25 (Development and Flood 
Risk), PPS23 (Planning and Pollution Control), Policy H2 of the Lincolnshire Structure Plan 
(Deposit Draft) and Policies H6, EN1, EN10 and EN11 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   That subject to the receipt of amended plans satisfactorily 
addressing concerns about the relationship of three storey units to existing properties and 

 



overlooking concerns and the final comments of the Highway Authority and the 
Environment Agency, the development be Approved subject to condition(s) 
 
1. This consent relates to the application as amended by *** received on ***.  

 

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is/are: 
 

1. For the avoidance of doubt. 

 
Note(s) to Applicant 

1. You are advised that the application site falls within an area which requires 
protection from Radon. You are advised to contact the District Council's Building 
Control Services to ascertain the level of protection required, and whether 
geological assessment is necessary. 

 
 

*   *   *   *   *   * 
 
 

 



 

SR.1 S06/0677/48 Registration Date:  10-May-2006 
 

Applicant Sir Simon Benton-Jones C/o Agent 

Agent Robert Weighton Partnership 10, Broad Street, Stamford, Lincs, PE9 1PG 

Proposal Demolition of rear extension & erection of two storey stone extension & 
minor internal alterations 

Location 19, Hawthorpe Road, Irnham 

 

Site Details 
Parish(es) 
 

 
Irnham 
Conservation Area 
C Class Road 
Demolition of any building - BR1 
Listed Building (Grade II) 
Area of special control for adverts 
C9 Area Conservation Policy 
EN3 Area of great landscape value 
Airfield Zone - No consultation required 
Drainage - Welland and Nene 
Wildlife - g/c newts etc - WL3 

 
REPORT 
 

The Site and its Surroundings 
 
The application site lies on the edge of Irnham village with residential development to the south 
and west.  To the north and east of the site lies open countryside.  The application site comprises 
number 19 Hawthorpe Road and its associated curtilage.  19 Hawthorpe Road is a modest semi 
detached 17th Century stone cottage on the eastern side of Hawthorpe Road. 
 
No. 19 is a Grade II Listed Building and is located within the Irnham Conservation Area. 
 

Site History 
 
There is no relevant history of planning applications on this site. 
 

The Proposal 
 
This is a full application for a two storey stone extension with rooms in the roof space to the rear of 
the property.  The proposed extension has a half hipped roof with a dormer window on the north 
elevation.  In order to accommodate the proposed extension an existing single storey brick lean-to 
extension with a catslide roof will be removed. 
 

Policy Considerations 
 
National Policy 
 
Planning Policy Statement 1:  Delivering Sustainable Development (PPS1) 
 
Planning Policy Guidance Note 15:  Planning and the Historic Environment (PPG15) 
 
Lincolnshire Structure Plan 
 
Policy BE3:  Conservation of the Historic Built Environment 
 
South Kesteven Local Plan 
 
Policy H7:  Housing Development 
 
Policy EN1:  Protection and Enhancement of the Environment 
 
Policy EN3:  Areas of Great Landscape Value 

 



 
Policy C6:  Alterations or extensions to Listed Buildings 
 
Policy C9:  Buildings in Conservation Areas 
 

Statutory Consultations 
 
Parish Council :  No objections to this application and is pleased that the house/site is to be 
brought into the 21st Century. 
 
Community Archaeologist:  The proposed development does not affect any known archaeological 
sites. 
 
Local Highway Authority:  No objections. 
 
English Nature:  No objections. 
 

Representations as a Result of Publicity 
 

None. 

 

Planning Panel Comments 
 
The application was reported to the Planning Panel on 27 June 2006 with a recommendation for 
refusal.  At the meeting the Planning Panel indicated that they felt that the proposed development 
was acceptable and that planning permission should be granted. 
 
The application has therefore been report to the Development Control Committee in accordance 
with the Council’s adopted procedures. 

 

Applicants Submissions 
 
None. 
 

Conclusions 
 
National planning policy contained in PPS1 states in paragraph 34 that “planning authorities should 
plan positively for the achievement of high quality and inclusive design for all development, 
including individual buildings, public and private spaces and wider area development schemes.  
Good design should contribute positively to making places better for people.  Design which is 
inappropriate in its context, or which fails to take the opportunities available for improving the 
character and quality of an area and the way it functions, should not be accepted.” 
 
PPG15 advises local authorities to ensure that they have appropriately qualified specialist advice 
on any development which, by its character or location, might be held to have an adverse effect on 
any sites or structures of the historic environment. 
 
PPG15 advises that once lost, listed buildings cannot be replaced; and they can be robbed of their 
special interest as surely by unsuitable alteration as by outright demolition.  They represent a finite 
resource and irreplaceable asset.  There should be a general presumption in favour of the 
preservation of listed buildings, except where a convincing case can be made out for alteration or 
demolition. 
 
Paragraph 3.14 of PPG15 states that “many Grade II buildings are of humble and once common 
building types and have been listed precisely because they are relatively unaltered examples of a 
particular building type; so they can as readily have their special interest ruined by unsuitable 
alteration or extension as can Grade I or II* structures.” 
 
The site is located within the Irnham conservation area and PPG15 advises that “the courts have 
recently confirmed that planning decisions in respect of development proposed to be carried out in 
a conservation area must give a high priority to the objective of preserving or enhancing the 
character or appearance of the area.  If any proposed development would conflict with that 
objective, there will be a strong presumption against the grant of planning permission, though in 

 



exceptional cases the presumption may be over-ridden in favour of development which is desirable 
on the ground of some other public interest.” 
 
Paragraph 3.4 of PPG15 requires applicants to justify their proposals and to show why works 
which would affect the character of a listed building are desirable or necessary.  PPG15 goes on to 
state that “they should provide the local planning authority with full information, to enable them to 
assess the likely impact of their proposals on the special architectural or historic interest of the 
building and on its setting. 
 
No justification has been provided with the application to demonstrate that the works are desirable 
or necessary.  The survey plans of the existing building submitted with the application are also 
inaccurate and misrepresent the existing building.  It is therefore unclear as to what works are 
proposed to be undertaken as part of this application. 
 
If approved the development would result in the existing listed building being extended with a large 
two storey extension with a half hipped roof.  The design of the proposed extension in particular 
the proposed half hipped roof does not reflect that of the host listed building.  The proposed 
extension due to its size would dominate the rear elevation and therefore appear out of scale and 
character with the existing modest stone cottage.  Acceptance of the proposal would therefore be 
contrary to the requirements of National Planning Policy Guidance contained in PPS1 and PPG15, 
policy BE3 of the Lincolnshire Structure Plan and policies H7, EN1, C6 and C9 of the adopted 
South Kesteven Local Plan.  The application is therefore recommended for refusal. 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION:   That the development be Refused for the following reason(s) 
 
  

 

1. The survey plans of the existing building submitted with the application are 
inaccurate and misrepresent the existing building.  It is therefore unclear as to what 
works are proposed to be undertaken as part of this application.  Notwithstanding 
this no justification has been provided with the application to demonstrate that the 
works are desirable or necessary.  It is considered that the proposed two storey 
rear extension to the rear of No. 19 Hawthorpe Road would constitute, by reason of 
its design and size, an inappropriate and unsympathetic addition to an otherwise 
modest two bedroom cottage.  Acceptance of the proposal would therefore be 
contrary to the requirements of Central Government Planning Policy Guidance 
contained in PPS1 (Delivering Sustainable Development), PPG15 (Planning and 
the Historic Environment), Policy BE3 of the Lincolnshire Structure Plan (proposed 
Changes, February 2005) and Policies H7, EN1, C6 and C9 of the South Kesteven 
Local Plan. 

 
 

 
 

*   *   *   *   *   * 

 

 

 



 

 

SR.2 S06/LB/6603/48 Registration Date:  10-May-2006 
 

Applicant Sir Simon Benton-Jones C/o Agent 

Agent Robert Weighton Partnership 10, Broad Street, Stamford, Lincs, PE9 1PG 

Proposal Demolition of rear extension & erection of two storey stone extension & 
minor internal alterations (listed building) 

Location 19, Hawthorpe Road, Irnham 

 

Site Details 
Parish(es) 
 

 
Irnham 
Conservation Area 
C Class Road 
Demolition of any building - BR1 
Listed Building (Grade II) 
Area of special control for adverts 
C9 Area Conservation Policy 
EN3 Area of great landscape value 
Airfield Zone - No consultation required 
Drainage - Welland and Nene 
Wildlife - g/c newts etc - WL3 

 
REPORT 
 

The Site and its Surroundings 
 
The application site lies on the edge of Irnham village with residential development to the 
south and west.  To the north and east of the site lies open countryside.  The application 
site comprises number 19 Hawthorpe Road and its associated curtilage.  19 Hawthorpe 
Road is a modest semi detached 17th Century stone cottage on the eastern side of 
Hawthorpe Road. 
 
No. 19 is a Grade II Listed Building. 
 
Site History 
 
There is no relevant history of planning applications on this site. 
 
The Proposal 
 
This is an application for Listed Building Consent for a two storey stone extension with 
rooms in the roof space to the rear of the property.  The proposed extension has a half 
hipped roof with a dormer window on the north elevation.  In order to accommodate the 
proposed extension an existing single storey brick lean-to extension with a catslide roof 
will be removed. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
National Policy 
 
Planning Policy Guidance Note 15:  Planning and the Historic Environment (PPG15) 
 
Lincolnshire Structure Plan 
 
Policy BE3:  Conservation of the Historic Built Environment 
 
South Kesteven Local Plan 
 
Policy C6:  Alterations or extensions to Listed Buildings 

 



 
Statutory Consultations 
 
Parish Council:  No objections to this application and is pleased that the house/site is to be 
brought into the 21st Century. 
 
Historic Buildings Advisor:   
 

The application is concerned with alterations to a modest semi detached cottage on 
the eastern side of Hawthorpe Road.  It is proposed to demolish a brick single 
storey lean to addition at the rear, and replace it with a new two storey extension to 
modify and increase the standard of internal accommodation. 
 
I must firstly point out that the information supplied with this application is extremely 
basic, and does not provide a sufficiently accurate picture to determine what 
precisely is being proposed.  For example, the form refers to the “reuse of suitable 
material” from the removal of the brick lean to, where as it also indicates that 
proposed materials are “to match existing”.  As the existing building is mainly stone, 
it is difficult to understand what is meant here.  Both the existing and proposed 
drawings misrepresent the existing fenestration, both on the front and side 
elevations.  There is no evidence that drip moulds have been accounted for, and, in 
particular on the side elevation, windows are of a different design, and the ground 
floor window is significantly smaller than is illustrated.  There are no notes on the 
plan to indicate what alterations may or may not be proposed here, and what we 
are being asked to approve is therefore unclear in these areas. 
 
The existing building is relatively narrow in depth, characterised by a steeply 
pitched roof.  The extension proposed would be a significant addition to this 
relatively modest building, extending across approximately half its existing width.  
The design appears to incorporate a shallower roof to allow for two complete 
storeys, with the eaves line significantly higher than that of the existing building.  
From the sketchy information submitted, it would appear that this extension bears 
little relationship in terms of scale and appearance to the existing building and little 
adequate justification has been provided for it. 
 
On the basis of the information provided therefore, I am of the opinion that the size 
and design of the extension would be unlikely to preserve or enhance the character 
of the existing relatively modest cottage, and I therefore am unable to support the 
proposal. 

 
I appreciate that a not dissimilar addition has already been erected on the adjacent 
property.  This appears to have been done some considerable time ago, possibly 
before the property was listed.  I do not believe however that this should be seen as 
a precedent for a wholly unsympathetic and inappropriate addition to this building. 

 
Representations as a Result of Publicity 
 

None. 

 
Planning Panel Comments 
 
The application was reported to the Planning Panel on 27 June 2006 with a 
recommendation for refusal.  At the meeting the Planning Panel indicated that they felt that 
the proposed development was acceptable and that Listed Building Consent should be 
granted. 
 
The application has therefore been report to the Development Control Committee in 
accordance with the Council’s adopted procedures. 

 

 



Applicants Submissions 
 
None. 
 
Conclusions 
 
PPG15 advises local authorities to ensure that they have appropriately qualified specialist 
advice on any development which, by its character or location, might be held to have an 
adverse effect on any sites or structures of the historic environment. 
 
PPG15 advises that once lost, listed buildings cannot be replaced; and they can be robbed 
of their special interest as surely by unsuitable alteration as by outright demolition.  They 
represent a finite resource and irreplaceable asset.  There should be a general 
presumption in favour of the preservation of listed buildings, except where a convincing 
case can be made out for alteration or demolition. 
 
Paragraph 3.14 of PPG15 states that “many Grade II buildings are of humble and once 
common building types and have been listed precisely because they are relatively 
unaltered examples of a particular building type; so they can as readily have their special 
interest ruined by unsuitable alteration or extension as can Grade I or II* structures.” 
 
Paragraph 3.4 of PPG15 requires applicants to justify their proposals and to show why 
works which would affect the character of a listed building are desirable or necessary.  
PPG15 goes on to state that “they should provide the local planning authority with full 
information, to enable them to assess the likely impact of their proposals on the special 
architectural or historic interest of the building and on its setting. 
 
No justification has been provided with the application to demonstrate that the works are 
desirable or necessary.  The survey plans of the existing building submitted with the 
application are also inaccurate and misrepresent the existing building.  It is therefore 
unclear as to what works are proposed to be undertaken as part of this application. 
 
If approved the development would result in the existing listed building being extended 
with a large two storey extension with a half hipped roof.  The design of the proposed 
extension in particular the proposed half hipped roof does not reflect that of the host listed 
building.  The proposed extension due to its size would dominate the rear elevation and 
therefore appear out of scale and character with the existing modest stone cottage.  
Acceptance of the proposal would therefore be contrary to the requirements of National 
Planning Policy Guidance contained in PPG15, policy BE3 of the Lincolnshire Structure 
Plan and policy C6 of the adopted South Kesteven Local Plan.  The application is 
therefore recommended for refusal. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   That the development be Refused for the following reason(s) 

 

 

1. The survey plans of the existing building submitted with the application are inaccurate and 
misrepresent the existing building.  It is therefore unclear as to what works are proposed to 
be undertaken as part of this application.  Notwithstanding this no justification has been 
provided with the application to demonstrate that the works are desirable or necessary.  It is 
considered that the proposed two storey rear extension to the rear of No. 19 Hawthorpe 
Road would constitute, by reason of its design and size, an inappropriate and 
unsympathetic addition to an otherwise modest two bedroom cottage.  Acceptance of the 
proposal would therefore be contrary to the requirements of Central Government Planning 
Policy Guidance contained in PPG15 (Planning and the Historic Environment), Policy BE3 
of the Lincolnshire Structure Plan (Proposed Changes, February 2005) and Policy C6 of the 
South Kesteven Local Plan. 

 
 

 



 
 

*   *   *   *   *   * 

 

 

 



 

 

SR.3 S06/0779/17 Registration Date:  30-May-2006 
 

Applicant BRB (Residuary) Limited 5th Floor, Hudson House, York, YO1 6HP 

Agent Jacobs Babtie West Offices, City Business Centre, Station Rise, York, YO1 
6HT 

Proposal Demolition of existing bridge and formation of new embankments and 
re-profiling of carriageway 

Location Redundant Railway Bridge (EBO/3), Carlby Road, Carlby 

 

Site Details 
Parish(es) 
 

 
Carlby 
C Class Road 
Demolition of any building - BR1 
Radon Area - Protection required 
Area of special control for adverts 
EN3 Area of great landscape value 
Airfield Zone - No consultation required 
Drainage - Welland and Nene 

 
REPORT 
 

The Site and its Surroundings 
 
The application site is a redundant, three-span, railway bridge of brick construction, on the 
C class road from Carlby to Greatford.  It carries the road over the former Stamford to 
Bourne line and is only 120m to the east of the junction with the A6121. 
 
The cutting beneath the bridge is overgrown and subject to fly-tipping. 
 
Site History 
 
There is no planning history relating to the bridge subject of this application. 
 
The Proposal 
 
The proposal is to demolish the bridge, form new embankments and re-profile the 
carriageway so that it is the same level as the road on either side. 
 
The bridge has structural problems, as evidenced by the cracks in the brickwork above the 
arches and has been subject to monitoring for some time. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
PPG13 – Transport. 
 
South Kesteven Local Plan 
 
Policy EN1 – Protection and Enhancement of the Environment. 
 
Policy EN3 – Areas of Great Landscape Value. 
 
Statutory Consultations 
 
Local Highway Authority:  Requests one condition and Note to Applicant – see below. 
 
Community Archaeologist:  Comments awaited. 
 
Parish Council:  Comments awaited – notified 7 June 2006. 

 



 
Representations as a result of Publicity 
 
The application has been advertised in accordance with the Statement of Community 
Involvement.  Letters have been received from the following: 
 
1. P Launders, Spa Halt, Spa Road, Braceborough. 
2. Rachael & Richard Barron-Clark, Church View House, Greatford. 
3. Greatford Parish Council. 
4. Alan & Betty Rose, Ash Lodge, Carlby Road, Greatford. 
5. Mike & Pat Smith, 14 Greatford Gardens, Greatford. 
6. Dr Ann Henley, 4 Greatford Gardens, Greatford. 
7. Lincolnshire Wildlife Trust. 
 
Planning issues raised: 

 
a) Ownership of land to either side of bridge (P Launders), therefore need to know 

extent of works on either side.  (1) 
 
b) If bridge unsafe for heavy traffic put weight limit on to prevent use by HGV’s.  (3) 
 
c) Attractive addition to the countryside.  (2) 
 
d) Demolition would remove hump in road to detriment of road safety.  (3) 
 
e) Adverse impact on Greatford parish resulting from removal of bridge.  Carlby Road 

is one of principal approach roads to Greatford and already carries considerable 
volume of HGV traffic using it as a shortcut.  Removal would lead to increase in 
traffic on road already unsuitable.  Junction with Stamford Road inadequate for 
current traffic.  Road surface in Greatford not good enough for existing problem, 
infill arches to retain humped profile.  Question findings of Ecological Survey that no 
protected species present.  (1) 

 
f) Area beneath bridge provides habitat for wildlife.  (1) 
 
g) Proposal will increase traffic and damage to environment of Greatford Conservation 

Area.  (2) 
 
h) Removal would enable fast moving traffic to approach busy Essendine/Bourne 

Road even faster with increased risk of collision.  (1) 
 
i) Ecological survey required.  (1) 
 
Applicants Submissions 
 

“Jacobs act as Consulting Engineers/Agents for the British Railway Board 
(Residuary) Ltd, who own a large proportion of the railway structures 
throughout the country that are associated with redundant railway lines. 

 
EBO/3 is a 3 span brick arch bridge.  The abutments, piers, spandrels and parapets 
are of brick construction. 
 
The side arches show vertical fractures from the quarter points of the arches.  This 
is consistent with the development of hinges within the arch.  In addition there are 
cracks stretching from the middle of each barrel at the springing line from the 
abutments running longitudinally for approximately 1 metre. 
 
Only a small area of the abutments are visible but it would appear that there has 
been some degree of settlement indicated by the position of cracking in the arch 

 



barrels.  The parapets have significant cracking.  These cracks are being monitored 
but there are significant signs of rotation of the parapets with crack widths up to 
40mm at coping level. 
 
The structure is in poor condition and has been subject to a 3 monthly monitoring 
scheme for some time.  A feasibility study was undertaken by Jacobs in 2004/5 to 
consider possible remedial action.  The resulting recommended scheme includes 
the demolition of the bridge superstructure and re-profiling of the existing 
carriageway to remove the “hump” in the road, forming of new embankments (in the 
redundant cutting) and erection of timber post and rail fencing (adjacent to the re-
profiled section of carriageway) and quick  growing Hawthorne hedging. 
 
An Ecological survey was undertaken by the Robert Stebbings Consultancy Ltd to 
ascertain whether any protected species are present in the vicinity of the structure.  
The report concludes that there are no specially designated wildlife areas around 
the structure and no known protected species were present. 
 
A safety audit of the scheme is currently being undertaken by Lincolnshire Road 
Safety Partnership.  A stage 1 (outline) audit has already been completed and there 
were no comments regarding the scheme in principle.” 
 

Conclusions 
 
The bridge subject of this application displays clear signs of structural defect.  It does not 
benefit from any statutory protection.  The former railway line is not covered by any wildlife 
or nature conservation designation. 
 
A copy of the Ecological Survey referred to in the applicants supporting statement has 
been submitted and copy forwarded to the parish council. 
 
Copies of the representations referred to highway safety issues have been taken by the 
representative of the Local Highway Authority. 
 
 

Summary of Reason(s) for Approval 
 
The proposal is in accordance with national and local policies as set out in Planning Policy 
Guidance Note PPG13  (Transport) and policies EN1 and EN3 of the South Kesteven 
Local Plan.  There are no material considerations that indicate against the proposal though 
conditions have been attached. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   That the development be Approved subject to condition(s) 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three 
years from the date of this permission. 

2. Prior to the commencement of the approved development the works to the public 
highway in conjunction with the re-profiling of the carriageway shall be agreed and 
certified by the local planning authority.  

 

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is/are: 
 

1. Required to be imposed pursuant to section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990. 

2. In the interests of the safety of users of the public highway, in accordance with 
PPG13 - Transport. 

 
Note(s) to Applicant 

 



1. No works shall commence on site until a Section 278 Agreement under the 
Highways Act 1980, has been entered into with the local highway authority 
(Lincolnshire County Council) for the highway improvement works in conjunction 
with the road re-profiling. 

 
 

*   *   *   *   *   * 
 
 

 



 

 

NU.2 S06/0770/35 Registration Date:  26-May-2006 
 

Applicant Asset & Facilities Management, SKDC Council Offices, St. Peters Hill, 
Grantham, NG31 6PZ 

Agent Allenbuild Limited Stoney Gate Road, Spondon, Derby, DE21 7RY 

Proposal Provision of 3 storey (6 level) multi-storey car park 

Location Welham Street, Grantham 

 

Site Details 
Parish(es) 
 

 
Grantham 
Unclassified road 
Radon Area - Protection required 
Airfield Zone - No consultation required 
Drainage - Lincs 
EA: Flood Risk Zone 2/3 (new bld only) 

 
REPORT 
 

The Site and its Surroundings 
 
The site is located to the north of St Catherine’s Road and the west of Welham Street, 
approximately 100m to the east of the Council Offices.  Immediately to the west of the site 
are the Cinema and the Health Centre and to the north of the site are residential properties 
fronting Grove End Road and some small business premises.  All but 2 of the properties 
on St Catherine’s Road that face the site are used for commercial, business of office 
purposes. 
 
Members will recall that planning permission is in place, and work has commenced on site, 
for the erection of residential apartments to the east of the site, on the former tyre garage 
site. 
 
The site is currently used for surface level car parking (pay and display) and measures 
approximately 140m x 110m.  Vehicular access into the site is gained directly from 
Welham Street, with pedestrian access points onto Grove End Road, St Catherine’s Road 
and the private road to the rear of the Health Centre. 
 
Site History 
 
Outline planning permission (S05/1378/35) was granted on 20 January 2006 for the 
provision of a multi-storey car park on the site.  Members will be aware that there were 
restrictive conditions imposed on the outline planning permission relating to the distance 
that it could be constructed away from the northern boundary of the site. 
 
The Proposal 
 
Some Members may be aware that, following the granting of outline planning permission, 
an ‘open day’ was held with prospective developers where various proposals were 
presented to a Panel and commented upon.  The tender proposal had to be within budget, 
whilst providing a minimum number of car parking spaces and adhering to the outline 
conditions. 
 
The entire Panel were in agreement, as were the members of the Development Control 
Committee last December, that the design of the car park was crucial for this prominent, 
town centre location.  There was unanimous agreement that the chosen tender design 
allowed for an imaginative development, meeting all the requirements of the Council. 
 

 



Consent is therefore sought for a 3-storey, 6 level car park on the application site 
containing 331 parking spaces.  The 10m buffer zone to the northern boundary of the site 
is respected, as are the heights of the surrounding development. 
 
The car park would be constructed in modern materials incorporating terracotta panels, 
exposed painted steel and brickwork.  The darker brickwork would be used in the vertical 
sections of the building in order to break up the horizontal attenuation of the structure and 
to provide more vertical emphasis.  The use of lighter (buff) colours in the horizontal 
elements will help to reduce visual impact.  The colours of the materials will be conditioned 
and chosen to reflect those in the surrounding properties. 
 
Vehicular access into the car park will be from Welham Street.  Pedestrian access into and 
out of the car park will be gained via two stairwells, one of which will contain a lift.  These 
elements of the building will be predominantly glazed but will include elements of brickwork 
and steel panelling. 
 
To further prevent any overlooking to the properties fronting Grove End road privacy 
screens will be inserted in ground and first floor sections of the car park.  Pedestrian 
access to Grove End Road will be retained. 
 
Some minor amendments to the elevational treatment have been requested and the 
applicants have been asked to provide coloured and isometric drawings in order that a 
better impression of the proposed car park can be gained.  It is hoped that these details 
will be available prior to the Committee meeting. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
Policy T2 – Allows for the development of town centre car parks providing there is no loss 
of car parking or unless an alternative provision, with at least the same amount of car 
parking is provided elsewhere. 
 
Policy EN1 – Allows for development proposals that (inter alia) incorporate appropriate 
landscaping, reflect the general character and appearance of the area through layout, 
siting, design and materials and development where the highway system can adequately 
and safely accommodate the volume and nature of traffic likely to be generated. 
 
Statutory Consultations 
 
Local Highway Authority:  Requests 2 conditions and a Note to Applicant of any approval. 
 
Community Archaeologist:  Imposed conditions on the outline planning permission. 
 
Representations as a result of publicity 
 
The application has been advertised in accordance with established procedures and 
letters of representation were received from the following: 
 
1. D A Johnson, 5 Grove End Road (including additional neighbour comments). 
2. A W Beecroft, Parts Export Ltd, Welham Street. 
3. A Clipsham, 3 Grove End Road. 
4. K Kinton, 1 Ashley Drive. 
5. R Allsop, 3 Grove End Road. 
6. P Berry, 16 St Catherine’s Road. 
 
The following issues were raised: 
 
a) Development would be too high. 
 
b) Poor design. 

 



 
c) The upper floor should be staggered back to avoid overlooking issues. 
 
d) 10m set back and ‘privacy panels’ are welcomed. 
 
d) Noise and vibration during construction works. 
 
e) Potential damage to adjacent properties. 
 
f) Concern over constructional hours of work and the blocking of Welham Street. 
 
g) Contrary to the objectives of the LDF. 
 
h) Increase in traffic to area. 
 
i) Reduction in air quality. 
 
j) Loss of mature tree. 
 
k) Loss of privacy. 
 
l) Potential flood hazard. 
 
m) Question concerning whether parking will remain free for motorbike/mopeds. 
 
n) Anti-social behaviour issues. 
 
Planning Panel Comments 
 
20 June 2006 – The application be considered by the Development Control Committee. 
 
 
 
Applicants Submissions 
 
None 
 
Summary of Reason(s) for Approval 
 
The proposal is in accordance with local policies as set out in policies T2 and EN1 of the 
South Kesteven Local Plan.  The issues relating to design, impact, landscaping, highway 
safety, pollution, anti-social behaviour, privacy, flooding and height are material 
considerations but, subject to the conditions attached to this permission, are not sufficient 
in this case to indicate against the proposal and to outweigh the policies referred to above. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   That the development be Approved subject to condition(s) 
 

1. Samples of the materials to be used for all external walls and roofs shall be 
submitted to the District Planning Authority before any development to which this 
permission relates is commenced and only such materials as may be approved in 
writing by the authority shall be used in the development. 

2. Before any development is commenced the approval of the District Planning 
Authority is required to a scheme of landscaping and tree planting for the site 
(indicating inter alia, the number, species, heights on planting and positions of all 
the trees). Such scheme as may be approved by the District Planning Authority 
shall be undertaken in the first planting season following the occupation of the 
buildings or the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner, and any 
trees or plants which within a period of five years from the completion of the 

 



development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be 
replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species, unless 
the District Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation. 

3. Within seven days of the new access being brought into use, the existing access 
onto Welham Street shall be permanently closed in accordance with a scheme to 
be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

4. The arrangements shown on the approved plan AB(0) 101, 102, 103 and 104 dated 
26 May 2006 for the parking/turning/loading/unloading of vehicles shall be available 
at all times when the premises are in use.  

 

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is/are: 
 

1. These details have not been submitted and the District Planning Authority wish to 
ensure that the colour and type of materials to be used harmonise with the 
surrounding development in the interests of visual amenity and in accordance with 
Policy EN1 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

2. Landscaping and tree planting contributes to the appearance of a development and 
assists in its assimilation with its surroundings. A scheme is required to enable the 
visual impact of the development to be assessed and to create and maintain a 
pleasant environment and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the South Kesteven 
Local Plan. 

3. In the interests of safety of the users of the public highway and the safety of the 
users of the site, and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the South Kesteven Local 
Plan. 

4. In the interests of safety of the users of the public highway and the safety of the 
users of the site, and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the South Kesteven Local 
Plan. 

 
Note(s) to Applicant 

1. Prior to the commencement of any of the access works within the public highway, 
please contact the Divisional Highways Manager (Lincolnshire County Council) on 
01522 782070 for appropriate specification and construction information. 

2. You are advised that the application site falls within an area which requires 
protection from Radon. You are advised to contact the District Council's Building 
Control Services to ascertain the level of protection required, and whether 
geological assessment is necessary. 

3. Your attention is drawn to the conditions imposed on the outline planning 
permission, S05/1378/35, which remains relevant in this instance. 

 
 

*   *   *   *   *   * 
 
 

 

 



 
Report No:  PLA.600 

 
 

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 
 

25  JULY  2006  
 

 
 
REPORT BY ACTING DEVELOPMENT CONTROL SERVICES MANAGER 
 
 
Information relating to development control and other planning activity 
 
 
 
TABLE 1 Applications not determined within 8 weeks 
 
This table, broken down into the four Development Control Zones, lists those applications 
that have not been determined within the recommended 8 week time period.  These 
applications are listed by application number, registration date, applicant, proposal and 
location. 
 
The number of applications listed, 76 in total, is a slight increase since the previous 
Committee (62 applications listed). 
 
 
TABLE 2 Applications dealt with under delegated powers 
 from 19 June – 7 July 2006 
 
This table lists those applications upon which decisions have been made under the 
Powers of the Council Exercisable by Officers (as adopted by the District Council on 12 
April 1990), and are set out on Pages 65-67 of the Council Yearbook.  Decisions 
authorised by the Planning Panel are identified. 
 
 
TABLE 3 Planning Appeals Update 
 
This table lists outstanding appeals together with newly submitted appeals and decisions 
received during the last month. 
 
 
 
TABLE 4 Summary of DETR statistical returns 
 
This table contains a summary of the statistics required to be submitted by the Council to 
the DETR on a quarterly basis (PS1 and PS2 returns). 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 8 



Table 1 / Page 1 

TABLE 1 

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL SERVICES 
 
 
Applications not determined within the 8 week statutory period 
 
Report No:  10/06 
Date Prepared:  10 July 2006 
No of applications over 8 weeks:  76 

 

 

 

NORTH  RURAL 
 

 

S05/1030/57/KJC 
 

Date registered: 
27-Jul-2005 
No of days:  348 

Mr M  Dossa 
Extension to provide additional bedrooms 
The Olde Barn Hotel, Toll Bar Road, Marston 
Reason for non-determination: 
Amended plans received, additional information received 
 

 

S05/1269/22/EAB 
 

Date registered: 
16-Sep-2005 
No of days:  297 

Mr A G  White 
Industrial Development (B1, B2, B8) 
Sir Isaac Newton Business Park, Part OS 0062, Bourne Road, 
Colsterworth 
Reason for non-determination: 
Highways Agency require additional information 
 

 

S05/1358/22/MH 
 

Date registered: 
11-Oct-2005 
No of days:  272 

Vishal Properties Ltd 
Mixed use development (residential, offices, retail, nursery & 
workshops) 
Colsterworth Industrial Estate, Colsterworth 
Reason for non-determination: 
Chairman/Vice Chairman to approve subject to S106 
agreement 

 

S06/0102/21/KJC 
 

Date registered: 
23-Jan-2006 
No of days:  168 

Mr R  Cox 
Change of use of agricultural land to garden 
15, Welfen Lane, Claypole 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting comments from consultees 
 

 

S06/0482/47/EAB 
 

Date registered: 
31-Mar-2006 
No of days:  101 

Mr & Mrs M  Jasinski 
Conversion of stables to two dwellings 
Little Scotland Farm, Scotland Lane, Ingoldsby 
Reason for non-determination: 
Amendments requested 
 

 

S06/0487/63/MAS 
 

Date registered: 
03-Apr-2006 
No of days:  98 

Mr D Rowlands, Iberdrola Renewables Energies 
50m tall, steel meteorlogical mast 
Neslam Farm, Sempringham Fen 
Reason for non-determination: 
Further information requested 
 

 



Table 1 / Page 2 

 

S06/0488/43/MH 
 

Date registered: 
03-Apr-2006 
No of days:  98 

Mr & Mrs R  Coney 
Conversion of farm buildings to three holiday lets, office 
accommodation & conference facilities 
Honington Grange, Frinkley Road, Honington 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting agreement on highway issues 
 

 

S06/0532/46/KJC 
 

Date registered: 
10-Apr-2006 
No of days:  91 

Mr & Mrs   Rowland 
Proposed garage extension and alterations 
The Old Hall, Hall Lane, Brandon 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting amended plans 
 

 

S06/0577/64/ST 
 

Date registered: 
20-Apr-2006 
No of days:  81 

Sunrise Homes UK 
Erection of two new dwellings including driveways and 
garages 
Former Methodist Chapel, The Dovecote, Rippingale 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting amended drainage details 
 

 

S06/0599/63/ST 
 

Date registered: 
25-Apr-2006 
No of days:  76 

Mr & Mrs P  Hewitt 
Two storey side extension 
Millstone, 8, Millthorpe 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting reconsultation on amended plans following death of 
agent 
 

 

S06/0678/42/EAB 
 

Date registered: 
11-May-2006 
No of days:  60 

Mr E A  Cant 
Change of use of agricultural land to car parking 
38, Church Leys, Heydour 
Reason for non-determination: 
Deferred at request of English Heritage 
 

 

S06/LB/6588/46/KJC 
 

Date registered: 
10-Apr-2006 
No of days:  91 

Mr & Mrs   Rowland 
Proposed garage extension and alterations 
The Old Hall, Hall Lane, Brandon 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting amended plans 
 

 

S06/LB/6596/05/KJC 
 

Date registered: 
27-Apr-2006 
No of days:  74 

Anthony John Scarborough 
new openings in curtilage buildings and demolition of tin shed 
Heath Farm, Barkston 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting amended plans 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Table 1 / Page 3 

 

NORTH  URBAN 
 

 

S01/0426/54/MAS 
 

Date registered: 
05-Apr-2001 
No of days:  1922 

Mr R D  Stafford 
Residential development (renewal) 
Adjacent Bridge End Grove, Grantham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting details of flood prevention measures 
 

 

S02/0154/35/MAS 
 

Date registered: 
05-Feb-2002 
No of days:  1616 

Buckminster Estate & Jenkinson Trust 
Residential development, local centre, school, open space, 
roads and bridge 
Poplar Farm, Barrowby Road, Grantham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Referred to the Secretary of State – Public Inquiry in 
November 
 

 

S03/1189/35/PJM 
 

Date registered: 
03-Sep-2003 
No of days:  1041 

Clinton Cards Plc 
New illuminated fascia and projecting sign 
48a, High Street, Grantham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting further information 
 

 

S03/1190/35/PJM 
 

Date registered: 
03-Sep-2003 
No of days:  1041 

Clinton Cards Plc 
New shop front 
48a, High Street, Grantham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting further information 
 

 

S03/LB/6083/35/PJM 
 

Date registered: 
03-Sep-2003 
No of days:  1041 

Clinton Cards Plc 
New shopfront including illuminated fascia and projecting sign 
and removal of staircase 
48a, High Street, Grantham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting further information 
 

 

S05/0788/35/KJC 
 

Date registered: 
09-Jun-2005 
No of days:  396 

Ben  Stanley 
Fascia sign, swing sign and projecting box sign 
Dr Thirsty, 85, Westgate, Grantham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting amended plans 
 

 

S05/1609/35/KJC 
 

Date registered: 
02-Dec-2005 
No of days:  220 

Mr M  DiMeglio 
Change of use from A1 (retail) to A3 (restaurant/snack bars) 
Unit 8, The George Shopping Centre, Grantham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting amended plans 
 

 

 

 

 



Table 1 / Page 4 

 

S06/0169/35/KJC 
 

Date registered: 
09-Feb-2006 
No of days:  151 

Mortage Options (Remo) Ltd 
Signage 
4, Finkin Street, Grantham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Application to be withdrawn 
 

 

S06/0366/35/MH 
 

Date registered: 
10-Mar-2006 
No of days:  122 

D & B  Moss 
Residential development (15) 
Land At 201, Barrowby Road, Grantham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting resolution of S106 issues 
 

 

S06/0393/54/BW 
 

Date registered: 
16-Mar-2006 
No of days:  116 

Mr & Mrs W  Sentance 
Extension to dwelling 
25, Hebden Walk, Grantham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Amended plans now received 
 

 

S06/0463/35/BW 
 

Date registered: 
03-Apr-2006 
No of days:  98 

Mr D  Hubbard 
Erection of six flats 
87, Norton Street, Grantham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Subject of Article 3(2) direction, plans now received and 
neighbours reconsulted 
 

 

S06/0661/35/KJC 
 

Date registered: 
05-May-2006 
No of days:  66 

Mr R  Benton 
Two storey side extension and provision of double garage, 
single storey extension to rear and conservatory 
101, Harrowby Road, Grantham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Description changed and re-advertised 
 

 

S06/LB/6547/35/KJC 
 

Date registered: 
09-Feb-2006 
No of days:  151 

Mortgage Options (Remo) Ltd 
Signage to listed building 
4, Finkin Street, Grantham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Application to be withdrawn 
 

 

S06/LB/6577/35/EAB 
 

Date registered: 
21-Mar-2006 
No of days:  111 

The John Laing Pension Trust Ltd 
Internal alterations to listed building. 
The George Shopping Centre, Guildhall Street, Grantham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Referred to Secretary of State 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Table 1 / Page 5 

 

SOUTH  URBAN 
 

 

S02/1522/68/KJC 
 

Date registered: 
15-Nov-2002 
No of days:  1333 

A G  White 
Change of use to B1, B2 and B8 
The Fox Garage, A1 North, South Witham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting details of traffic generation 
 

 

S04/1509/75/IVW 
 

Date registered: 
04-Oct-2004 
No of days:  644 

The Proprietor 
Day nursery 
Adj & R/o Pumping Station, Barholm Road, Tallington 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting further information 
 

 

S05/0855/23/MAS 
 

Date registered: 
22-Jun-2005 
No of days:  383 

Hay Hampers Limited 
Removal of condition 2 from planning permission 
SK23/0631/89 (retention of windows) 
The Barn, Church Street, Corby Glen 
Reason for non-determination: 
Further amendments required 
 

 

S06/0022/78/IVW 
 

Date registered: 
10-Jan-2006 
No of days:  181 

Stamford Developers Limited 
Erection of detached dwelling and change of use of paddock 
to domestic garden 
Plot A, Land Adjacent Barclay House, Bertie Lane, Uffington 
Reason for non-determination: 
Further information requested 
 

 

S06/0288/58/JJ 
 

Date registered: 
24-Feb-2006 
No of days:  136 

Edren Homes Ltd 
Erection of two dwellings and associated works 
Land North Of Grove House, The Grove, Hanthorpe 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting amended plans 
 

 

S06/0553/23/IVW 
 

Date registered: 
12-Apr-2006 
No of days:  89 

Mr & Mrs H  Smith 
Erection of dwelling 
Land Adjacent, 14, The Green, Corby Glen 
Reason for non-determination: 
Further information requested 
 

 

S06/0567/78/IVW 
 

Date registered: 
19-Apr-2006 
No of days:  82 

Mr & Mrs D M  Laughton 
Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of replacement 
dwelling 
Newstead House, Newstead Lane, Belmesthorpe 
Reason for non-determination: 
Chairman/Vice Chairman to approve subject to outcome of 
negotiations 
 

 

 

 



Table 1 / Page 6 

 

S06/0702/50/JJ 
 

Date registered: 
15-May-2006 
No of days:  56 

Mr N  Eveleigh 
Rear and side extension.. 
11, Truesdale Gardens, Langtoft 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting amended plans 
 

 

 

 

SOUTH  URBAN 
 

 

S00/1124/69/IVW 
 

Date registered: 
31-Oct-2000 
No of days:  2078 

F H Gilman & Co 
Business Park 
PT OS 2700, Land north of Uffington Road, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Chairman/Vice Chairman to approve subject to Archaeological 
Evaluation and S106 agreement 
 

 

S03/0320/56/MAS 
 

Date registered: 
16-May-2003 
No of days:  1151 

The Robert Doughty Consultancy Ltd 
Industrial development B1, B2 and B8 
OS 3900, 4800, 5300 & PT OS 7200, Northfield Road, Market 
Deeping 
Reason for non-determination: 
Pending Local Development Framework 
 

 

S03/0580/56/MAS 
 

Date registered: 
11-Jun-2003 
No of days:  1125 

Messrs R & N  Stanton 
Erection of restaurant and takeaway 
Adjacent The Towngate Inn, Peterborough Road, Market 
Deeping 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting Flood Risk Assessment 
 

 

S03/1206/69/IVW 
 

Date registered: 
05-Sep-2003 
No of days:  1039 

Mr S  Haynes 
Erection of garage and verandah 
56, High Street, St. Martins, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting amended plan 
 

 

S03/LB/6086/69/IVW 
 

Date registered: 
05-Sep-2003 
No of days:  1039 

Mr S  Haynes 
Extension of listed building (verandah and garage) 
56, High Street, St. Martins, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting amended drawings 
 

 

S04/0949/69/MAS 
 

Date registered: 
22-Jun-2004 
No of days:  748 

Hereward Homes Ltd 
Erection of three flats and a two storey dwelling 
R/o 4 St. Pauls Street, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Permitted by High Court, subject of legal advice 
 

 

 



Table 1 / Page 7 

 

S04/1455/56/KJC 
 

Date registered: 
22-Sep-2004 
No of days:  656 

Holland House Nursing Homes 
Erection of 14 sheltered housing units 
Holland House Residential Home, 35, Church Street, Market 
Deeping 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting additional information 
 

 

S04/1463/56/MAS 
 

Date registered: 
24-Sep-2004 
No of days:  654 

Tesco Stores Ltd 
Extension to superstore 
Tesco Stores Ltd, Godsey Lane, Market Deeping 
Reason for non-determination: 
Chairman and Vice Chairman to approve subject to S106 
 

 

S04/1789/56/MAS 
 

Date registered: 
30-Nov-2004 
No of days:  587 

Wilcox Body Trailers 
Factory unit and offices 
Land Adjacent Wilcox Body Systems, Blenheim Way, Market 
Deeping 
Reason for non-determination: 
Chairman and Vice Chairman to approve subject to S106 
agreement 
 

 

S05/0183/69/IVW 
 

Date registered: 
10-Feb-2005 
No of days:  515 

Croft Commercial Developments Limited 
Creation of flat 
8, St. Marys Hill, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Still under consideration following archaeologist's report 
 

 

S05/0890/69/IVW 
 

Date registered: 
30-Jun-2005 
No of days:  375 

Hegarty & Co 
Partial demolition of store, ground floor extensions and 
internal alterations 
10, Ironmonger Street, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Still under consideration 
 

 

S05/1201/56/MAS 
 

Date registered: 
05-Sep-2005 
No of days:  308 

Alston Country Homes Limited 
Conversion of 5 barns to dwellings and construction of 2 
dwellings 
Towngate Farm House, Towngate West, Market Deeping 
Reason for non-determination: 
English Heritage objects - application to be withdrawn 
 

 

S05/1426/69/IVW 
 

Date registered: 
25-Oct-2005 
No of days:  258 

M  Thurlby 
Change of use of former RAFA Club to public house and 
single storey extension 
The former Royal Air Forces Association, 12, St. Pauls Street, 
Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting additional information 
 

 

 

 

 



Table 1 / Page 8 

 

S05/1492/69/IVW 
 

Date registered: 
08-Nov-2005 
No of days:  244 

Mr & Mrs B  Green 
Erection of 3 houses, 1 flat and associated parking and 
external works 
Land Adj Grafton House, 1, Conduit Road, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting additional highway information 
 

 

S05/1652/69/MAS 
 

Date registered: 
09-Dec-2005 
No of days:  213 

Croft Commercial Developments Ltd 
Four Class B1 (business) units 
South View Farm, Tinwell Road, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting further information 
 

 

S05/1692/56/IVW 
 

Date registered: 
22-Dec-2005 
No of days:  200 

Macdonald Buchanan Trustees 
Conversion of three barns to form three dwellings and 
ancillary works 
Corner Farm, Towngate West, Market Deeping 
Reason for non-determination: 
Chairman & Vice Chairman to approve subject to satisfactory 
amended drawings 
 

 

S05/LB/6364/69/IVW 
 

Date registered: 
10-Feb-2005 
No of days:  515 

Croft Commercial Developments Limited 
Alteration of listed building 
8, St. Marys Hill, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Still under consideration following archaeologist's report 
 

 

S05/LB/6435/69/IVW 
 

Date registered: 
30-Jun-2005 
No of days:  375 

Hegarty & Co 
Partial demolition of store, ground floor extensions and 
internal alterations 
10, Ironmonger Street, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Chairman/Vice Chairman to approve subect to clearance from 
Secretary of State 
 

 

S05/LB/6455/69/IVW 
 

Date registered: 
24-Aug-2005 
No of days:  320 

Mr & Mrs K  McKay 
Alteration of listed building (replacement windows to dormers) 
The Old Salutation, 16, All Saints Street, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting further details 
 

 

S05/LB/6461/56/MAS 
 

Date registered: 
05-Sep-2005 
No of days:  308 

Alston Country Homes Limited 
Conversion of five barns to dwellings and construction of two 
dwellings 
Towngate Farm House, Towngate West, Market Deeping 
Reason for non-determination: 
English Heritage objects - application to be withdrawn 
 

 

 

 

 

 



Table 1 / Page 9 

 

S05/LB/6489/69/IVW 
 

Date registered: 
25-Oct-2005 
No of days:  258 

Mr M  Thurlby 
Alteration, partial demolition and extension to listed building 
The former Royal Air Forces Association, 12, St. Pauls Street, 
Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting additional information 
 

 

S05/LB/6526/56/IVW 
 

Date registered: 
22-Dec-2005 
No of days:  200 

Macdonald Buchanan Trustees 
Conversion of 3 barns to form 3 dwellings and ancillary works 
Corner Farm, Towngate West, Market Deeping 
Reason for non-determination: 
Chairman & Vice Chairman to approve subject to satisfactory 
amended drawings 
 

 

S06/0215/69/IVW 
 

Date registered: 
13-Feb-2006 
No of days:  147 

Status Architecture 
Erection of dwelling 
Land Adjacent 98, Empingham Road, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
To a future meeting 
 

 

S06/0230/12/JJ 
 

Date registered: 
31-Mar-2006 
No of days:  101 

Mr   Twell 
Residential development 
R/o 48-64 Willoughby Road, Bourne 
Reason for non-determination: 
Chairman/Vice Chairman to approve subject to S106 
agreement 
 

 

S06/0327/69/IVW 
 

Date registered: 
03-Mar-2006 
No of days:  129 

Viyella 
Fascia signage (non illuminated) 
15a, St. Marys Street, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Chairman/Vice Chairman to approve subject to clearance of 
S06/LB/6565/69 from the Secretary of State 

 

S06/0351/12/MAS 
 

Date registered: 
08-Mar-2006 
No of days:  124 

Allison Homes Eastern Limited 
Residential development (87 houses and 44 flats), roads and 
ancillary works 
Zones 1 And 2 (Area 3), Elsea Park, Bourne 
Reason for non-determination: 
Highway amendments requested 
 

 

S06/0439/69/IVW 
 

Date registered: 
27-Mar-2006 
No of days:  105 

E Bowman & Sons 
Residential development (outline) 
Land And Premises Of E Bowman & Sons, Cherryholt Road, 
Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Further information being considered 
 

 

 

 

 

 



Table 1 / Page 10 

 

S06/0451/56/IVW 
 

Date registered: 
27-Mar-2006 
No of days:  105 

Allison Homes Eastern Ltd 
11 houses and 6 apartments (Reserved matters) 
The Still, Off Rosemary Avenue, Market Deeping 
Reason for non-determination: 
Further amendments requested 
 

 

S06/0514/69/IVW 
 

Date registered: 
06-Apr-2006 
No of days:  95 

Mr P Doyle, Bloor Homes 
Residential development 
Former Quarry Farm Brickworks, Little Casterton Road, 
Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting further information 
 

 

S06/0526/69/JT 
 

Date registered: 
10-Apr-2006 
No of days:  91 

Mr & Mrs P  Price 
Two storey extension to dwelling 
13, Queen Street, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Still under consideration 
 

 

S06/0529/12/BW 
 

Date registered: 
10-Apr-2006 
No of days:  91 

Mr M J  Thurlby 
Change of use of ground floor to cafe/restaurant (Class A3) 
Ground Floor, 32, North Street, Bourne 
Reason for non-determination: 
Invalid application 
 

 

S06/0593/69/BW 
 

Date registered: 
24-Apr-2006 
No of days:  77 

Mr G  Laird 
Erection of two storey front extension and raising of roof 
13, Fox Dale, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Site visit and back to August Committee 
 

 

S06/0614/12/JJ 
 

Date registered: 
26-Apr-2006 
No of days:  75 

Mr R Hiblin, c/o Workplace Property Ltd 
Variation of time limit condition of p/p S03/0474 (extension to 
bone mill and change of use to B2) 
The Bone Mill, The Slipe, Bourne 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting additional information 
 

 

S06/0630/12/IVW 
 

Date registered: 
28-Apr-2006 
No of days:  73 

Bourne Rugby Union Football Club 
Erection of floodlights (6 retrospective and 11 proposed) 
Bourne Rugby Club, Milking Nook Drove, Bourne 
Reason for non-determination: 
Still under consideration 
 

 

S06/0632/69/IVW 
 

Date registered: 
02-May-2006 
No of days:  69 

The George of Stamford 
Restoration and conversion of garages into storage and 
workshop facilities for hotel, provision of skip enclosure and 
formation of additional car parking within garden area 
George Hotel, High Street, St. Martins, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Still under consideration 

 



Table 1 / Page 11 

 

S06/0662/25/BW 
 

Date registered: 
08-May-2006 
No of days:  63 

W  Dyehouse 
Erection of one & two storey extensions to dwelling 
127, Eastgate, Deeping St. James 
Reason for non-determination: 
Site visit and back to Panel 
 

 

S06/0701/12/JJ 
 

Date registered: 
15-May-2006 
No of days:  56 

Mr M Croft 
Erection of industrial unit for MoT testing and new access.. 
Bourne Motor Co, Tunnel Bank, Bourne 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting amended plans 
 

 

S06/0706/69/IVW 
 

Date registered: 
15-May-2006 
No of days:  56 

Mr & Mrs C  Holt 
Dormer windows to dwelling.. 
85, Empingham Road, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Still under consideration 
 

 

S06/LB/6565/69/IVW 
 

Date registered: 
03-Mar-2006 
No of days:  129 

Viyella 
Non-illuminated fascia sign 
15a, St. Marys Street, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Chairman/Vice Chairman to approve subject to clearance from 
the Secretary of State 
 

 

S06/LB/6587/69/IVW 
 

Date registered: 
10-Apr-2006 
No of days:  91 

Manorgrove Estates Limited 
Alteration of listed building (internal) 
15, St. Marys Street, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Further details requested 
 

 

S06/LB/6598/69/IVW 
 

Date registered: 
02-May-2006 
No of days:  69 

The George of Stamford 
Alterations to curtilage listed building 
George Hotel, High Street, St. Martins, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Still under consideration 
 

 

 



Table 2 / Page 1 

TABLE 2 

 

 

APPLICATIONS DECIDED UNDER DELEGATED POWERS 
FROM 19 JUNE - 7 JULY 2006 

 

 

 

S03/0138/69  
Applicant: Wilson Connolly 
Proposal: Residential Development (revised application following 

approval S01/0723/69) 
Location: Corner Of Wharf Road and Albert Road, Stamford 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 06 July 2006 

 * DCSM authorised by Panel to determine 

 

S06/0110/69  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs   Rimmer 
Proposal: Change of use of former workshop to dwelling 
Location: 19, Church Court, Stamford 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 26 June 2006 

 

S06/0315/12  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs P  Stark 
Proposal: Erection of dwelling 
Location: R/o The Coach House, Burghley Street, Bourne 
Decision: Permitted Development - 06 July 2006 

 * DCSM authorised by Panel to determine 

 

S06/0369/58  
Applicant: Alston Country Homes 
Proposal: Erection of five dwellings 
Location: R/o 31 East Lane, Morton 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 22 June 2006 

 * DCSM authorised by Panel to determine 

 

S06/0418/12  
Applicant: Mrs J A  Lister 
Proposal: Erect dwelling and change of use to ancillary residential 

accommodation (renewal) 
Location: Land Rear Of, 38, Abbey Road, Bourne 
Decision: Awaiting signature - 07 July 2006 

 

S06/0495/62  
Applicant: Dr & Mrs   Sunder Raj 
Proposal: Demolition of existing dwelling & erection of replacement 

dwelling 
Location: The Willows, Village Street, Pickworth 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 19 June 2006 

 * DCSM authorised by Panel to determine 

 

S06/0511/56  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs S  Smith 
Proposal: Two storey side extension and pitched roof to existing 

dormer window 
Location: 8, Prestland, Market Deeping 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 19 June 2006 

 

 



Table 2 / Page 2 

S06/0516/12  
Applicant: Mr S  Stubley 
Proposal: Light industrial development 
Location: Pt OS 5844, South Fen Road, Bourne 
Decision: Refused - 04 July 2006 

 

S06/0517/12  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs   Neale 
Proposal: Two storey side extension 
Location: 4, Harrington Street, Bourne 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 19 June 2006 

 

S06/0523/69  
Applicant: Punch Taverns 
Proposal: New signage on listed building 
Location: 5, Scotgate, Stamford 
Decision: Refused - 27 June 2006 

 

S06/0534/69  
Applicant: Y S  Horvath 
Proposal: Change of use from Class C3 (dwelling) to Class A1 (retail), 

Class A2 (financial and professional services) and Class B1 
(business) 

Location: 14, Maiden Lane, Stamford 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 26 June 2006 

 

S06/0536/12  
Applicant: Mr Michael  Thurlby 
Proposal: Internally illuminated static fascia and non illuminated fascia 

signs 
Location: 30, North Street, Bourne 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 20 June 2006 

 

S06/0539/43  
Applicant: R T Coney 
Proposal: Formation of outdoor arena 
Location: Honington Grange, Frinkley Road, Honington 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 27 June 2006 

 

S06/0565/69  
Applicant: Mrs   Lie-Fen Liang 
Proposal: Change of use (1st and 2nd floor) from financial centre to 

alternative medicine centre 
Location: 11, Ironmonger Street, Stamford 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 20 June 2006 

 

S06/0571/69  
Applicant: H J  Sedgley 
Proposal: Rear extension and loft conversion 
Location: 43, Queen Street, Stamford 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 20 June 2006 

 * DCSM authorised by Panel to determine 

 

S06/0572/23  
Applicant: Mr C  Pilgrim 
Proposal: Erection of new dwelling 
Location: 42, High Street, Corby Glen 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 21 June 2006 

 * DCSM authorised by Panel to determine 

 



Table 2 / Page 3 

 

S06/0574/50  
Applicant: M  Parker & Sons Ltd 
Proposal: Erection of bungalow 
Location: Plot 9, Dickens Close, Langtoft 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 20 June 2006 

 * DCSM authorised by Panel to determine 

 

S06/0579/56  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs   Levy 
Proposal: First floor front extension 
Location: 26, Kesteven Drive, Market Deeping 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 20 June 2006 

 

S06/0580/78  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs   Ashton 
Proposal: Erection of detached double garage with room in roof space 
Location: The Lodge, Casewick, Stamford 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 20 June 2006 

 

S06/0590/56  
Applicant: Mr D  Turner 
Proposal: Change of use of land to garden 
Location: 20, Beech Close, Market Deeping 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 20 June 2006 

 

S06/0594/56  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs A G  Johns 
Proposal: Rear conservatory 
Location: 31, Bramley Road, Market Deeping 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 06 July 2006 

 * DCSM authorised by Panel to determine 

 

S06/0595/12  
Applicant: Mr D  Towers 
Proposal: Part two storey side and rear extension 
Location: Meadow Drove Farm, Meadow Drove, Bourne 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 19 June 2006 

 

S06/0596/12  
Applicant: Eastcoast Distribution 
Proposal: Change of use from storage and distribution warehouse to 

retail 
Location: Unit 1 & 2, Roman Bank, Bourne 
Decision: Refused - 06 July 2006 

 * DCSM authorised by Panel to determine 

 

S06/0597/12  
Applicant: Mr C  Riddle 
Proposal: Demolition of dwelling & erection of replacement dwelling 
Location: 70, Willoughby Road, Bourne 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 27 June 2006 

 * DCSM authorised by Panel to determine 

 

S06/0601/06  
Applicant: Mr P  Bennett 
Proposal: Conversion of barns to three dwellings 
Location: Barns Adj The Cedars, Low Road, Barrowby 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 27 June 2006 

 



Table 2 / Page 4 

 

S06/0610/69  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs   Goff 
Proposal: Erection of replacement garage 
Location: 43, Waverley Gardens, Stamford 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 19 June 2006 

 

S06/0611/07  
Applicant: Mr S M  Browning 
Proposal: Two storey side extension 
Location: 4, Fosse Close, Baston 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 27 June 2006 

 * DCSM authorised by Panel to determine 

 

S06/0613/52  
Applicant: Mr S  Wright 
Proposal: Erection of two habitable dwellings with garages and access 
Location: 7, Church Lane, Little Bytham 
Decision: Refused - 20 June 2006 

 

S06/0617/12  
Applicant: Mr Frank Tate, Futukey Properties Ltd 
Proposal: Erection of four semi-detached houses (4) 
Location: 30, Eastgate, Bourne 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 03 July 2006 

 * DCSM authorised by Panel to determine 

 

S06/0620/25  
Applicant: Mr David  Gibb 
Proposal: Erection of dwelling (renewal) 
Location: Adj 104 Eastgate, Deeping St. James 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 28 June 2006 

 * DCSM authorised by Panel to determine 

 

S06/0621/12  
Applicant: Mr Michael  Thurlby 
Proposal: Uplighters for signage on front elevation 
Location: 30, North Street, Bourne 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 19 June 2006 

 

S06/0628/56  
Applicant: R J Contractors Ltd 
Proposal: Erection of conservatory and double garage & store 
Location: 42b, Halfleet, Market Deeping 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 19 June 2006 

 * DCSM authorised by Panel to determine 

 

S06/0629/56  
Applicant: Mr P  Gaches 
Proposal: Erection of garage and store 
Location: Oddfellows Cottage, 42, Halfleet, Market Deeping 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 19 June 2006 

 * DCSM authorised by Panel to determine 

 

S06/0631/69  
Applicant: Mr Adrian  Tarrant 
Proposal: Double sided hanging sign 
Location: 13a, St. Pauls Street, Stamford 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 19 June 2006 

 



Table 2 / Page 5 

 

S06/0634/69  
Applicant: Governors of Stamford Endowed Schools 
Proposal: Temporary building (renewal) 
Location: Stamford Junior School, Kettering Road, Stamford 
Decision: Awaiting signature - 06 July 2006 

 

S06/0635/69  
Applicant: Governors of Stamford Endowed Schools 
Proposal: Temporary classroom (renewal of expired permission) 
Location: Stamford School, St. Pauls Street, Stamford 
Decision: Awaiting signature - 06 July 2006 

 

S06/0636/12  
Applicant: Oakland Renovations 
Proposal: Erection of bungalow 
Location: R/o 18 Willoughby Road, Bourne 
Decision: Awaiting signature - 06 July 2006 

 * DCSM authorised by Panel to determine 

 

S06/0640/35  
Applicant: Brian  Dammes 
Proposal: Single storey rear extension 
Location: 2, Lime Grove, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 19 June 2006 

 

S06/0641/21  
Applicant: Mr D  Coombes 
Proposal: Extension to dwelling 
Location: 21, Barnby Lane, Claypole 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 23 June 2006 

 

S06/0644/20  
Applicant: Mr M  Pinfold 
Proposal: Single storey extension to rear 
Location: 16, Arnhem Drive, Caythorpe 
Decision: Withdrawn - 27 June 2006 

 * DCSM authorised by Panel to determine 

 

S06/0648/35  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs S  Harley 
Proposal: Extension to rear of bungalow 
Location: 2, Westside Avenue, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 30 June 2006 

 

S06/0649/43  
Applicant: Mr P J  Aston 
Proposal: Erection of garage 
Location: 2, Hallfield Crescent, Honington 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 20 June 2006 

 * DCSM authorised by Panel to determine 

 

S06/0650/37  
Applicant: Mrs B  Hanna & Mr M Gordon 
Proposal: Change of use of outbuilding to commercial dog grooming 

parlour 
Location: 25, High Street, Great Gonerby 
Decision: Refused - 19 June 2006 

 * DCSM authorised by Panel to determine 

 



Table 2 / Page 6 

 

S06/0651/45  
Applicant: E A Sheardown & Co Limited 
Proposal: Concrete pad with hardcore surround 
Location: Holly Tree Farm, Hougham Road, Hougham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 22 June 2006 

 * DCSM authorised by Panel to determine 

 

S06/0652/37  
Applicant: Mr N  Oley 
Proposal: Conservatory to side 
Location: Arena UK, Allington Lane, Gonerby Moor 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 19 June 2006 

 

S06/0654/68  
Applicant: Compressed Air Plant Limited 
Proposal: Use of land for storage with portakabin office and storage 

container for repair, sales and storage of constructionn plant 
and equipment 

Location: New Mills, North Witham Road, South Witham 
Decision: Awaiting signature - 06 July 2006 

 * DCSM authorised by Panel to determine 

 

S06/0656/25  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs M  Smith 
Proposal: Erection of bungalow 
Location: R/o 34 & 36, Frognall, Deeping St. James 
Decision: Refused - 27 June 2006 

 

S06/0658/12  
Applicant: Clithero Nicholson 
Proposal: Change of use to residential 
Location: Vestry Hall, R/o 58, North Street, Bourne 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 06 July 2006 

 

S06/0659/12  
Applicant: c/o E C Harris Ltd, Bank of Ireland 
Proposal: Proposed external ATM installations to West Street frontage 
Location: Post Office, 24-26, West Street, Bourne 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 20 June 2006 

 

S06/0660/25  
Applicant: J  Thompson 
Proposal: Two storey side extension 
Location: 1, Fraser Close, Deeping St. James 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 19 June 2006 

 

S06/0663/35  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs   Oakes 
Proposal: Erection of conservatory (retrospective) 
Location: 2, Stathern Walk, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 26 June 2006 

 

S06/0664/03  
Applicant: Mrs   Marshall 
Proposal: Provision of timber framed conservatory 
Location: 2 The Elms, Aveland Way, Aslackby 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 27 June 2006 

 



Table 2 / Page 7 

 

S06/0665/12  
Applicant: Mr N  Jannoti 
Proposal: Erection of toilet block 
Location: 13, Abbey Road, Bourne 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 20 June 2006 

 

S06/0666/12  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs   Harris 
Proposal: First floor rear extension 
Location: 19, Fir Avenue, Bourne 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 28 June 2006 

 

S06/0667/69  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs J  Pye 
Proposal: Erection of boundary fence 
Location: 2, Angus Close, Stamford 
Decision: Awaiting signature - 06 July 2006 

 * DCSM authorised by Panel to determine 

 

S06/0668/01  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs S  Bailey 
Proposal: Single storey side extension 
Location: 7, Manor Paddock, Allington 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 26 June 2006 

 

S06/0670/35  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs M  Bates 
Proposal: Retention of portakabin 
Location: 30, Longcliffe Road, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 20 June 2006 

 * DCSM authorised by Panel to determine 

 

S06/0671/69  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs   Stafford 
Proposal: Conservatory to rear 
Location: 8, Lavender Way, Stamford 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 28 June 2006 

 

S06/0672/25  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs M  Goodson 
Proposal: Extensions to dwelling 
Location: Welland Bank House, Eastgate, Deeping St James 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 28 June 2006 

 

S06/0673/57  
Applicant: Mr I  Robinson 
Proposal: Extensions to dwelling 
Location: The Old Rectory, Main Street, Marston 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 26 June 2006 

 

S06/0674/46  
Applicant: Mr B  Gray 
Proposal: Loft conversion, extensions and alterations 
Location: Brumhill, Gelston 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 27 June 2006 

 

 

 



Table 2 / Page 8 

S06/0675/23  
Applicant: Mr C  Hurt 
Proposal: Erection of detached garage 
Location: 4, Irnham Road, Corby Glen 
Decision: Refused - 27 June 2006 

 

S06/0676/40  
Applicant: M  Carty 
Proposal: Erection of dwelling and garage 
Location: R/o Firtree House, 28, Main Street, Haconby 
Decision: Withdrawn - 23 June 2006 

 

S06/0686/42  
Applicant: T P  Radford 
Proposal: Stable 
Location: Heydour House, Heydour 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 19 June 2006 

 

S06/0687/06  
Applicant: Mr M  Hodder 
Proposal: Conversion of garage to form single storey disabled 

facilities 
Location: 2, Leys Close, Barrowby 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 26 June 2006 

 

S06/0688/55  
Applicant: Clive Bontoft, Roseland Group Ltd 
Proposal: Extension to existing storage building 
Location: Unit 12, Roseland Business Park, Long Bennington 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 27 June 2006 

 

S06/0690/18  
Applicant: Mr R  Porter 
Proposal: Formation of ponds, bunding & alterations to access points 
Location: Stone Horse Farm, Hough Lane, Carlton Scroop 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 26 June 2006 

 * DCSM authorised by Panel to determine 

 

S06/0691/74  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs R  Parkin 
Proposal: Two storey side and single storey rear extensions 
Location: Lindisse Cottage, The Drift, Syston 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 27 June 2006 

 

S06/0692/35  
Applicant: The Kings School 
Proposal: Extension and alteration to existing classroom block to form 

new music block 
Location: The Kings School, Brook Street, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 03 July 2006 

 

S06/0693/20  
Applicant: c/o Mrs P A Dawber, Executors of the Late Mrs H Lumley 
Proposal: Erection of dwelling 
Location: 19, South Parade, Caythorpe 
Decision: Refused - 03 July 2006 

 * DCSM authorised by Panel to determine 

 

 



Table 2 / Page 9 

 

S06/0696/21  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs   Huthwaite 
Proposal: Two storey extension to side and detached double garage 
Location: 1, Allen Close, Claypole 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 28 June 2006 

 * DCSM authorised by Panel to determine 

 

S06/0697/54  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs   Oldershaw 
Proposal: Erection of conservatory to rear 
Location: 12, Harrowby Hall Estate, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 27 June 2006 

 

S06/0698/25  
Applicant: S  Koldan 
Proposal: Conservatory to rear 
Location: 19, Broadgate Lane, Deeping St. James 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 28 June 2006 

 

S06/0699/12  
Applicant: Lorraine  Edwards 
Proposal: Erection of shed to frontage (retrospective) 
Location: 28, Baldwin Grove, Bourne 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 28 June 2006 

 * DCSM authorised by Panel to determine 

 

S06/0700/78  
Applicant: John  Stout 
Proposal: Porch to front with toilet 
Location: 10, The Charters, Uffington 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 26 June 2006 

 

S06/0703/12  
Applicant: Mrs A  Hawkins 
Proposal: Erection of conservatory at rear.. 
Location: 12, Wordsworth Grove, Bourne 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 28 June 2006 

 

S06/0704/69  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs A  Hewitt 
Proposal: Erection of single storey side extension.. 
Location: Greytrex House, Tinwell Road Lane, Stamford 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 29 June 2006 

 

S06/0705/16, 52  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs D  Yiend 
Proposal: Two storey extension to dwelling.. 
Location: Warren Farm, Little Bytham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 03 July 2006 

 

S06/0707/46  
Applicant: Mr E  Elvy 
Proposal: Demolish existing garage and erection of single storey side 

extensions including garage.. 
Location: Holly Cottage, Gelston 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 30 June 2006 

 * DCSM authorised by Panel to determine 

 



Table 2 / Page 10 

 

S06/0711/01  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs P  Ward 
Proposal: Erection of dwelling 
Location: Plot 6, Bert's Way, Allington 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 26 June 2006 

 

S06/0712/35  
Applicant: Miss S  Lewis 
Proposal: Single storey side & rear extension to dwelling incorporating 

garage & loft conversion.. 
Location: 6, Lime Grove, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 30 June 2006 

 

S06/0718/69  
Applicant: Helen  Gatehouse 
Proposal: Two non-illuminated signs 
Location: 63, Casterton Road, Stamford 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 04 July 2006 

 

S06/0719/56  
Applicant: Mr M J  Lovett 
Proposal: Change of use from hair salon to Estate Agent.. 
Location: 15, High Street, Market Deeping 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 04 July 2006 

 

S06/0721/12  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs P  Carter 
Proposal: Extension to stable block to form tack room 
Location: Manor Farmhouse, 34, Main Road, Dyke 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 30 June 2006 

 

S06/0723/35  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs   Hainsworth 
Proposal: Single storey rear extension to dwelling including 

conservatory and pitched roof to existing garage 
Location: 33, Dale Road, Grantham 
Decision: Awaiting signature - 07 July 2006 

 

S06/0724/35  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs   Hawkins 
Proposal: Garage extension & alterations 
Location: 2, Redcliffe Road, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 30 June 2006 

 

S06/0725/25  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs P  Toseland 
Proposal: Alterations to garden room approved under S05/0668 to 

change window to door and provide additional window.. 
Location: 99, Eastgate, Deeping St. James 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 03 July 2006 

 

S06/0726/37  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs J  Fowler 
Proposal: Two storey rear extension 
Location: 20a, Covill Close, Great Gonerby 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 07 July 2006 

 

 



Table 2 / Page 11 

 

S06/0727/35  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs P  Dickson 
Proposal: Erection of car port and pitched roof to garage 
Location: 41, Belton Grove, Grantham 
Decision: Awaiting signature - 07 July 2006 

 

S06/0728/09  
Applicant: Mr   Hockin 
Proposal: Two storey side and single storey rear extension 
Location: 35, Folkingham Road, Billingborough 
Decision: Awaiting signature - 07 July 2006 

 * DCSM authorised by Panel to determine 

 

S06/0729/06  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs   Streeter 
Proposal: Erection of conservatory 
Location: 4, Charnwood Park, Low Road, Barrowby 
Decision: Awaiting signature - 07 July 2006 

 

S06/0730/68  
Applicant: Mr B  McClellan 
Proposal: Conservatory to dwelling 
Location: 52, Coverley Road, South Witham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 28 June 2006 

 

S06/0732/69  
Applicant: T E  Story 
Proposal: Change of use of flower shop to motor cycle showroom 
Location: 35, Broad Street, Stamford 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 07 July 2006 

 

S06/0733/69  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs G  Smith 
Proposal: Rear first floor extension and dormer windows 
Location: Crossways, 100A, Empingham Road, Stamford 
Decision: Refused - 28 June 2006 

 

S06/0735/35  
Applicant: Continental Bar Limited 
Proposal: Change of use from amusement arcade to restaurant 
Location: 41/41A, London Road, Grantham 
Decision: Awaiting signature - 07 July 2006 

 

S06/0740/20  
Applicant: Mr R  Dyer 
Proposal: Single storey front and side extensions and new pitched 

roof to existing double garage 
Location: 1, Frieston Green, Frieston 
Decision: Awaiting signature - 07 July 2006 

 

S06/0741/06  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs I  Shaw 
Proposal: Two storey side extension and new vehicular access 
Location: The Hawthorns, Rectory Lane, Barrowby 
Decision: Awaiting signature - 07 July 2006 

 * DCSM authorised by Panel to determine 

 

 



Table 2 / Page 12 

 

S06/0742/35  
Applicant: A  Green 
Proposal: First floor side extension 
Location: 37, Redcliffe Road, Grantham 
Decision: Awaiting signature - 07 July 2006 

 

S06/0743/41  
Applicant: Design For You Limited 
Proposal: Two storey extension to dwelling 
Location: The Old Coach House, Pond Street, Harlaxton 
Decision: Awaiting signature - 07 July 2006 

 

S06/0744/60  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs   Hale 
Proposal: Single storey extensions to bungalow and detached double 

garage 
Location: Church Gates, Church Street, North Witham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 26 June 2006 

 

S06/0745/19  
Applicant: Ms H  Harris 
Proposal: Extensions to cottage 
Location: Manor Cottage, 17, High Street, Castle Bytham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 26 June 2006 

 

S06/0751/25  
Applicant: Mr R A  Smith 
Proposal: Single storey front extension 
Location: 6, Knight Close, Deeping St. James 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 28 June 2006 

 

S06/0772/69  
Applicant: Mr A  Morley & Miss C Stevenson 
Proposal: Extensions to dwelling 
Location: 29, Lonsdale Road, Stamford 
Decision: Awaiting signature - 07 July 2006 

 

S06/0778/48  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs J  Commissaris 
Proposal: Single storey extension and link to annexe 
Location: Plot 6 (formerly Tuckers Nook), Irnham Park, Irnham 
Decision: Withdrawn - 03 July 2006 

 

S06/0793/47  
Applicant: Lincolnshire County Council 
Proposal: Retention of relocatable classroom unit 
Location: Ingoldsby Primary School, Lenton Road, Ingoldsby, 

Grantham, NG33 4HA 
Decision: Approved - 29 June 2006 

 

S06/LB/6586/69  
Applicant: Punch Taverns 
Proposal: New signage on listed building 
Location: 5, Scotgate, Stamford 
Decision: Refused - 27 June 2006 

 

 

 



Table 2 / Page 13 

S06/LB/6594/06  
Applicant: Mr P  Bennett 
Proposal: Conversion of barns to three dwellings 
Location: Barns Adj The Cedars, Low Road, Barrowby 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 27 June 2006 

 

S06/LB/6595/19  
Applicant: Anthea  Harris 
Proposal: Conversion of outbuilding to annexe 
Location: Albemarle Cottage, 12, High Street, Castle Bytham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 19 June 2006 

 

S06/LB/6597/69  
Applicant: Mr Adrian  Tarrant 
Proposal: Alterations to listed building (signage) 
Location: 13a, St. Pauls Street, Stamford 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 19 June 2006 

 

S06/LB/6601/03  
Applicant: Mrs   Marshall 
Proposal: Provision of timber framed conservatory 
Location: 2 The Elms, Aveland Way, Aslackby 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 27 June 2006 

 

S06/LB/6602/69  
Applicant: Jonathon Hartley Estates 
Proposal: Alteration of listed building (repainting facade) 
Location: 25, Broad Street, Stamford 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 06 July 2006 

 

S06/LB/6607/69  
Applicant: Mr J  Ross 
Proposal: Alterations to listed building 
Location: 55, High Street, St. Martins, Stamford 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 07 July 2006 

 

S06/LB/6610/69  
Applicant: Social Services Directorate 
Proposal: Alteration of listed building - level accessible entrance 
Location: Registrars Office, 2, St. Marys Hill, Stamford 
Decision: Approved - 22 June 2006 

 

S06/LD/0530/23  
Applicant: Mr J R  Harwood 
Proposal: Commencement of building operations for the erection of 

two dwellings 
Location: Wild Thyme, 38, High Street, Corby Glen 
Decision: Lawful Development - 27 June 2006 

 

S06/LD/0831/56  
Applicant: Mr David  Wilson-Wilcox 
Proposal: Certificate of Lawfulness for existing rear conservatory 
Location: 2, Lark Rise, Market Deeping 
Decision: Lawful Development - 23 June 2006 
 

 



 

- 1 - 

TABLE 3 
 
PLANNING APPEALS 2006/2007  (excluding Enforcements) 
Update for June 2006 
 
 
NO OF APPEALS DETERMINED  (based on Decision Date) 

 
 

 2001/02 2002/03 2003/04 2004/05 2005/06 2006/07 

LODGED 61 48 49 107 55 7 

DISMISSED 34½ 26½ 22½ 65½ 51½  10 

ALLOWED 20 21 9½ 21½ 20½ 0 

WITHDRAWN 2 2 1 3 5 2 

OUTSTANDING 20 20 37 53 29 29 

 
 
 
 

APPEAL DECISIONS LAST MONTH 
 
 

 
S05/0650/76   IVW 
Mr R  Coley 
Erection of detached dwelling 
Land R/o 39, High Street, Thurlby 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 

04-Jan-2006 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 
 

 
Appeal dismissed 

 
09-Jun-2006 

 

 
S05/0875/35   KJC 
Area Estates Ltd 
Erection of new dwelling 
55, Melbourne Road, Grantham 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 

21-Feb-2006 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 
 

 
Appeal dismissed 

 
27-Jun-2006 

 

 
S05/1010/02   MH 
Mr Mick  Garwood 
Erection of dwelling 
Ancaster Service Station, Willoughby Road, 
Ancaster 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 

20-Feb-2006 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 
 

 
Appeal dismissed 

 
15-Jun-2006 

 

 
S05/1354/35   KJC 
Mr & Mrs N  Jones 
Three pairs of semi-detached houses 
3, Signal Road, Grantham 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 

21-Feb-2006 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 
 

 
Appeal dismissed 

 
22-Jun-2006 

 

 
S05/1524/19   JJ 
Mr & Mrs   Lane 
Conversion of single storey outbuilding to annexe, 
two storey and first floor extensions 
Barn Cottage, Castle Gate, Castle Bytham 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 

20-Feb-2006 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 
 

 
Appeal dismissed 

 
12-Jun-2006 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

- 2 - 

 

OUTSTANDING APPEALS 
 
 

 
S03/1348/35   PJM 
Ryan Michaels Limited 
Internally illuminated fascia and projecting 
signage 
77-78, Westgate, Grantham 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 

04-Mar-2004 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 
 

 
 

 

 
S03/1669/69   IVW 
Maiden Properties Limited 
Erection of an hotel 
Former Welland Motor Factors Site, North Street, 
Stamford 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 

09-May-2006 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 
 

 
 

 

 
S03/LB/6110/35   PJM 
Ryan Michaels Ltd 
Fascia and projecting sign 
77-78, Westgate, Grantham 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 

10-Mar-2004 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 
 

 
 

 

 
S04/1241/69   IVW 
Mr & Mrs   McNamara 
Single storey rear extension and detached 
outbuilding and minor internal alterations 
4, Water Street, Stamford 
 

 
Informal Hearing 

 
Start Date 

03-Mar-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
14-Jun-2006 

 

 
 

 

 
S04/1731/31   MH 
Mr & Mrs P  Johnson 
Demolition of existing buildings and erection of 
five dwellings 
Manor Farm, Main Street, Fenton 
 

 
Informal Hearing 

 
Start Date 

22-Mar-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
04-Jul-2006 

 

 
 

 

 
S04/LB/6267/69   IVW 
Mr & Mrs   McNamara 
Alterations and extension to listed building 
4, Water Street, Stamford 
 

 
Informal Hearing 

 
Start Date 

03-Mar-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
14-Jun-2006 

 

 
 

 

 
S05/0354/55   MH 
Ablehomes Ltd 
Erection of five bungalows 
R/o Farbrooke, Main Road, Long Bennington 
 

 
Public Inquiry 

 
Start Date 

09-Aug-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
15-Aug-2006 

 

 
 

 

 
S05/0640/76   PJM 
Michael  Chalmers 
Erection of double garage 
26, The Green, Thurlby 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 
25-Oct-2005 

 
Date of H / I 

N/A 
 

 
 

 



 

- 3 - 

 

 
S05/0811/69   IVW 
Mr Philip S  Heath 
Erection of eco-friendly dwellinghouse 
Adj Freemans Cottages, Melancholy Walk, 
Stamford 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 
06-Apr-2006 

 
Date of H / I 

N/A 
 

 
 

 

 
S05/0873/34   KJC 
T Balfe Construction Limited 
Change of use of farmland to storage of materials 
(topsoil etc), machinery and portacabins 
R/o Richmond House, Brant Road, Fulbeck 
 

 
Informal Hearing 

 
Start Date 

02-Nov-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
05-Sep-2006 

 

 
 

 

 
S05/0914/20   KJC 
Mr & Mrs R  Burke 
Demolition of existing double garage and 
construction of double garage with study over 
5, Frieston Green, Frieston 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 

08-Mar-2006 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 
 

 
 

 

 
S05/0922/55   MH 
Ablehomes Ltd 
Erection of 5 detached dwellings & garages 
accessed of Vicarage Lane 
R/o Farbrooke, Main Road, Long Bennington 
 

 
Public Inquiry 

 
Start Date 
21-Oct-2005 

 
Date of H / I 

 

 
 

 

 
S05/0932/55   MH 
Ablehomes Ltd 
Erection of 5 detached dwellings & garages 
accessed of Vicarage Lane 
R/o Farbrooke, Main Road, Long Bennington 
 

 
Public Inquiry 

 
Start Date 
21-Oct-2005 

 
Date of H / I 

 

 
 

 

 
S05/1001/44   SLM 
Paula  Carrick 
Erection of dwelling & provision of driveway 
10, Billingborough Road, Horbling 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 

14-Mar-2006 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 
 

 
 

 

 
S05/1183/34   KJC 
N  Fitzakerly 
Retention of vehicular access to Brant Road to 
serve grazing land to rear field 
Willow Farm, Brant Road, Fulbeck 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 

08-May-2006 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 
 

 
 

 

 
S05/1219/69   IVW 
Mr & Mrs J  Ogilvie-Davis 
Illuminated signage 
Mi Famiila, Old Barn Passage, St Mary's Street, 
Stamford 
 

 
Informal Hearing 

 
Start Date 

27-Jan-2006 
 

Date of H / I 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 



 

- 4 - 

 

 
S05/1260/16   IVW 
Mr & Mrs   Booty 
Erection of livery stables 
Park Farm, Careby 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 

06-Jun-2006 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 
 

 
 

 

 
S05/1328/46   MH 
K  Blyth 
Erection of dwelling 
Land Rear Of Beechers Farm, Hough-on-the-hill 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 

22-May-2006 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 
 

 
 

 

 
S05/1554/02   SLM 
Sandy  Ford-Pain 
Change of use of part of premises as tea room 
The Barn 19a, Ermine Street, Ancaster 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 

22-May-2006 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 
 

 
 

 

 
S05/1563/05   MH 
Mr & Mrs J  Bealby 
Erection of dwelling (site of previous agricultural 
building) 
The Granary, Hough Road, Barkston 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 

15-Feb-2006 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 
 

 
 

 

 
S05/1575/69   JJ 
Mr J Regis & Mr J Stevenson, Stamford 
Developers Ltd 
Erection of five dwellings (including demolition of 
existing dwelling) 
Beverley House, New Cross Road, Stamford 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 

22-Jun-2006 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 
 

 
 

 

 
S05/1604/75   IVW 
Hereward Homes 
Replacement dwelling (plot 6) and additional 
dwelling 
Red House Paddock, Main Road, Tallington 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 

22-Feb-2006 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 
 

 
 

 

 
S05/1611/07   PJM 
E G  Wyman 
Change of use of agricultural land to school 
playing field 
Appeal against condition No.2 (vehicular and 
pedestrian access) 
Kirkstone House School, 1-6, Main Street, Baston 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 

30-May-2006 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 
 

 
 

 

 
S05/1622/25   JJ 
Mr R C  White 
Erection of dwelling 
R/o 143 Eastgate, Deeping St. James 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 

10-Mar-2006 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 
 

 
 

 



 

- 5 - 

 

 
S05/CA/6520/69   JJ 
Mr J Regis & Mr J Stevenson, Stamford 
Developers Ltd 
Demolition of dwelling in the Conservation Area 
Beverley House, New Cross Road, Stamford 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 

22-Jun-2006 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 
 

 
 

 

 
S05/LB/6464/69   IVW 
Mr & Mrs J  Ogilvie-Davis 
Alteration of listed building (Illuminated signage) 
Mi Famiila, Old Barn Passage, St Mary's Street, 
Stamford 
 

 
Informal Hearing 

 
Start Date 

27-Jan-2006 
 

Date of H / I 
 

 
 

 

 
S05/LB/6470/69   IVW 
Jane  Cox 
Extension to listed building (retrospective) 
24, St. Leonards Street, Stamford 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 

13-Jun-2006 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 
 

 
 

 

 
S06/0241/55   KJC 
Mr & Mrs J A  Willis 
Erection of dwelling 
Adjacent The Parklands, Vicarage Lane, Long 
Bennington 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 

29-Jun-2006 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 
 

 
 

 

 
S06/0264/56   JJ 
Mr T  Hicks 
Erection of bungalow and garage 
R/o 14 Halfleet, Market Deeping 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 

25-May-2006 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 
 

 
 

 

 



TABLE  4 
 
SUMMARY OF DEPARTMENT OF THE ENVIRONMENT, 
TRANSPORT AND REGIONS STATISTICAL RETURNS (PS1 & PS2) 
 
 

APRIL TO JUNE 2006 
 
                                                                 Apr - June          Previous 
Applications and Decisions                       2006                quarter  

 
Applications received 

 
472 
 

 
544 

 
Applications determined 

 
503 

 
394 
 

 
Applications determined by Development Category 

 
Residential 

 
 89 

 
 80 

 

 
Industrial 

 
  8 

 
 14 
 

 
Retail 

 
 12 

 
  6 
 

 
Change of use 

 
 39 

 
 20 
 

 
Householder 

 
238 

 
184 
 

 
 Advertisements 

 
 30 

 
 14 
 

 
LBC / CAC 

 
 51 

 
 46 
 

 
Other 

 
 36 

 
 30 
 

 
TOTAL 

 
503 

 
394 
 

 
 
                                                                   ACTUAL              BVPI TARGET 
 

% major in 13 weeks 
 

 
60% 

 
60% 

 

% minor in 8 weeks 
 

 
64% 

 
65% 

 

% other in 8 weeks 
 

 
74% 

 
80% 

 

 


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON 4TH JULY 2006
	5 SO6/0366/35 - RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT, 201 BARROWBY ROAD, GRANTHAM
	6 SO6/1691 - RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT (43), LAND SOUTH OF SPALDING ROAD, FROGNALL
	7 PLANNING MATTERS:
	LIST FOR DEBATE 25.7.06 (ORIGINAL)

	8 INFORMATION RELATING TO DEVELOPMENT CONTROL AND OTHER PLANNING ACTIVITIES.
	DC Cttee (8rpts) Table1
	DC Cttee (8del) Table2
	DC Cttee (8apps) Table3
	DC Cttee (8stats) Table4


